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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010.

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 000-10843

CSP Inc.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Chagr)

Massachusetts 04-2441294
(State of incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

43 Manning Road, Billerica, Massachusetts 01821-39@978) 663-7598
(Address and telephone number of principal execut® offices)

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tfe Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange of Which Registered
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) d¢fie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e08#dturities Act.  Yed No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ornti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b tiled all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for suateh period that the registrant was requiredltosuch reports), and (2) has been subject to fiiran
requirements for the past 90 days. YES No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lisnitted electronically and posted on its corpox@ib site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 tm®xor for such shorter period that the registveas
required to submit and post such files). YEb No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ oontained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant’'s knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by mefiee in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendirten
this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantleggge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company
See the definitions of “large accelerated filedctelerated filer” and “smaller reporting compaiyRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filerfJ Accelerated filer I
Non-accelerated filerJ Smaller Reporting Companyix]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxge Act. Yes[ No

As of March 31, 2010, the aggregate market valub@®fegistrant’'s common stock held by non-affdgbf the registrant was $9,970,722 based on
the closing sale price of $3.60 as reported orNgmdaq Global Market.

As of December 17, 2010, we had outstanding 3,8%3shares of common stock.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain portions of the information required intR#rof this Form 10-K are incorporated by refecerfrom our definitive proxy statement for our
2011 annual meeting of stockholders to be filedhlie Securities and Exchange Commission withind83@& after the end of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2010.
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PART I
Item 1. Business

CSP Inc. (“CSPI” or “the Company” or “we” or “ourfyas incorporated in 1968 and is based in Billefidassachusetts, just off Route 128 in the
Boston computer corridor. To meet the diverse meguénts of our industrial, commercial, and defenstomers worldwide, CSPI and its subsidiaries
develop and market IT integration solutions andhipgrformance cluster computer systems.

Segments
CSPI operates in two segments, the Systems se@meéithe Service and System Integration segment.

« The Systems segment consists primarily ofIG3W®ultiComputer Division (the “MultiComputer Digion”) which designs and manufactures
specialty, high-performance computer signal prdogssystems for the aerospace and defense mafketdviultiComputer Division’s products are
known as multicomputers or cluster computers, whigd multiple microprocessors linked together specialized network to achieve very high
performance processing capabilities. Our MultiCotepsystems utilize “blades” (self-contained, hignsity computer boards) to achieve a high
level of compute processing per-cubic-foot-per-whltte blades and other components that make ugpyiiem are housed in a ruggedized chassis,
designed to withstand physically demanding envirents such as those found on board a ship or agplaraddition, CSPI's MultiComputer
products are designed to operate in environmeatstive low power, cooling and space requiremdiisse systems are used on land and in
airborne and shipboard platforms for high-speedaligignal processing (“DSP”) in radar, sonar andveillance applications. The MultiComputer
Division sells all its products through its ownetit sales force in the United States and via bistiors and authorized resellers in the Asia-Pacific
region.

» The Service and System Integration Segmemgists of the computer maintenance and integragovices and third-party computer hardware and
software value added reseller (“VAR”") businesseswfModcomp subsidiary (“Modcomp”). Modcomp is aally owned subsidiary of CSPI
which operates in the United States, Germany aadUtiited Kingdom (the “U.K.”). Modcomp markets asells its products through its own direct
sales force. Modcomp provides solutions and sesvimecomplex IT environments including storage aadvers, unified communications
solutions, IT security solutions and consultingvsars. Modcomp also provides managed IT servicesigh its state of the art network operations
center (“NOC").

Financial Information about Industry Segments

The following table details our sales by operasegment for fiscal years ending September 30, 208®009. Additional segment and geograpl
information is set forth in Note 13 to our finarlgtatements.

Segment 2010 % 2009 %
(Amounts in thousands)
Systems $ 8,311 9% $ 7,987 10%
Service and System Integration 86,70 91% 75,37( 90%
Total Sales $ 95,01¢ 10(% $ 83,35 100%

Systems Segment
Products and Services

The Systems segment’s MultiComputer systems utii@amodity hardware components that are complidtht wdustry standards and open source
software and deliver a high-performance, high dgresid low power consuming computer solution to @ustomers. These systems incorporate tens to
hundreds of processors, all interconnected by a high-bandwidth network. They are specifically ideed for analysis of complex signals and images in
real-time or in modeling and simulations. Typicahputationally intense applications requiring thessducts include radar, sonar, command, control,
communications, computers, intelligence, survedéaand reconnaissance (*€SR”) within the defense market segment.

We utilize the most recent, currently availablehhiggrformance processor technology, large memdrgystems and high-bandwidth networking
components in the open hardware architecture ohMaltiComputer systems. These systems are scataioleeasy to upgrade, allowing for continuous
insertion of the latest technologies. To meet ta@ahds of mission-critical applications, our MutiifGputer systems incorporate high-availability feasuo
facilitate continuous operation of the system. Erifestures include instant booting from a coldtstror-correcting memory, hot-swappable hardware,
extended environmental specifications and buikeli-test. These systems ship in a variety of guméitions ranging from small lab systems with ag ds
ten processors to multiple-chassis systems with 49@ processors.




Hardware Products

Our MultiComputer Division cluster computer systeans currently marketed under the brand name Fastt€| Introduced in 1997, the first
generation of FastCluster products were referreasttine FastCluster 2000 SERIES. Based upon iydststndards, the 2000 SERIES systems included a
VME 6U form factor (the form factor best suited fare in rugged applications), the Motorola™ G4 R&eRISC processors with AltiVec™ technology,
high-speed memory and Myrinet-2000™ cluster intenext. The 2000 SERIES product line is ideallyesuifor use by customers in the aerospace and
defense markets seeking Commercial-Off-The-Sh&@fXTS") solutions to reduce costs and ensure widespredidlsility. To remain competitive, our CO1
solutions incorporate the latest industry standectinologies and minimize the risks associated pritiprietary solutions.

Our StarGate I/0O blade is a 2000 SERIES board-lewmelponent designed specifically for high-speea datuisition. The StarGate bolstered our
product offerings in radar, sonar and surveillaD&® by providing the rapid execution times thatraeessary for the complex signal processing desnahd
these applications. The StarGate I/O blade wafirgt2000 SERIES product to benefit from the irmsed performance provided by the 1GHz Motorola 7457
PowerPC microprocessors and related technologies.

The FastCluster product line was enhanced witlatttiition of rugged system capabilities for bladed enclosures with the introduction of the
FastCluster 220R to our 2000 SERIES product lite FastCluster 220R introduced a new rugged chagpasifically designed to meet military standard
(“MIL-STD") specifications for mission-critical, ddorne defense programs. The advanced packagingaited scalability to hundreds of processors and
leveraged the latest Myrinet-2000 fiber clustetighnology for multi-chassis configurations. Théckaging offered better fault detection, hot-swap
capability, plug-in power supply and blower assgnd@mponents for improved serviceability and adskedsMIL-STD requirements for shock, vibration and
EMC/EMI.

Building upon the momentum of the 2000 SERIES, weoanced the next generation FastCluster produet fhe 3000 SERIES, in fiscal 2006. The
first prototype of a 3000 SERIES component wasptto a customer for evaluation purposes in Sdpme2007. This prototype was successfully evaluated
by the customer during fiscal 2008. We receivedstrigped additional 3000 SERIES orders in fiscdl®a@nd we expect to receive a significant order for
3000 SERIES systems in fiscal 2011. The 3000 SERH&8uct line is being designed to deliver perfano®athat is superior to our predecessor products in
bi-section bandwidth and processing density whiéserving absolute code reuse at the applicatir.|dhe 3000 SERIES product line is targeting high
performance DSP, signal intelligence (“SIGINT")deat and sonar applications in airborne, shipboaddsmmanned aerial vehicle (“UAV”) platforms where
space, power and cooling are at a premium. Withutk-in 10-Gigabit Ethernet technology, the 3BRIES supports the United States (“U.S.”)
Government Department of Defense (“DOD”) visiorf'®fstems of systems” in which embedded systemsatrdesigned, deployed and used in isolation but
rather in a cooperative way.

In fiscal 2010, we announced 3000 SERIES OpenVP¥ith Intel multi-core processors and the OpenVPWITA/ANSI standard (Vita 65) to
support high performance radar, sonat,|8R and SIGINT applications. OpenVPX s the architecture framework that defines systevet interoperabilit
for multivendor, multimode, integrated system eomiments. OpenVPXM 's consideration of system-level requirements impgointeroperability between
computing and communications platforms and redaastomization, testing, cost and risk.

Also, in fiscal 2010, we announced our new 4000 IFSRATCA products. The 4000 SERIES is based omiBfnd, Advanced Telecom
Computing Architecture (“AdvancedTCA” or “ATCA") & EBS standards to deliver affordability, sustaifigband high availability to manned and
unmanned large mobile platforms (land, sea anjl AiF.CA was originally designed to address the haghilability, robust system management and DC
power distribution needs of the telecom and comupatiins markets. ATCA has since become attratbitke military and defense markets as well.

Military computing and communication applicatiomaee the need for increased bandwidth and religbédktremely robust mechanical and
electrical definitions, power efficiency and unmdented processor density. ATCA provides builtigh reliability features such as a 40 gigabit Etle¢
backplane, redundant shelf managers, fail-overkibfyaand support of live insertion of boards, pavsupplies and fans. These features are idettidor
DOD'’s network-centric warfare initiative.

All of the products of the MultiComputer Divisiorffer the user a choice in selecting the systemnso#t best suited to their application
requirements. For customers wanting a lower cdstiea, our cluster computer systems are availalile the open-source Linux operating system and
toolkit. Customer applications requiring real-tinesponse have the option of purchasing systemstiétindustry standard VxWorks real-time operating
system and Tornado Il development tools suite.

All MultiComputer cluster computer systems usetibst of open systems software technologies, sunteasage passing interface (“MP1”) software
for interprocessor communications and the highlynoged industry standard math libraries: Industgndard Signal Processing Library and Vector Signa
and Image Processing Library. These librariesifatél the development of truly portable code farskess reuse across applications, while takingradye
of optimized performance on the PowerPC with AltVe




Markets, Marketing and Dependence on Certain Custorars
Aerospace & Defense Market

We market our MultiComputer systems to the aerospac defense markets with emphasis on applicaténsring the analysis of complex signals
such as sonar and radar. We distribute our produttese markets as an original equipment manufac{“OEM”) supplier to system integrators,
distributors and value-added resellers. In thestets, the supplier/customer relationship is viewed long-term strategic partnership.

MultiComputer systems are sold primarily to prinmatractors (serving as systems integrators) witiendefense industry and are used in sonar,
radar, C*ISR systems, simulators and signal and image asatgsnputers. Customers in this market segment haigie requirements. A prime contractor
will typically incorporate our products into tha@wn future product developments and, thereford,neiéd early access to low-level, detailed technica
specifications, prototype units, form, fit and ftioo compatibility with previous products, longrieproduct availability and support. As a suppliethis
market, we recognize that there may be a signifigprront investment of time and resources inding a business partnership. However, the resuhisf
partnership is a strong potential for long-termerave streams as products progress from develoghases into deployment.

Our cluster computing technologies that supportwoek centric warfare” and information exchangeeal-time are becoming increasingly
significant to twenty-first century military opeiaits. There has been steady growth of new programsring signal/image processing and analysis
equipment as well as upgrades to existing milipmograms. However, the efficiency inherent in thestnologies reduces the number of systems rebtare
achieve the same results. Both new and upgradepigons require a substantial investment in developrawed evaluation before products deploy into field
use. The time from development to deployment vdrvéesed on the program; however, it very often edgdreyond twenty-four months. Looking forward to
fiscal 2011 and beyond, our focus is to build iestin our 3000 SERIES and 4000 SERIES multiconmpuisong our customers.

Competition

The Systems segment’s markets are very competi@ivstomer requirements coupled with advances imt@ogy drive our efforts to continuously
improve existing products and develop new onestifgawith Intel i860 microprocessors used in thgp&Cards of the 1980s to the Motorola PowerPCs
AltiVec processors incorporated in the early Fags@r 2000 SERIES and later the addition of Linpgrosource software, we have responded with product
offerings that are vital to remaining competitiBoduct development efforts in fiscal year 200%lagd completing and launching new enhancementsito
3000 SERIES product line, with a focus on contiguim provide our defense customers with increasedgssing capabilities based on the latest industry
standard technologies: VXS (VITA 41), multi-corepessors, FPGAs and Myricom’s Myri-10G high speeedrconnect with 10 Gigabit Ethernet support.

Applications expertise, product innovation, stré@chnical support and dedicated customer serviow als to compete favorably as a provider of
high-performance cluster computer systems.

Our direct competitors in the aerospace and deferasket are Mercury Computer Inc., AP Labs, Cuitisght and G. E. Intelligent Platforms. Our
indirect competitors are the board manufactureasgpecialize in the DSP segment of this markethénpast, manufacturers such as Emerson, HP, lBM a
Dell participated in the low performance segmerthefgeneral-purpose computer and single board atmnmarket. Today, those companies manufacture
general-purpose computer systems incorporating-taié processors and have the potential to bedomedable competitors in compute intensive
applications, such as radar and sonar. While cadymts are designed to offer the best overall vidwembined performance, features and price, we mo&
overcome the capabilities of larger companies tiregb the needs of the cost sensitive customergvgiiee, as opposed to system performance, site an
specialized packaging, is the primary factor inlbging decision.

New companies enter the field periodically anddargpmpanies with greater technical resources afleting organizations could decide to
compete in the future. The future growth of thigkeddepends upon continued growth in strategitnpaships and providing high density and scalahitita
compact, low power and cost effective packagedhateasily be integrated into OEM designs for lggtformance computation. Since the majority ofsale
are to prime contractors, the principal barriegaining market share is the reluctance of estadistsers to redesign their product once it is adpction. A
key area of opportunity exists in design wins ow peograms.

Manufacturing, Assembly and Testing

All MultiComputer systems are shipped to our custrdirectly from our plant in Billerica, Massachtis. Our manufacturing activities consist
mainly of final assembly and testing of printectait boards and systems that are designed by utahridated by outside vendors.




Upon receipt of material and components by us foorside suppliers, our quality assurance techrsdiaspect these products and components.
During manufacture and assembly, both subasseniigsompleted systems are subjected to exterestiad, including burn-in and environmental stress
screening designed to minimize equipment failurdedivery and over its useful service life. We alse diagnostic programs to detect and isolatenfiate
component failures. A comprehensive log is mairdiaf all past failures to monitor quality proceeland improve design standards.

We provide a warranty covering defects arising fimoducts sold and service performed, which vdrm®s 90 days to one year, depending upor
particular unit.

Customer Support

Our MultiComputer Division supports our customeithwelephone assistance, on-site service, sysistaliation, training and education. We
provide product support service during the warrgrgsiod. Customers may purchase extended softvmardardware maintenance and on-site service
contracts for support beyond the warranty period.

We offer training courses at our corporate headgtsor the customer site. Field and customer cestipport is provided by employees located at
our headquarters in Billerica, Massachusetts fate8ys segment customers.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Several components used in our Systems segmenigisogie obtained from sole-source suppliers. Welapendent on key vendors like Myricom,
Inc. for our high-speed interconnect componentsestale Semiconductor, Inc. for our PowerPC processd Wind River Systems, Inc. for VxWorks
operating system software. Despite our dependemtlesse sole-source suppliers, we do not condigerigk of interruption of supply to be significaat
meet our projected revenue requirements for theteea. Also, all components used to build our r800 SERIES and 4000 SERIES systems are currently
available in a timely manner.

Research and Development

For the year ended September 30, 2010, our expé@rsesearch and development were approximately $@lion compared to approximately $:
million for fiscal year 2009. Expenditures for raseh and development are expensed as they areedc@ur Systems segment expects to continue #® hav
substantial expenditures related to the developwfeméw hardware products and the software thatlesahe hardware to function. Our Systems products
and development currently in process are intendectend the usefulness and marketability of exgstiroducts and introduce new products into exdstin
market segments, including the 3000 SERIES and SHRIES product lines.

We do not have any patents that are material tdosiness.
Backlog

The backlog of customer orders and contracts irfSjretems segment was approximately $2.0 millidBegttember 30, 2010 as compared to $4.1
million at September 30, 2009. Our backlog cantflate greatly. These fluctuations can be due tditfieag of receiving large orders representing grim
contractor purchases. It is expected that all efdisstomer orders in backlog will ship within thexntwelve months.

Service and System Integration Segment
Products and Services
Integration Solutions

Over the past several years, the business of guicBend System Integration segment has evolvexy dwm selling our proprietary process con
and data acquisition (“PCDA") computer systems) inécoming a systems integrator and VAR of integtablutions including third-party hardware,
software and technical computer-related consuknyices and managed services via a state of ttNCaE. Our value proposition is our ability to igtate
diverse third-party components together into a detepsolution and install the system at the custasite and to offer high value IT consulting seesi¢o
deliver solutions.

Third-Party Hardware and Software

Modcomp sells third-party hardware and softwarelpats in the information technology market, withtategic focus on industry standard servers
and data center infrastructure solutions, midradaje storage infrastructure products, network pregjwnified communications and IT security hardanc
software solutions. Our key offerings include pradufrom HP, Cisco Systems, Sun Microsystems, IBivhiper Networks, Hitachi, QLogic, Dell, Enterasys,
Citrix, APC, EMC, Intel, VMWare, Fortinet, nCirlc&licrosoft and Checkpoint. Through our supplieatiginships with these vendors, we are able to offer
competitively priced best-of-breed products to neetcustomers’ diverse technology needs, provigmgurement and engineering expertise in server
infrastructure, storage, security, unified commatians and networking, to the small-to-medium sizesinesses (“SMBs”) and large enterprise busiisesse
(“LEBs") with complex IT environments. We offer oaustomers a single point of contact for complexdtinvendor technology purchases. Many of our SMB
customers have unique technology needs and maydabhkical purchasing expertise or have very lichlie engineering resources on staff. We also pmvid
installation, integration, logistical assistance ather value-added services that customers mayree@ur current customers are in web and infoastire



hosting, education, telecommunications, healthisesy distribution, financial services, professig®vices, manufacturing and entertainment
industries. We target SMB and LEB customers acatisadustries.




Professional Services
We provide professional IT consulting serviceshia tollowing areas:

» Maintenance and technical support both fodtparty products and proprietary Modcomp legaBGDR systems—hardware and software,
operating system and user support.

« Implementation, integration, configuratiordanstallation services.

» Storage area network (“SAN”") solutions — W&dphour customers implement SAN solutions usinglpots from Hitachi, EMC, HP, DataDomain
and NetApp. SANs allow system administrators #ize the benefits of SANs over conventional steragchitecture. These benefits include cost
savings from better utilization of hardware anddoweadcount requirements to run and maintainstatage systems, higher availability and fe
data access rates resulting in increased prodiyctivi

. Virtualization — We implement virtualizati@olutions using products from companies such as \Aw/Wirtualization allows one computer to do
the job of multiple computers by sharing resoulafes single computer across multiple environmeitsth virtual servers and desktops, users
host multiple operating systems and applicatiortscvcan eliminate physical and geographical litiotes. Other benefits include energy cost
savings, lower capital expenditure requirementgh lavailability of resources, better desktop mansag#, increased security and improved
disaster recovery processes.

Enterprise security intrusion preventionwak access control and unified threat managemersingthird-party products from companies like
Checkpoint, Juniper Networks and Cisco Systemsservices are designed to ensure data securitintagtity through the establishment of virt
private networks, firewalls and other technologies.

IT security compliance services—We provide/ges for IT security compliance with personalvpgy laws such as HIPAA and corporate
governance laws such as Sarbanes-Oxley.

Unified communications, wireless and routargl switching solutions using Cisco Systems’ préslaad services.

Custom software applications and solutiongetigpment and support—We develop custom applicatiortustomer specifications using industry
standard platforms such as Microsoft.Net, Sharé@oid OnBase. We are a Microsoft Gold Partner.

NOC managed IT services that include monitoringpréng and management of alerts for the resoludioth preventive general IT and IT secu
support tasks.

Markets, Marketing and Dependence on Certain Custorars

We are an IT systems integrator and computer haslarad software VAR. We also provide technical mewto achieve a value-add to our
customers. We operate within the VAR sales charsfaisajor computer hardware and software OEMs, griljnwithin the geographic areas of our sales
offices and across the U.S. We provide innovafivedlutions, including a myriad of infrastructunegucts with customized integration consulting 8ss
and managed services to meet the unique requireroéotir customers. We market the products weasellservices we provide through various salesexfic
in the U.S., Germany and the U.K. through our disades force (for a detailed list of our locatiosse Item 2 of this Form 10-K).

Competition

The primary competition in the Service and Systatadration segment are other VARSs, ranging fromlisompanies that number in the thousands,
to large enterprises such as CDW, PC Connectisighty MoreDirect, Dimension Data, Bechtle AG amshiputacenter. In addition, we compete directly
with many of the companies who manufacture theltharty products that we sell including IBM, HP EMAditachi and others. In the network management,
security and storage systems integration servigsmbss, our competitors are extensive and vaaycrtain degree in each of the geographical market
they include such competitors as HP/EDS, IBM and Gamini.




Nearly all of our product offerings are availabheaugh other channels. Favorable competitive fadimrthe Service and System Integration segi
include procurement capability, product diversitgpwing for delivery of complete and custom soluisato our customers, strength of key partner
relationships with the major IT OEMs, ability topply unique and/or specialized needs of the SMBLaEB markets, strong knowledge of the IT products
that we sell, ability to provide managed servidesugh our NOC and the consulting integration swirequired to design and install the custom iswisit
that fit our customers’ IT needs. Unfavorable cotitive factors include low name recognition, lindtgeographic coverage and pricing.

Backlog

The backlog of customer orders and contracts ®iS#rvice and System Integration segment was ajppatedy $6.3 million at September 30, 2010,
as compared to $4.8 million at September 30, 2009.backlog can fluctuate greatly. These fluctustioan be due to the timing of receiving large crder
third- party products and/or IT services. It is exfed that all of the customer orders in backldgshkip and/or be provided within the next twelvemths.

Significant Customers

See Note 13 for detailed information regarding aungrs which comprised 10% or more of consolidage@mues for the years ended September 30,
2010 and 2009.

Employees

On September 30, 2010, we had approximately 13%tut equivalent employees worldwide for our cditaded operations. None of our employ
are represented by a labor union and we had no stogpages. We consider relations with our empleyede good.

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Information regarding our sales by geographic arehpercentage of sales based on the locationithwie products are shipped or services are
rendered are in Note 13 of our consolidated firalratatements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Factors that may Affect Future Performance

This document contains forward-looking statementsel on current expectations that involve a nurobesks and uncertainties. Further, any
forward-looking statement speaks only as of the datwhich such statement is made and we undentakéligation to update any forwaldeking statemel
to reflect events or circumstances after the datevftich such statement is made. As it is not péss@predict every new factor that may emergeyéod-
looking statements should not be relied upon adigtion of actual future financial condition @sults. In response to competitive pressures orpgreduct
introductions, we may take certain pricing or mérigeactions that could adversely affect our opegatesults. In addition, changes in the produnts a
services mix may cause fluctuations in our grosggimaDue to the potential quarterly fluctuationsoiperating results, we believe that quarter-tortgna
comparisons of our results of operations are no¢ssarily an indicator of future performance.

Markets for our products and services are chariaetktby rapidly changing technology, new produtitiductions and short product life cycles.
These changes can adversely affect our businesspandting results. Our success will depend uperability to enhance our existing products and ises/
and to develop and introduce, on a timely and effsttive basis, new products that keep pace withriological developments and address increasing
customer requirements. The inability to meet trilEsmands could adversely affect our business anchtipg results.

We Depend on a Small Number of Customers for dftsmmt Portion of our Revenue and Loss of any G@uetr Could Significantly Affect the Business

We are dependent on a small number of customegslfoge portion of our revenues. Both the SystentsService and System Integration segm
are reliant upon a small number of significant oostrs, the loss of any one of which could have ternizd adverse effect on our business. A significan
diminution in the sales to or loss of any of oujonaustomers would have a material adverse effeciur business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, our revenues are largefyethdent upon the ability of our customers to lwrginued growth or need for services or to develogp
sell products that incorporate our products. Nai@sge can be given that our customers will noedgepce financial or other difficulties that coadversely
affect their operations and, in turn, our resufteferations.




Our largest customer for fiscal year 2010 acquicee of our largest competitors and this customeo @&lxpects a downturn in business from one of
its own customers that was creating significant dedfor our products. These events could reaudt significant reduction in our sales volume fiscél
2011 and beyond.

Our largest customer for fiscal 2010 is a largegihgscompany that provides outsourcing of compirtiastructure, storage and communications
resources. Our sales to this customer were $22li&mior fiscal 2010, which comprised 24% of ootal revenues. Two events occurred late in ogafis
year 2010 that may have a significant impact onsalgs volume for fiscal 2011 and beyond.

First, our customer expects a downturn in busifress one of its own customers that was creatingi@ant demand for our products. This will
likely have an unfavorable impact on our sales beeaur customer may no longer need to purchasgthe volume of products from us in fiscal year1201
as they did in fiscal year 2010.

Secondly, this customer has acquired a major catopef ours that supplies some of the same IT pétimg equipment that we were supplying to
them during fiscal 2010. We believe that in thieife, it is likely that this customer will procuseme or most of these products from our competatibrer
than purchase them from us.

We Depend on Defense Business for a SignificanuAnod our Revenue and the Loss or Decline of Egjsir Future Defense Business Could
Adversely Affect our Financial Results

Sales of our products and services to the defeaskanaccounted for approximately 9% and 9% ofamunsolidated revenues and 99% and 99% of
the Systems segment sales for the fiscal yeargdeBelgtember 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Riedisdn government spending on programs that
incorporate our products could have a material esgveffect on our business, financial condition eeslilts of operations. Moreover, our subcontramts
subject to special risks, such as:

« delays in funding;

« ability of the government agency to unilaligreerminate the prime contract;

« reduction or modification in the event of ngas in government policies or as the result ofjetatty constraints or political changes;

 increased or unexpected costs under fixememdntracts; and

« other factors that are not under our control.

In addition, consolidation among defense industmtiactors has resulted in fewer contractors withdéased bargaining power relative to our
bargaining power. No assurance can be given tleditisgreased bargaining power will not adversefgcifour business, financial condition or resufts o
operations in the future.

Changes in government administration, as well anges in the geo-political environment such astheent “War on Terrorism,” can have
significant impact on defense spending prioritied the efficient handling of routine contractualttees. Such changes could have a negative impagtion
business, financial condition, or results of ogerst in the future.

We Face Competition That Could Adversely AffectSales and Profitability

The markets for our products are highly competitind are characterized by rapidly changing teclgylfsequent product performance
improvements and evolving industry standards. Duée rapidly changing nature of technology, newpsetitors may emerge of which we have no current
awareness. Competitors may be able to offer maractivve pricing or develop products that coulceofferformance features that are superior to cadymts
resulting in reduced demand for our products. Suichpetitors could have a negative impact on ouitylbd win future business opportunities. Thera ¢
no assurance that a new competitor will not atteimpienetrate the various markets for our prodactsservices. Their entry into markets historictdigete:
by us may have a material adverse effect on ounbess, financial condition and results of operation

Slowdown in the Economy Can Affect our RevenudParifitability

The uncertainty regarding the growth rate of theldwide economies has caused companies to redpialdavestment and this may cause further
reduction of demand for our products and servithsse reductions have been particularly severeeirelectronics and technology industries.




Our Operating Results May Fluctuate Significantly

Our operating results have fluctuated widely omarterly and annual basis during the last severatsyand we expect to experience significant
fluctuations in future operating results. Many €ast some of which are beyond our control, haverimrted to these fluctuations in the past and may
continue to do so. Such factors include:

« sales in relatively large dollar amounts telatively small number of customers;

» competitive pricing programs and volume disus;

* loss of customers;

< market acceptance of our products;

» product obsolescence;

» general economic conditions;

« change in the mix of products sold;

 obtaining or failure to obtain design winsg $ignificant customer systems;

 timing of significant orders;

 delays in completion of internal product depenent projects;

« delays in shipping our products;

« delays in acceptance testing by customers;

» production delays due to quality programswaititsourced components;

» shortages of components;

« timing of product line transitions;

 declines of revenues from previous generatafrproducts following announcement of replacenpeatiucts containing more advance technology;
and

« fixed nature of our expenditures on persorfiagilities and marketing programs.

We believe that period-to-period comparisons ofresults of operations will not necessarily be niegfial and should not be relied upon as
indicative of our future performance. It is als@pible that in some periods, our operating resnétg be below the expectations of securities armbyst
investors. In such circumstances, the price ofcounmon stock may decline.

We Rely on Single Sources for Supply of Certainfoments and our Business may be Seriously Harmad Bupply of any of These Components or
Other Components is Disrupted

Several components used in our Systems productuenently obtained from sole-source suppliers.akedependent on key vendors like Myricom,
Inc. as well as Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. €geale”) for many of our PowerPC line of processGenerally, suppliers may terminate their purchase
order with us without cause upon 30-days noticeraay cease offering products to us upon 180-datisendf Myricom or Freescale were to limit or redu
the sale of such components to us, or if thesetmr@omponent suppliers to us, some of which mx@lsompanies, were to experience financial diffies
or other problems which could prevent them frompdyipg us with the necessary components, such sxentld have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat These sole source and other suppliers atesedoject to quality and performance issues, naseri
shortages, excess demand, reduction in capacitgtéied factors that may disrupt the flow of goaalsi$ or our customers, which thereby may adversely
affect our business and customer relationships.

We have no guaranteed supply arrangements witBuppliers and there can be no assurance that ppliets will continue to meet our
requirements. If our supply arrangements are inpéed, there can be no assurance that we woullllbdéafind another supplier on a timely or satsbay
basis. Any shortage or interruption in the supglgmy of the components used in our products, @irhbility to procure these components from aldten
sources on acceptable terms, could have a mageiiarse effect on our business, financial condiod results of operations. There can be no asseithat
severe shortages of components will not occureérfiiture. Such shortages could increase the caltlay the shipment of our products, which couldeha
material adverse effect on our business, finamaatlition and results of operations. Significar@ases in the prices of these components woudd als
materially adversely affect our financial perforroarsince we may not be able to adjust productngito reflect the increase in component costs. Wdc



incur set-up costs and delays in manufacturing Ishibbecome necessary to replace any key vendarsawork stoppages, shipping delays,
financial difficulties or other factors and, unaertain circumstances, these costs and delays baukla material adverse effect on our businasandial
condition and results of operations.
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We Depend on Key Personnel and Skilled Employeg&are Competition in Hiring and Retaining QualifiEmployees

We are largely dependent upon the skills and effoiiour senior management, managerial, saleseahdital employees. None of our senior
management personnel except Alex Lupinetti, oueCBkecutive Officer, and Victor Dellovo, Vice Pidsnt and General Manager of the
Modcomp Division or other key employees are subjeetny employment contracts. The loss of serviéesy of our executives or other key personnela
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of operations. Ouarfeitsuccess will depend to a significant extenbwnability
to attract, train, motivate and retain highly sdlitechnical professionals. Our ability to maint@i renew existing engagements and obtain newdssi
depends, in large part, on our ability to hire estdin technical personnel with the skills thatgkpace with continuing changes in industry stansiardi
technologies. The inability to hire additional gtiatl personnel could impair our ability to satisfyr growing client base, requiring an increasthlevel of
responsibility for both existing and new personiiélere can be no assurance that we will be suedésgktaining current or future employees.

Our International Operations are Subject to a NumbeRisks

We market and sell our products in certain intéomat markets and we have established operatiotieit).K. and Germany. Foreign-based revenue
is determined based on the location to which tlelpet is shipped or services are rendered andsepted 30% and 36% of our total revenue for trealffis
years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectfwvevenues generated by foreign activitiesmoeadequate to offset the expense of establisdridg
maintaining these foreign subsidiaries and ac#igjtour business, financial condition and resultsperations could be materially adversely affectad
addition, there are certain risks inherent in te&ting business internationally, such as changapjiticable laws and regulatory requirements, ebquaad
import restrictions, export controls relating tattaology, tariffs and other trade barriers, longgyment cycles, problems in collecting accounteitable,
political instability, fluctuations in currency dxange rates, expatriation controls and potentiabess tax consequences, any of which could adyeirsplact
the success of our international activities. A joorof our revenues are from sales to foreign iestiincluding foreign governments, which are pritggaid
in the form of foreign currencies. There can bessurance that one or more of such factors wilhage a material adverse effect on our future iagonal
activities and, consequently, on our businessnfire condition or results of operations.

Our business could be adversely impacted if we Hafieiencies in our disclosure controls and praaess$ or internal controls over financial reportir

Effective internal control over financial reportiagd disclosure controls and procedures are negassarder for us to provide reliable financialdan
other reports and effectively prevent fraud. Thgpes of controls are designed to provide reasenaddurance regarding the reliability of finanogglorting
and the proper preparation of our financial states)eas well as regarding the timely reporting atenial information. If we cannot maintain effeetiv
internal control or disclosure controls and proceduor provide reliable financial or Securitiesl &xchange Commission (“SEC”) reports or prevesad,
investors may lose confidence in our reported fiferinformation, our common stock could be subjeatelisting on the stock exchange where it idath
our operating results and the trading price ofammmon stock could suffer and we might become stibxjdlitigation.

While our management will continue to review thieefiveness of our internal control over finanegpborting and disclosure controls and
procedures, there is no assurance that our digelesmtrols and procedures or our internal coravelr financial reporting will be effective in accplishing
all control objectives, including the preventiordadetection of fraud, all of the time.

To be Successful, We Must Respond to the Rapicg€sam Technology

Our future success will depend in part on our ghith enhance our current products and to devedepproducts on a timely and cost-effective basis
in order to respond to technological developmentsahanging customer needs. The defense markgdrficular, demands constant technological
improvements as a means of gaining military adgtMilitary planners historically have funded sfgrantly more design projects than actual deplogtae
of new equipment and those systems that are depleyel to contain the components of the subcomtraselected to participate in the design prodass.
order to participate in the design of new deferieetmnics systems, we must be able to demongitatability to deliver superior technological perfance
on a timely and cost-effective basis. There candassurance that we will be able to secure anuadequmber of defense electronics design winlsdn t
future, that the equipment in which our productsiatended to function eventually will be deployedhe field, or that our products will be includedsuch
equipment if it is eventually deployed.
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The design-in process is typically lengthy and @spee and there can be no assurance that we walbleeto continue to meet the product
specifications of our customers in a timely andgadée manner. In addition, if we fail to anticipateto respond adequately to changes in technaiogy
customer preferences, or if there is any significkatay in product developments or introductiohs tould have a material adverse effect on ouinless,
financial condition and results of operations, ithg the risk of inventory obsolescence. Becatiskeocomplexity of our products, we have experéhc
delays from time to time in completing productseotimely basis. If we are unable to design, developtroduce competitive new products on a tinedgis,
our future operating results would be adverselgaéd, particularly in our Systems segment. Tharebe no assurance that we will be successful in
developing new products or enhancing our existirglpcts on a timely or cost-effective basis, ot theech new products or product enhancements will
achieve market acceptance.

We Need to Continue to Expend Resources on Resmaddbevelopment Efforts to Meet the Needs of astdners

The industry in which our Systems segment compstelsaracterized by the need for continued investrimeresearch and development. If we fail to
invest sufficiently in research and development,moducts could become less attractive to poteatistomers and our business and financial condiaulc
be materially adversely affected. As a result ofreeed to maintain or increase our spending leémeisis area and the difficulty in reducing costsaciated
with research and development, our operating resolild be materially harmed if our revenues falbtv expectations. In addition, as a result of CSPI
commitment to invest in research and developm@ending as a percent of revenues may fluctuateeifiuture.

We May be Unable to Successfully Integrate Acdpisit

In order to achieve strategic objectives to mamégaid grow our market position, we may have a needquire or make investments in
complementary companies, products or technologieguisitions may pose risks to our operations,udiig:

» problems and increased costs in connectidim tive integration of the personnel, operationshnelogies or products of the acquired companies;
» unanticipated costs;

« diversion of management'’s attention from carre business;

» adverse effects on business relationshigs suippliers and customers and those of the acqodnegany;

» acquired assets becoming impaired as a refstdthnical advancements or worse-than-expeaenmance by the acquired company;
» entering markets in which we have no, ortéadj prior experience; and

» potential loss of key employees, particulahigse of the acquired organization.

In addition, in connection with any acquisitionsimrestments we could:

* issue stock that would dilute existing shatdars’ percentage of ownership;

* incur debt and assume liabilities;

« obtain financing on unfavorable terms;

 incur amortization expenses related to aegliintangible assets or incur large and immediaite\offs;

* incur large expenditures related to officescires of the acquired companies, including cesésing to termination of employees and leasehold
improvement charges relating to vacating the aegutompanies’ premises; and

« reduce the cash that would otherwise be abklto fund operations or to use for other purpose

The failure to successfully integrate any acquisitor for acquisitions to yield expected resultyy magatively impact our financial condition and
operating results. Any resulting impairment of gadbwould have a negative effect on results of igpiens.

Our Stock Price May Continue to be Volatile

Historically, the market for technology stocks bagn extremely volatile. Our common stock has égpeed and may continue to experience,
substantial price volatility. The following factocsuld cause the market price of our common stodkittuate significantly:

* loss of a major customer;

* loss of a major supplier;
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« the addition or departure of key personnel;
 Vvariations in our quarterly operating results
* announcements by us or our competitors afiidgnt contracts, new products or product enharesds;

 acquisitions, distribution partnerships, joientures or capital commitments;

« regulatory changes;

 sales of our common stock or other securitighe future;

» changes in market valuations of technologyganies; and

« fluctuations in stock market prices and voasm

In addition, the stock market in general and theSRAQ Global Market and technology companies inipaldr, have experienced extreme price
volume fluctuations that have often been unrelatedisproportionate to the operating performanceuch companies. These broad market and industry

factors may materially adversely affect the magkéte of our common stock, regardless of our aaipakating performance. In the past, following pasi of
volatility in the market price of a company’s sdtias, securities class action litigation has ofteen instituted against such companies.
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Item 2. Properties

Listed below are our principal facilities as of 8spber 30, 2010. Management considers all faailiisted below to be suitable for the purpose(e

which they are used, including manufacturing, redeand development, sales, marketing, serviceadnunistration.

Owned or  Approximate
Location Principal Use Leased Floor Area
Systems Segment Properties:
CSP Inc. Corporate Headquarters Leased 21,500 S.F.
43 Manning Road Manufacturing, Sales,
Billerica, MA Marketing and
Administration
Service and Systems Integration Segment Properties:
Modcomp, Inc. Division Headquarters Leased 15,482 S.F.
1500 S. Powerline Road Sales, Marketing and
Deerfield Beach, FL Administration
Modcomp, Inc. Sales, Marketing and Service Leased 1,356 S.F.
9155 South Dadeland Blvd, Suite 1112
Miami, FL
Modular Computer Systems GmbH Sales, Marketing, Service Leased 12,443 S.F.
Oskar-Jager-Strasse 50 and Administration
D-50825 Koln
Germany
Modcomp, Ltd. Sales, Marketing and Leased 2,490 S.F.
12a Oaklands Business Park, Fishponds Road Administration
Wokingham Berkshire
United Kingdom
Modcomp Systemhaus GmbH Sales, Marketing and Service Leased 2,819 S.F.

Gartenstr. 23-27
D-61352 Bad Homburg
Germany

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are currently not a party to any material lggaceedings.

Item 4. [Reserved]




PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters ars$lier Purchases of Equity Securities

Market information  Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq GMbaket under the symbol CSPI. The following taptevides the high and
low sales prices of our common stock as reportetheMasdaq Global Market for the periods indicated

2010 2009
Fiscal Year: High Low High Low
1st Quarter $ 406 $ 33C % 5271 $ 151
2nd Quarter 3.9¢ 3.2C 3.9C 2.5C
3rd Quarter 4.7C 3.32 3.74 2.5t
4th Quarter 4.6t 3.8t 4.2t 3.3¢

Stockholders We had approximately 87 holders of recordwf@mmon stock as of December 17, 2010. This namehbes not include
stockholders for whom shares were held in a “nosiime “street” name. We believe the number of bemafowners of our shares of common stock
(including shares held in street name) at that daapproximately 1,400.

Dividends. We have never paid any cash dividends on ommoon stock. Our present policy is to retain eaysito finance expansion and growth
and no change in the policy is anticipated.

Share Repurchase Plans. The following table provides information witespect to shares of our common stock that we rbpsed during the year
ended September 30, 2010:

Total
Number Maximum
of Shares number of
Purchased Shares that
Total Average as Part of May Yet Be
Number Price Publicly Purchased
of Shares Paid per Announced Under
Month Ended Purchased Share Plans (1) the Plans
October 31, 200 — 3 — —
November 30, 200 — — —
December 31, 200 — — —
January 31, 201 — — —
February 28, 201 50C 3.6C 50C
March 31, 201( 10,69: 3.62 10,69:
April 30, 2010 10,50( 3.5 10,50(
May 31, 201( 4,20( 4.0¢ 4,20(
June 30, 201 7,29¢ 4.27 7,29¢
July 31, 201( 4,73¢ 4.2t 4,73¢
August 31, 201! 43,78( 4.1¢ 43,78(
September 30, 201 13,78: 4.21 13,78:
Total 95,49( $ 4.08 95,49( 1445
Q) All shares were purchased under publicly amged plans. For additional information about thaslielicly announced plans please refer to Note 12 of

our financial statements.
Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

The discussion below contains certain forward-laglstatements related to statements concerningefutenues and future business plans. Actual
results may vary from those contained in such fodwaoking statements.

Overview of Fiscal 2011 Results of Operations
CSP Inc. operates in two segments:
» Systems—the Systems segment consists of alti@dmputer Division which designs, develops arehufactures signal processing computer
platforms that are used primarily in military amgaliions and the process control and data acquigitRICDA”) proprietary hardware business of

our Modcomp subsidiary.

» Service and System Integration—the ServigkSystem Integration segment includes the compytems’ maintenance and integration services
and third-party computer hardware and software yetsdbusinesses of our Modcomp subsidiary.
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Highlights include:

* Revenue increased by approximately $11.7anillor 14%, to $95 million for the year ended $epter 30, 2010 versus $83.4 million for the year
ended September 30, 2009.

» Operating income increased by approximatélyl $nillion, to operating income of approximatelly. $million for the year ended September 30,
2010 versus an operating loss of approximately 88lfbn for the year ended September 30, 2009.

» Net income was approximately $0.9 million, for gfear ended September 30, 2010 versus a net leggpodximately $3.8 million for the ye
ended September 30, 2009, an improvement of $4libmi

» A non-cash goodwill impairment charge wastaln fiscal 2009 for $3.9 million which was theaiovalue of goodwill on the Company’s balance
sheet prior to the impairment charge. This goodwipairment charge was a significant factor initieease in operating income and net income
for fiscal 2010 versus fiscal 2009. There was reggBnpairment charges in the fiscal year endedeSager 30, 2010.

« Infiscal year 2010 the Company adopted Aatiog Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-13 - “Multigbeliverable Revenue Arrangements—a
Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task FotaSU 2009-13") and ASU 2009-14 — “Certain Reveireangements that Contain
Software Elements.” (ASU 2009-14"). The impact dbpting these new standards for the year ende@&®ber 30, 2010 was an increase in
revenue of $3.5 million, an increase to net incah®284 thousand and an increase of $0.08 to bafcand fully diluted earnings per share.

* Net cash used in operating activities was approtaélp&1.9 million for the year ended SeptemberZ,0 compared to net cash providec
operating activities of $3.4 million for the yearded September 30, 2009.

The increase in revenues of $11.7 million was due targe part to increased revenues in our Serai@ System Integration segment where
revenues were up by approximately $11.3 milliorsusrthe year ended September 30, 2009. Reventiesah2010 in the Systems segment were $8.3
million compared with $8.0 million for fiscal 200@hich is an increase of approximately $0.3 milli@rsus the prior year.

Also, in fiscal 2010, we were engaged in signific@search and development efforts in the Systemsient making significant progress with on-
going development of our newest product lines Rast Cluster Series 3000 and 4000 SERIES prodwed, livhich are designed to provide what we belig
the most advanced interconnect technology avaitaioley. The 3000 and 4000 SERIES products are &gbéa provide our customers with another state-of-
the-art, fully ruggedized open source system, whithbe essential to our future growth opportugsti

We do not expect that Systems segment revenuéisdal year 2011 will show growth compared to fls2@10. However we do expect to receive
orders from existing programs for our 2000 SERIES®Ipcts and high-margin royalties. We also expececeive a significant order for our 3000 SERIES
product line in fiscal year 2011.

Revenues in the Service and System Integration eegfor fiscal 2010 were $86.7 million versus fis2@09 revenues of $75.4 million, which was
an increase of $11.3 million. The U.S. operatiointhis segment experienced strong sales growtls@alf2010 of $12.9 million, a 27% increase ovscdi
year 2009. This growth was due to in large paret@enues from a large web-site hosting companygtwaccounted for approximately $14.3 million of the
increase. Offsetting the growth in the U.S. opergtrevenues declined in the European operatioam{@ny and the U.K.) segment for fiscal year 2010
versus fiscal 2009 by approximately $1.5 million686. The decline was due primarily to the economaéession in Europe resulting in an overall decim
large orders in fiscal 2010 compared with fiscad2€rom the division’s largest customers.

Based on the current economic environment, we folananage the Service and System Integration seiggsenming relatively weak demand in
fiscal 2011. We plan to focus our attention anadueses on higher-margin business and away fromnhangin business as we move forward. While this may
put pressure on sales growth in fiscal 2011, wiebelthis strategy will accelerate profitable griovidr the long term.

In addition, there were two significant adversergseoncerning our largest customer for fiscal 2046 web-site hosting company mentioned
above. This customer provides outsourcing of compufrastructure, storage and communications messuOur sales to this customer were $22.5 million
for fiscal 2010, which comprised 24% of our tomenues, and accounted for $14.3 million of thegase in sales for fiscal 2010 versus fiscal 2009.

First, our customer expects a downturn in busifress one of its own customers that was creatingi@ant demand for our products. This will

likely have an unfavorable impact on our sales bsea@ur customer may no longer need to purchassthe volume of products from us in fiscal year1201
as they did in fiscal year 2010.
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Secondly, this customer has acquired a major catopef ours that supplies some of the same IT pétimg equipment that we were supplying to
them during fiscal 2010. We believe that in thiife, it is likely that this customer will procuseme or most of these products from our compatititrer
than purchase them from us.

The following table sets forth certain informatiwhich is based on data from our Consolidated Statésof Operations:

Percentage of sale Period to Period
Fiscal year ended Septembe Dollar increase (decrease)
2010 2009 2010 compared to 2009
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Sales 100.(% 100.% $ 11,66
Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 81.9% 82.1% 9,421

Engineering and development 2.1% 2.3% a7

Selling, general and administrative 14.8% 16.£% 127

Impairment on goodwill —% 4.7% (3,94

Total costs and expenses 98.t% 105.9% 5,59(

Operating income (loss) 1.2% (5.99% 6,071

Other income —% —% 34

Income (loss) before income taxes 1.2% (5.9% 6,10¢

Income tax expense (benefit) 0.2% 1.9% 1,40¢

Net income (loss 1.(% 45% $ 4,691

Results of Operations—2010 Compared to 2009

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, sade=ased to $95.0 million, compared to $83.4iarilfor fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.
Net income for the year ended September 30, 2050@® million, or $0.25 per diluted share compawvétl a net loss of $3.8 million, or $1.05 per tiid
share for fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Revenue
The following table details the Company’s salegbggraphical region for fiscal years Septembe28@0 and 2009:

For the Year Ended

September 30, September 30, $ Increase/ % Increase
2010 % 2009 % (Decrease) (Decrease)
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Americas $ 67,79¢ 71% $ 53,74¢ 64% $ 14,04¢ 26%
Europe 26,11¢ 28% 27,38 33% (1,269 (5)%
Asia Pacific 1,10€ 1% 2,22 3% (1,116 (50)%
Totals $ 95,01¢ 10(% $ 83,35: 10(% $ 11,66: 14%

The increase in Americas revenue for the year eSdgtember 30, 2010 versus the year ended Sept@hh2009 was primarily the result of the
increase in revenues from the U.S. operationseoB#rvice and System Integration segment whichuated for approximately $12.6 million of the incsea
Additionally, sales from the Systems segment to. duStomers increased by approximately $1.5 millpsimarily resulting from an increase in royalty
income, which is part of our service revenue. deerease in sales in Europe was primarily the re$ubwer sales from the German and United Kingdom
divisions of the Service and System Integratiomsag, where sales in Europe decreased by appradiy®i.0 million and $0.6 million, respectively.&h
decrease in sales volume in constant U.S. dokarghé fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 véhgusame year in 2009 was due to the reasons lledcri
below. Offsetting the decreases in European $alesthe German and UK divisions, sales to Eurapmfthe U.S. division of the Service and System
Integration segment increased by approximately 80l®n. The decrease in sales to Asia Pacifis we result of the decrease in sales into ourrpmg
which supplies the Japanese defense market.
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The following table details the Company’s salespgiarducts and services by operating segment fofisbal years ended September 30, 2010 and

2009:

Service and

System % of
Systems Integration Total Total

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
2010
Product 488t $ 7385 $ 78,74 83%
Services 3,42 12,85: 16,27¢ 17%
Total 8311 $ 86,707 $ 95,01¢ 100%
% of Total 9% 91% 10(%
2009
Product 6,05t $ 61,18: $ 67,237 81%
Services 1,932 14,18¢ 16,12( 19%
Total 7,981 $ 75,37  $ 83,35: 100%
% of Total 10% 90% 100%

Service and

System %
Systems Integration Total Increase

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Increase (Decrease)
Product $ (1,169 $ 12,67: $ 11,50¢ 17%
Services 1,491 (1,33€) 15¢ 1%
Total $ 324 $ 11,337 $ 11,66 14%
% Increase 4% 15% 14%

As shown above, total revenues increased by appedgly $11.7 million, or 14%, for the year endeg@t®mber 30, 2010 compared to the same
period of fiscal year 2009. Revenue in the Systeegsnent increased for the current year versusribeygar by approximately $0.3 million, while reuees
in the Service and System Integration segment aser@ by approximately $11.3 million, resultinghe bverall increase of approximately $11.7 million.

Product revenues increased by approximately $1ilism or 17% for the year ended September 3002@dmpared to the year ended Septembe
2009. This change in product revenues was madé aip increase in product revenues in the ServideSystem Integration segment of approximately $12.7
million offset by a decrease in the Systems segmeapproximately $1.2 million versus the prior yea

The increase in the Service and System Integratigment product sales of approximately $12.7 milias due primarily to increased product s
in the U.S. division of the segment of approximatl3.0 million, offset by a decrease of approxeha$0.3 million in the segment’s European division
(Germany and the UK). The increase in the U.S.at@ibutable in large part to several large har@aders which shipped to the US division’s largest
customer. Sales to this customer increased by ajppately $14.3 million, comparing the year endeg@t8mber 30, 2010 to the year ended September 30,
2009. In addition, sales to other major customeesesiased by a net total of approximately $3.5 anilli Offsetting these increases, the loss of amajo
customer, which filed for bankruptcy protectionidgrthe prior fiscal year, resulted in a decreasgroduct sales of approximately $4.8 million, when
comparing the years ended September 30, 2010 V2083 The decrease in Europe was due primarilyetak demand caused by the overall economic and
technology sector slowdown which is continuing th gownward pressure on sales volume.

The decrease in the Systems segment product revefiapproximately $1.2 million for the year endgptember 30, 2010 versus the comparable
period in fiscal 2009 was the result of a decrélagroduct sales into our existing program whicpdas the Japanese defense market.

As shown in the table above, service revenuesasectby approximately $0.2 million, or 1% for theayended September 30, 2010 compared
comparable year of fiscal 2009. Service revenubarnSystems segment increased by approximatelyrillién, while service revenue in the Service and
System Integration segment decreased by approXingite3 million.

The $1.5 million increase in Systems segment semégenue was the result of an increase in royaltgnue from Lockheed Martin which was
approximately $3.0 million for the year ended Septer 30, 2010, versus approximately $1.6 milliontfe year ended September 30, 2009, for a total
increase of approximately $1.4 million. In additi@ervice revenues to Raytheon increased by ajppatedy $0.1 million in connection with the large
product order which shipped in the second quaft@da0, which is described above.
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The decrease in the Service and System Integra¢igment service revenue was driven by lower sereieenues from the segment’'s German and
United Kingdom divisions which decreased by apprately $0.8 million, $0.5 million, respectively. e decreases in service revenue from our German
and United Kingdom divisions were attributed to timéavorable economic conditions which negativelpacted those divisions’ revenue performance.

Cost of Sales, Gross Profit and Gross Margins

The following table details our cost of sales bgiging segment for fiscal years ended Septemhe2®B® and 2009:
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2010

Cost of Sales:
Product
Services
Total
% of Total
% of Sales

Gross Profit:
Product
Services
Total
% of Total

Gross Margins:
Product
Services
Total

2009

Cost of Sales:
Product
Services

Total
% of Total
% of Sales
Gross Profit:
Product
Services
Total
% of Total
Gross Margins:
Product
Services
Total

Increase (Decrease)

Cost of Sales:
Product
Services
Total

% Increase (decrease)

% of Sales
Gross Profit:

Product

Services

Total

% Increase

Change in Gross Margin percentage:

Product
Services
Total

20

Service and
system Total
Systems integration

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2,44¢  $ 64,93 $ 67,38t
30€ 10,13¢ 10,44
2,75¢ 75,07: 77,82
4% 96% 10%
33% 86% 82%
243¢  $ 8,91¢ $ 11,35¢
3,117 2,71¢ 5,83¢
5,55¢ 11,63 17,19
32% 68% 10%
50% 12% 14%
91% 21% 36%
67% 13% 18%
313 $ 5347 $ 56,60¢
142 11,65 11,79
3,271 65,12¢ 68,40¢
5% 95% 10C%
41% 86% 82%
2921 $ 7,707 $ 10,62
1,78¢ 2,53¢ 4,32¢
4,71( 10,24 14,95
32% 68% 10C%
48% 13% 16%
93% 18% 27%
59% 14% 18%
685) $ 11,46 $ 10,77¢
162 (1,519 (1,35¢)
(522) 9,94: 9,421
(16)% 15% 14%
(8)% —% —%
482) $ 121 $ 73C
1,32¢ 182 1,51(
84¢€ 1,39t 2,24(
18% 14% 15%
2% L)% @)%
)% 3% %%
0 0 —70
8% L)% %




Total cost of sales increased by $9.4 million whemparing the year ended September 30, 2010 vérsyear ended September 30, 2009, which is
an increase of 14%. The increase in costs of saexonsistent overall with the increase in saleish also increased by 14% when comparing the year
ended September 30, 2010 with the year ended Skete3, 2009.

Cost of sales in the Systems segment decreasqupbyximately $0.5 million comparing the current yearsus the prior year despite the fact that
sales in the systems segment increased by appr@lyn®®.3 million. This is due to two reasonssEifor the year ended September 30, 2010, sukstant
all of the product sales were manufactured hardwargus 3¢ party parts that were resold for the year endede®gger 30, 2009. Manufactured products
carry lower cost of sales as a percentage of ggfiiite than do 8! party parts. Secondly, royalty sales to LockheedtiMdor the year ended September 30,
2010 exceeded royalty sales for the year endedcBatr 30, 2009 by approximately $1.4 million. Royaicome has no cost of sales.

Cost of sales in the Service and System Integraggment increased by approximately $9.9 milliohiclvis a 15% increase in cost of sales when
comparing the current year versus the prior yelis ihcrease in cost of sales was due to the isergaService and System Integration segment aales
described above, which also increased by 15%.

The overall gross margin was unchanged at 18% congpthe year ended September 30, 2010 to the panied of fiscal 2009. While the gross
margin improvement from 59% to 67% in the Systeaggrgent was driven by the higher mix of manufactymediucts and royalty revenues as described
above, the gross margin in the Service and Systéegiation segment decrease from 14% to 13% whepaong fiscal 2009 to 2010, due to lower product
gross margins as shown in the table above. Thease in gross margin in the Systems segment arglitfintly lower gross margin in the Service andt8y
Integration segment, combined to result in the allgross margin being unchanged.

Engineering and Development Expenses
The following table details engineering and develept expenses by operating segment for fiscal y@ated September 30, 2010 and 2009:
% of % of $ %

2010 Total 2009 Total Decrease Decrease
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

By Operating Segment:

Systems $ 1,95: 10% $ 1,97C 10% $ ()] (1)%
Service and System Integration — —% — —% — —%
Total $ 1,95: 100% $ 1,97(C 100% $ (17) (1)%

Engineering and development expenses remainealyriunchanged, for the year ended September 3@ 20mpared to the same period of fiscal
2009.

Selling, General and Administrative

The following table details selling, general angnadstrative (“SG&A”) expense by operating segmfantfiscal years ending September 30, 2010
and 2009:

% of % of $ Increase % Increase
2010 Total 2009 Total (Decrease) (Decrease)

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

By Operating Segment:

Systems $ 3,91¢ 28% $ 3,367 24% $ 552 16%
Service and System Integration 10,177 72% 10,60: 76% (425) (4)%
Total $ 14,09¢ 10(% $ 13,96¢ 10(% $ 127 1%

Total selling, general and administrative (“SG&Ajpenses increased by $0.1 million, or 1%, foryier ended September 30, 2010 compared to
the corresponding year of fiscal 2009. The Systeagsnent SG&A expense increased for the year eneleti®ber 30, 2010 versus the prior year by
approximately $0.6 million, due primarily to higheonus expenses of approximately $0.5 million, essalt of higher revenues and operating profits an
higher retirement plan expense of approximateliLi®dlion, due to a higher net pension benefit clttan. The Service and System Integration segment
SG&A expense decreased for the year ended Septe8@h2010 versus the prior year by approximately $illion, due primarily to lower salaries of
approximately $0.3 million due to headcount recaretiand lower facilities expenses of approxima$@yl million, due to reduction in facilities anduer
depreciation expense.
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Goodwill Impairment

The global economic downturn led to significant kegvolatility and a reduction in the Company’sfitability in the second half of fiscal
2009. These changes to market and business aorglitaused lower multiples and resulted in our towgeour projected forecast for 2010. The fairneabf
our Systems and Solutions reporting unit declineel t these deteriorating market and business tonsli which ultimately resulted in a $3.9 milliapn-
cash impairment charge to our goodwill as of Sepwm30, 2009. This impairment charge of $3.9 millieas equal to the carrying value of the Company’s
goodwill prior to the impairment charge. There weeoeasset impairment charges for the year ende®@bpr 30, 2010.

Other Income/Expenses

The following table details Other Income/(ExperfeeYiscal years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009:

% of % of $ Increase % Increase
2010 Total 2009 Total (Decrease) (Decrease)
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Interest income $ 61 871% $ 22t 839% $ (164) (73)%
Interest expense (90) (1,286% (112) 415% 22 20%
Foreign exchange loss 1) (14)% (109) 385% 102 99%
Other income (expense), net 37 52%% (36) 132% 73 203%
Total other income

(expense), net $ 7 10(% $ (27) 10(% $ 34 12€%

Total other income (expense), net, changed frorarptiet expense of $27 thousand to other net inair@ thousand, resulting in a favorable
change of approximately $34 thousand for the yé&iscal 2010 compared to the same year of fis68IR2 This change was primarily due to a decrease in
foreign exchange losses, which were greater imfi2809 due to foreign exchange transaction lossésh did not recur in fiscal 2010, and a favorable
change in other, net of $73 thousand in fiscal 2088us 2009. These favorable variances were dffsatdecrease in interest income of $164
thousand. Interest income in fiscal year 2010 eased primarily on money market funds as opposedittion rate securities (“ARS”) which were hedd f
a portion of fiscal 2009. The ARSs carried muchkiginterest rates than our money market fundsduiested our holdings in ARSs because of the
preponderance of failed auctions in the ARS market.

Income Taxes

For the year ended September 30, 2010, the Cormmeanyded an income tax provision of $0.2 milliofieeting an effective income tax rate of 20%
compared to an income tax benefit of $1.2 millionthe fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, wieitbcted an effective tax benefit rate of 24%.eTh
effective tax rate for the year ended Septembe2300, was impacted favorably by the de-recognitiba liability of approximately $334 thousand for
unrecognized tax benefit, which the company hadrdEdl pursuant to accounting principles regardimgertain tax positions. This de-recognition was th
result of the lapsing of the statute of limitatiaml the completion of an audit by the Internal@&wrie Service, which did not result in any adjustmelated
to the uncertain tax position. The lower thanustaly tax benefit rate for the fiscal year endegt&mber 30, 2009 was due primarily to a valuatitowance
established for a substantial portion of the defttax asset related to the goodwill impairmentgada

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax @ssee considered our taxable future earnings be@xpected timing of the reversal of temporary
differences. Accordingly, we have recorded a vadwmaallowance which reduces the gross deferre@s$art to an amount which we believe will more likel
than not be realized. Our inability to project fetyprofitability beyond fiscal year 2011 in the Ug®d cumulative losses incurred in recent yeatsarinitec
Kingdom represent sufficient negative evidencestmrd a valuation allowance against certain dedelar assets. We maintained a substantial valuation
allowance against our United Kingdom deferred tssets as we have experienced cumulative lossedoanat have any indication that the operation hll
profitable in the future to an extent that willadl us to utilize much of our net operating lossyarwards. To the extent that actual experiencgades from
our assumptions, our projections would be affeetedi hence our assessment of realizability of oferoed tax asset may change. Our German subsidéE
no valuation allowance recorded against theirgoeferred tax assets since they have projectédienf future income that we believe it is moreely than
not to be realized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary source of liquidity is our cash andtcaguivalents, which decreased by approximately 88llion to $15.5 million as of September 30,

2010. This compares to $18.9 million as of Sep&md0, 2009. At September 30, 2010, the Comparash equivalents of $3.5 million were held in money
market funds.

22




The significant uses of cash during the period vegréncrease in accounts receivable of approxim&#/9 million, decrease in deferred taxes of
approximately $0.4 million, purchases of propery @quipment of approximately $0.5 million, re-fhase of the Company’s common stock of
approximately $0.4 million and an unfavorable fgreexchange impact of $0.6 million. Significantszes of cash included net income of $0.9 millam,
increase in deferred revenue of approximately #iilllon, a decrease in refundable income taxegpfaximately $0.4 million, an increase in incomees
payable of approximately $0.4 million, depreciatamd amortization expense of approximately $0.%ioniland equity plan compensation of $0.2 million.

If cash generated from operations is insufficiemsatisfy working capital requirements, we may nieealccess funds through bank loans or other
means. There is no assurance that we will be abigige any such capital on terms acceptable torus,timely basis or at all. If we are unabledowse
additional financing, we may not be able to congli#velopment or enhancement of products, takensatya of future opportunities, respond to competiti
or continue to effectively operate our business.

Based on our current plans and business conditimasagement believes that the Company’s availask and cash equivalents and cash generatec

from operations and investments will be sufficienprovide for the Company’s working capital angita expenditure requirements for the foreseeable
future.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations are based upon mgatiolated financial statements, which have t
prepared in accordance with accounting principlasegally accepted in the United States. The préiparef these financial statements requires usaken
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezliata of assets, liabilities, revenues and expe@®an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to uncollectible receivablaventory valuation, goodwill and intangiblascome taxes, deferred compensation, revenue reemgni
retirement plans, restructuring costs and contioigsn We base our estimates on historical perfoceand on various other assumptions that are leelitey
be reasonable under the circumstances, the redultsich form the basis for making judgments alibetcarrying values of assets and liabilities Hratnot
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resulty differ from these estimates under differestiagptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting poésiaffect our more significant judgments and edtsased in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements: revenue recognition; valuetibowances, specifically the allowance for doub#fccounts and net deferred tax asset valuation
allowance; inventory valuation; goodwill and intérigs; and pension and retirement plans.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes product revenue from custatehe time of transfer of title and risk ofdaghich is generally at the time of shipment,
provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangemestss, the price is fixed or determinable andecthbility of sales proceeds is reasonably assed
include freight billed to our customers as salat the related freight costs as cost of sales. Tdrapgany reduces revenue for estimated customengetur

The Company recognizes revenue from software leenden persuasive evidence of an arrangemens edddivery of the product has occurred
the fee is fixed or determinable and collectabiktprobable. When delivery of services accompanfyvare sales, and vendor specific objective ewigen
does not exist, and the only undelivered elemesgiigices that do not involve significant modifioat or customization, of software, then the erfieeis
recognized as the services are performed. If itenpeof performance is discernable, the fee isgaized straight line over the service period.

The Company also offers training, maintenance ageeés and support services. The Company has estadlifair value on its training, maintena
and support services based on prices charged anagepsales to customers at prices establishegudbiidhed in its standard price lists. These praresnot
discounted. Revenue from these service obligatioiter maintenance contracts is deferred and repegmin a straight-line basis over the contractagbg,
which is typically three to twelve months, if ather revenue recognition criteria have been matp8t services provided on a time and materialsass
recognized as provided if all of the revenue re@@ncriteria have been met for that element dedgupport services have been provided. Trainingmee
is recognized when performed.

In certain multiple-element revenue arrangemehesQompany is obligated to deliver to its custonmeudtiple products and/or services (“multiple
elements”). In these transactions, the Companyaiés the total revenue to be earned under thegameent among the various elements based on the
Companys best estimate of the standalone selling price.allocation is based on vendor specific objeativience, third party evidence or estimated se
price when that element is sold separately. The 2oy recognizes revenue related to the deliveredyats or services only if the above revenue reitiogr
criteria are met and the delivered element haslatane value.

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&@wdard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdafesU”) 2009-13 - “Multiple-
Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a Consensus ¢fAls8 Emerging Issues Task Force” (“ASU 2009-13f)d ASU 2009-14 — “Certain Revenue
Arrangements that Contain Software Elements.” (‘AB109-14"). ASU 2009-13 amends existing revengegaition accounting principles regarding
multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. The@usiss provides accounting principles and applinagisgdance on whether multiple deliverables exist,
how the arrangement should be separated, and teowottsideration should be allocated. This guidaficgnates the requirement to establish verifiable,
objective evidence of the fair value of undelivepedducts and services and also eliminates thduaksmethod of allocating arrangement considerafibe
new guidance provides for separate revenue redogriised upon management’s estimate of the sqdliog for an undelivered item when there is nepth
means to determine the fair value of that undedistétrem. Under the previous guidance, if the falue of all of the elements in the arrangement s
determinable, then revenue was deferred untilfah®@items were delivered or fair value was detee. This pronouncement is effective prospectifety
revenue arrangements entered into or materiallyifireddn fiscal years beginning on or after June 2%10, with early adoption permitted.

ASU 2009-14 removes the sale of tangible produmt$aining software components and non-software ocomapts that function together to deliver
the tangible product’s essential functionality frtime scope of software revenue recognition guidance
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Adoption of the new revenue recognition guidance lreed an impact on the pattern and timing of reggraognition. In some cases, revenue that
would have been deferred pursuant to the previcaisbting multipleelement revenue recognition guidance, has beegmém pursuant to the newly isst
guidance. This is because in some cases we asbleoto determine VSOE or thighrty evidence of the service element in our ararents. Under the ne
guidance, because the requirement to determingdhie of undelivered elements has been eliminated we may use estimated selling price to allocate
revenue to elements in an arrangement, we are ro likely to be able to separate arrangementssigparate units of accounting, and thereby receghiz
delivered elements (typically product revenue) withhaving delivered the other elements in thengeenents (typically services). The impact of adihgp
this new accounting guidance on revenue for yede@iSeptember 30, 2010 was that $3.5 million intexfcl revenue was recognized under the newly
adopted guidance that wouldn’t have been recogriiagdve not adopted the new standards. The impactopting this new accounting guidance on net
income and EPS was an increase to net income df th2@isand for the year ended September 30, 2&i@ an increase of $0.08, to both basic and fully
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 8tyae30, 2010.

The Company has adopted these standards as oféddtop009.
Description of multiple-deliverable arrangementslé®oftware Elements

In many cases, our multiple-deliverable arrangemiolve initial shipment of hardware (includirangible products that include software and non-
software elements), software products and subségeéwery of services which add value to the priduhat have been shipped. In some instancescesr
are performed prior to product shipment, but mgpéctlly services are performed subsequent to shiprof the hardware products. The timing of the
delivery and performance of deliverables may vagecby-case. We evaluate whether we can detexmairdor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or
third-party evidence to allocate revenue among/éh®us elements in an arrangement. When VSOEi@l-piarty evidence cannot be determined, we use
estimated selling prices to allocate revenue toreirmus elements. Estimated selling prices aterdened using the targeted gross margin for ebmhent
and calculating the gross revenue for each elethahtvould have been required to achieve the tadggtoss margin, and allocating revenue to eachegie
based on those relative values.

Typically, product revenue, which may consist aftdveare (including tangible products that includéware and non-software elements) and/or
software elements, are recognized upon shipmemthen risk of loss passes to the customer. Serélmments are typically recognized upon completon
fixed-price service arrangements, and as servieepexformed for time and materials service arremgggs. For software elements that include sentleats
do not involve significant production, modification customization, and VSOE does not exist, theefae allocable to that element is recognizethas
services are performed. If no pattern of perforneanaliscernable, the fee is recognized straigbtdiver the service period. The period over wkitvices
are delivered typically ranges from approximatekgysto ninety days, or longer in some cases.

For tangible products containing software compoment non-software components, we determine wh#tbee elements function together to
deliver the tangible product essential functiopalilf the software and non-software componentheftangible product function together to deliver t
tangible product’s essential functionality, softezaevenue recognition guidance is not appliedrdilier other appropriate revenue recognition guidars
described above.

The following policies are applicable to the Comgamajor categories of segment revenue transagtion
Systems Segment Revenue

Revenue in the Systems Segment consists of praddcservice revenue. Generally, product reventecizgnized when product is shipped, prov
that all revenue recognition criteria are met. ervevenue consists principally of royalty revenelated to the licensing of certain of the Company
proprietary system technology and repair servi€as. Company recognizes royalty revenues upon aoatifin by the customer of shipment of the systems

produced pursuant to the royalty agreement. Regaitice revenue is generally based upon a fixex@md is recognized upon completion of the repair.

From time to time we enter into multiple elememaagements in the Systems Segment. We follow tbeusding policies described above for such
arrangements.

The Companys standard sales agreements generally do not enclustomer acceptance provisions. However, iniodrtatances when arrangeme
include a customer acceptance provision or themadertainty about customer acceptance, reverdefésred until the Company has evidence of customer
acceptance. Customers generally do not have theafgeturn, once customer acceptance has occurred

Service and System Integration Segment Revenue

Revenue in the Service and System Integration Segeooasists of product and service revenue.

Revenue from the sale of third-party hardware #ird {party software is recognized when the revargegnition criteria are met. The Company’s
standard sales agreements generally do not inclustemer acceptance provisions. However, in cemaiances when arrangements include a customer

acceptance provision or there is uncertainty abostomer acceptance, revenue is deferred untCémepany has evidence of customer acceptance.
Customers do not have the right of return.
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Service revenue is comprised of information tecbgplconsulting development, installation, implenagion and maintenance services. We follow
the accounting policies described above for serva@sactions. For arrangements that include amestacceptance provision, or if there is uncetyaboul
customer acceptance of services rendered, revereddrred until the Company has evidence of cust@oceptance.

For sales that are financed by customers throeggels with a third party when risk of loss doegpass to the customer until the lease is executed,
revenue is recognized upon cash receipt and execotithe lease.

We sell certain third party service contracts, Wtdce evaluated to determine whether the saleadf service revenue should be recorded as gross
sales or net sales in accordance with the salegmé&on criteria as required by U.S. Generally &gted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). We must
determine whether we act as a principal in thestiation and assume the risks and reward of ownpeostif we are simply acting as an agent or brokieder
gross sales recognition, the entire selling pscecorded in sales and our cost to the third-paatyice provider or vendor is recorded in cogiadds sold.
Under net sales recognition, the cost to the thady service provider or vendor is recorded asdaiction to sales resulting in net sales equdléatoss
profit on the transaction and there are no costpofls sold. We use the gross sales recognitiohaddor the third party service contracts that @i as we
have determined that we act as a principal in tBekes transactions.

Engineering and Development Expenses

Engineering and development expenses include gagrployee benefits, stock-based compensatiorotiret headcount-related expenses
associated with product development. Engineerirtdiavelopment expenses also include third-parteldgment and programming costs. We consider
technological feasibility for our software produdseached upon the release of the software aedr@dingly, no internal software development cbstge
been capitalized.

Product Warranty Accrual

Our product sales generally include a 90-day toyera hardware warranty. At time of product shipmer& accrue for the estimated cost to repe
replace potentially defective products. Estimatedranty costs are based upon prior actual warmeodis for substantially similar products.

Income Taxes

We use the asset and liability method of accourfingncome taxes whereby deferred tax assetsiabilities are recognized for the estimated fu
tax consequences attributable to differences betweefinancial statement carrying amounts of éxgsassets and liabilities and their respectivebiases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) nacted tax rates in effect for the year inohhihose temporary differences are expected tedmvered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assetsiabdities of a change in tax rates is recognizethcome in the period that includes the enactrdatg. We
also reduce deferred tax assets by a valuatiowatioe if, based on the weight of available evideitée more likely than not that some portion 8rod the
recorded deferred tax assets will not be realinddture periods. This methodology requires estisaind judgments in the determination of the redikty
of deferred tax assets and in the calculation ahoetax liabilities. Valuation allowances areaeted against the gross deferred tax assets thetgament
believes, after considering all available positwel negative objective evidence, historical andpeotive, with greater weight given to historicaldence,
that it is more likely than not that these asseélisnet be realized.
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In addition, we are required to recognize in thesmdidated financial statements, those tax postaetermined to be more-likely-than-not of being
sustained upon examination, based on the techmieats of the positions as of the reporting ddtea.tex position is not considered more-likely-thaot to be
sustained based solely on its technical meritdherefits of the position are recognized. Thisdsfizrent standard for recognition than was presipu
required. The more-likely-than-not threshold musitiue to be met in each reporting period to suppantinued recognition of a benefit. Upon adoptid
this standard on October 1, 2007, we were requiredijust our financial statements to reflect dhlyse tax positions that are more-likely-than-odbe
sustained. Any necessary adjustment was recordectlglito opening retained earnings in the peribddmption.

In addition, the calculation of the Company’s tabilities involves dealing with uncertainties hretapplication of complex tax regulations in a
multitude of jurisdictions. The Company recordilities for estimated tax obligations in the UgBd other tax jurisdictions. These estimated tabilities
include the provision for taxes that may becomeapégyin the future.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or ®takith cost determined using the first-in, ficatt method. The recoverability of inventories isdx
upon the types and levels of inventories held,daséed demand, pricing, competition and changeschmology. We write down our inventory for estietht
obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal tdifference between the cost of inventory and gtemated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual reaclnditions are less favorable than those prejelsy management, additional inventory write-downs
may be required.

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doulbthccounts

Trade accounts receivable are stated at amourithatia been billed to customers less an allowamcedubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful
accounts are recorded for the estimated lossekingsiiom the inability of our customers to malegjuired payments. The estimates for allowance for
doubtful accounts are based on the length of theeceivables are past due, current businessoanvént and our historical experience. If the finahc
condition of our customers were to deteriorateyltesy in impairment of their ability to make paynts, additional allowances may be required.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We test goodwill annually for impairment and mareguently if events and circumstances indicatettimasset might be impaired. We recognize
impairment losses to the extent that the carrymgunt of goodwill exceeds its fair value. The impant determination is made at the reporting @viel
and consists of two steps. First, the Company netes the fair value of the reporting unit and canag it to its carrying amount. Second, if theydag
amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair vahreimpairment loss is recognized for any excédiseocarrying amount of the reporting usitjoodwill ovel
the implied fair value of that goodwill. The imptidair value of goodwill is determined by allocatithe fair value of the reporting unit in a mansienilar to
a purchase price allocation. The residual fair @alfter this allocation is the implied fair valuietioe reporting unit goodwill. The Company’s polisyto
perform its annual impairment testing for all retpay units as of the end of each fiscal year. Rentear ended September 30, 2009, we recordeddavigbo
impairment charge for approximately $3.9 milliorneFe was no impairment of goodwill for the yearesh&eptember 30, 2010. All goodwill was written off
in the prior year.

Intangible assets other than goodwill that aresniject to amortization are also required to beeteannually, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that the asset may be ieghadi¥e did not have intangible assets with indefitives other than goodwill at any time during the
years ended September 30, 2010. Intangible asdgjecsto amortization are amortized over theimested useful lives, generally three to ten yeans, are
carried at cost, less accumulated amortization.réh&ining useful lives of intangible assets a@wated on an annual basis. Intangible assetsctubje
amortization are also tested for recoverability mdwer events or changes in circumstances indibateheir carrying amount may not be recoveralbline
fair value of an intangible asset subject to amaatibn is determined to be less than its carrymge, then an impairment charge is recorded tewidgivn
that asset to its fair value.

Pension and Retirement Plans
The funded status of pension and other postretimetrenefit plans is recognized prospectively onthlance sheet. Gains and losses, prior service
costs and credits and any remaining transition amsaihhat have not yet been recognized through permsipense will be recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income, net of tax, until they arertized as a component of net periodic pension/ptistment benefits expense. Additionally, plaretss
and obligations are measured as of our fiscal gedrbalance sheet date (September 30).
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We have defined benefit and defined contributianplin the U.K., Germany and in the U.S. In the .lad Germany, the Company provides
defined benefit pension plans for certain employsesformer employees and defined contribution pfanthe majority of the employees. The defined
benefit plans in both the U.K. and Germany areedds newly hired employees and have been fontbheyears ended September 30, 2010. In the U.S., the
Company also provides defined contribution plamas$ tover most employees and supplementary retirept@ns to certain employees and former employees
who are now retired. These supplementary retireiplamis are also closed to newly hired employeeshand been for the two years ended September 30,
2010. These supplemental plans are funded throbgievife insurance policies. The Company expextetover all insurance premiums paid under these
policies in the future, through the cash surrenddue of the policies and any death benefits ofiguas thereof to be paid upon the death of theig@pant.

These whole life insurance policies are carriethenbalance sheet at their cash surrender valuégywsire owned by the Company and are not asktts o
defined benefit plans. In the U.S., the Compang ptevides for officer death benefits and postreatient health insurance benefits through suppleathent
post-retirement plans to certain officers. The Canypalso funds these supplemental plans’ obligatibrough whole life insurance policies on theasfs.

Pension expense is based on an actuarial comput#tmurrent future benefits using estimates fqpezxted return on assets, expected compensation
increases and applicable discount rates. Managemasneviewed the discount rates with our congullictuary and investment advisor and concluded they
were reasonable. A decrease in the expected retupension assets would increase pension expexgectéd compensation increases are estimated ba
historical and expected increases in the futuraelses in estimated compensation increases weslidt in higher pension expense while decreasefiwou
lower pension expense. Discount rates are selbetsed upon rates of return on high quality fixembine investments currently available and expeatdubt
available during the period to maturity of the pensenefit. A decrease in the discount rate woednllt in greater pension expense while an incrieate
discount rate would decrease pension expense.

The Company funds its pension plans in amountscgerft to meet the requirements set forth in agthlie employee benefits laws and local tax l¢
Liabilities for amounts in excess of these fundingls are accrued and reported in the consolidzaéahce sheets.

In December 2008, the FASB issued new accountindpgae entitled, “Employers’ Disclosures about Ragsement Benefit Plan Assets”. The new
guidance requires additional disclosures about atsets for sponsors of defined benefit pensiorpasttetirement plans including expanded informmatio
regarding investment strategies, major categofieéan assets, and concentrations of risk withanmssets. Additionally, this guidance requireslo&ires
similar to those required under the fair value aotimg principles with respect to the fair valueptdn assets such as the inputs and valuationitpedsused
to measure fair value and information with respedatlassification of plan assets in terms of thexdnichy of the source of information used to deteertheir
value. These disclosures are required for thegadvered by this report and are included in Nte

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In April 2010, the FASB codified the consensus heatin Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 08Miestone Method of Revenue
Recognition.” FASB ASU No. 2010-17 provides guidamn defining a milestone and determining whenay fioe appropriate to apply the milestone method
of revenue recognition for research and developrimansactions. FASB ASU No. 2010-17 is effectiveffscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010
(Fiscal year ending September 30, 2011 for the Gmy)p and is effective on a prospective basis filestones achieved after the adoption date. The

Company does not expect this ASU will have a malkéripact on its financial position or results geoations when it adopts this update on Octob2010.

Management does not anticipate that other recéssilyed accounting pronouncements will have a natenpact on the Company'’s financial
statements.

Inflation and Changing Prices

Management does not believe that inflation and gimanprices had significant impact on sales, reesmr income (loss) during fiscal 2010 or 2009.
There is no assurance that the Company’s businéssotvbe materially and adversely affected bylatibn and changing prices in the future.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements are includedin.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Controls and Procedur

Disclosure Controls and Procedures.The Company evaluated the effectiveness ofléiséggn and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of September 30, 2010. Our chieiixefficer, our chief financial officer and oth@embers of our senior management team superaise
participated in this evaluation. The term “discl@saontrols and procedures,” as defined in Rules1Ee) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means
controls and other procedures of a company thadesigned to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that isfde
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, precessimmarized and reported, within the time peragkcified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclesur
controls and procedures include, without limitafioantrols and procedures designed to ensurertfaatnation required to be disclosed by a compartién
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafgeis accumulated and communicated to the confpangnagement, including its principal executive an
principal financial officers, as appropriate taalltimely decisions regarding required disclositanagement recognizes that any controls and proesdu
no matter how well designed and operated, can geoonly reasonable assurance of achieving theéctbgs and management necessarily applies its
judgment in evaluating the c-benefit relationship of possible controls and pares. Based on the evaluation of our disclosamérals and procedures as
of September 30, 2010, the Company'’s chief exeeuflicer and chief financial officer concluded thas of such date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. The Company’s management is responsible for establj and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiag.defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchangg #ternal control over financial reporting is eopess
designed by or under the supervision of a compgmyreipal executive and principal financial offiseand effected by a company’s board of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reasoaasurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor
external purposes in accordance with accountingciplies generally accepted in the United Statesnoérica. It includes those policies and procedtinas

 pertain to the maintenance of records tha¢@sonable detail accurately and fairly refleettlansactions and dispositions of the assets of a
company;

» provide reasonable assurance that transacti@recorded as necessary to permit prepardtfomaacial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and that receipdseapenditures of a company are being made ordgdéordance with authorizations of
management and the board of directors of a comany;

 provide reasonable assurance regarding ptieveor timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of a company’s assets that
could have a material effect on its financial staats.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of thpadg's internal control over financial reporting@f September 30, 2010. In making its
assessment of internal control, management useatitega described in “Internal Control—Integratecmework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSQ”) of the Treadway Commission.

As a result of its assessment, management hasuckaacthat the Company’s internal control over firiahreporting was effective as of
September 30, 2010.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or thategese of
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritatate.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includetiastation report of the Company’s independagistered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Managertie assessment of the effectiveness of the Compamgrnal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2010 was not subject to attestajidghebCompany’s independent registered public atttiog firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that call f
the Company to provide only management’s repattii;m Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogtin

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, there no changes in our internal control over finameporting that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, oureimtal control over financial reporting other thhnge discussed above.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

31




PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govene

We incorporate the information required by thisritby reference to the sections captioned “NomirfeeElection”, “Our Board of Directors”, “Our
Executive Officers”, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owskip Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Govengrn our Schedule 14A Proxy Statement for our
2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filedhathe SEC within 120 days after the end of owdiyear ended September 30, 2010.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

We incorporate the information required by thisritey reference to the sections captioned “Comparsaf Executive Officers” and
“Compensation of Non-Employee Directors” in our 8&gttle 14A Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Megbtf Stockholders to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after the end of our fiscal yeadaexhSeptember 30, 2010.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiManagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans.

The equity compensation plans approved by our btaldlers consist of the CSP, Inc. 1991 IncentivelS@ption Plan, 1997 Incentive Stock Option
Plan, 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, 2007 Stock Inwerfilan and 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plarif®RP”). The equity compensation plan not
approved by our stockholders is a stock option fdarertain employees of Modcomp. Stock optiossiézl under this plan were granted at the fair nbarke
value of our common stock on the date of grantetaterm of ten years and vest at the rate of 2&@fqmar starting one year from the date of gramfiscal
2009 and 2010, the Company granted certain offioetading its Chief Executive Officer and non-emmye directors shares of non-vested common stock
instead of stock options. The vesting periodstierdfficers’, the Chief Executive Officer’'s and tlieectors’ non-vested stock awards are four yehree
years and one year, respectively. The followindetalets forth information as of September 30, 2@barding the total number of securities outstagdin

under these stock option and stock purchase plans.

(@) (b) ©)

Number of
securities
Number of remaining
securities to available
be issued upon for future
exercise of issuance
outstanding under equity
options, Weighted-average compensation
warrants exercise price plans (excluding
and rights, and of outstanding securities reflected

non-vested options, warrants in column

Plan Category shares issued and rights @)

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders (2)(2) 289,07 $ 7.67 191,95¢3)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 40,000 $ 2.7C —
Total 329,07t $ 6.9¢ 191,95«
1) Does not include purchase rights under BB, as the purchase price and number of shabesporchased under the ESPP are not determindd unt
the end of the relevant purchase period.
2) Includes 54,300 non-vested shares issued.
3) Includes 167,950 shares available for iissuance under the incentive stock and stockmpians and 24,044 under the ESPP.

We incorporate additional information required histltem by reference to the section captioned t8gcOwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management” in our Schedule 14A Proxy Staterizerttur 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tdfibed with the SEC within 120 days after the end

of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independence

We incorporate the information required by thisritey reference to the section captioned “Corpo&ieernance” in our Schedule 14A Proxy
Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be filed with the SEC within 120 days aftes &nd of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic
We incorporate the information required by thisritey reference to the section captioned “Fees fofeBsional Services” and “Pepproval Policie

and Procedures” in our Schedule 14A Proxy Statefieermmtur 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tofited with the SEC within 120 days after the end of
our fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedult

(@ (1) Financial statements filed as partuftreport:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,8@i2009
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yermied September 30, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityGomiprehensive income (loss) for the years endpte8der 30, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaradled September 30, 2010 and 2009
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All other financial statements and schedules st¢di have been omitted since the required infoomas included in the consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto included in Itear & not applicable, material or required.
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@)

Exhibit
No.

Exhibits

Description

Filed with
this Form
10-K

Incorporated by Reference

Form

Filing Date

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

10.1

10.2

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

211

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Articles of Organization and amendments the

By-laws, as amended January 8, 1

Form of Employee Invention and N-Disclosure Agreemer
CSPI Supplemental Retirement Income F

1991 Incentive Stock Option Pl

Employment Agreement with Alexander R. Lupinettis#hSeptember 1.
1996

1997 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amer
1997 Employee Stock Purchase F

2003 Stock Incentive Ple

2007 Stock Incentive Ple

2011 Variable Compensation (Executive Bonus) areeBrograms dated
November 9, 201

Form of Change of Control Agreement with AlexanRetupinetti dated
January 11, 200

Form of Change of Control Agreement with Gary Wvibe and William E.

Bent Jr. each dated January 11, 2

Form of Change of Control Agreement with RoberSellato dated Janua

11, 200€
Employment Agreement with Victor Dellovo dated Adri, 2003
Subsidiaries

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, Independent iRieged Public
Accounting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawt$ection 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

* Management contract or compensatory plan.
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1C-K

1C-K

1C-K

1C-K

1C-K

1C-K

DEF 14A

DEF 14A

DEF 14A

DEF 14A

December 26, 200
December 26, 200
November 22, 199
December 29, 200
December 29, 200

November 27, 199

December 1, 199
December 1, 199
December 23, 200

March 30, 200°

3.1

3.2

10.3

10.2

10.4

10.14

W m W >




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereuntduly authorized.

CSP INC.

Date: December 22, 20: By: /s/ A LEXANDER R. L UPINETTI

Alexander R. Lupinetti
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldw the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dat indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ A LEXANDER R. L UPINETTI Chief Executive Officer, December 22, 2010
Alexander R. Lupinetti President and Chairm:

/sl G ARY W. L EVINE Chief Financial Officer December 22, 2010
Gary W. Levine (Principal Financial Officer

/s/ R OBERT A. S TELLATO Vice President of Finance December 22, 2010
Robert A. Stellato (Chief Accounting Officer

/s/ J. D AVID L YONS Director December 22, 2010

J. David Lyons

/s/ C. S HELTON J AMES Director December 22, 2010
C. Shelton James

/sl R OBERT M. W ILLIAMS Director December 22, 2010
Robert M. Williams

/s/ C HRISTOPHER J. H ALL Director December 22, 2010
Christopher J. Hall
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CSP INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Item 8
Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2010 and 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
CSP Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CSP, Inc. and subsidiaries as of @epte30, 2010 and 2009, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, sharehokeiguity and comprehensive income (loss), and das¥s for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compangsagement. Our responsibility is to express amapon these financial statements based on aditsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finagtatements are free of material misstatement. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we erdjggperform an audit of its internal control o¥i@ancial reporting. Our audit included considanatof
internal control over financial reporting as a bdsr designing audit procedures that are apprtepimathe circumstances, but not for the purposexpfessin
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companyterival control over financial reporting. Accordipgwve express no such opinion. An audit alsoudebk
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutiieunts and disclosures in the financial statespagsessing the accounting principles used andisant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluh@rmyerall financial statement presentation. B&keve that our audits provide a reasonable lfasis
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all mate®apects, the financial position of CSP, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of September 30, 2010 and 200%hamesults of their operations and their casidlfor the years then ended in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statemdD®#, Inc. and subsidiaries has changed its methi@tognizing certain revenues in 2010 due to
the adoption of Accounting Standards Update (“AB2009-13 -Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements-a Consems the FASB Emerging Issues
Task Forceand ASU 2009-14 €ertain Revenue Arrangements that Contain SoftEsements.

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 22, 2010
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CSP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except par value)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts
of $288 in 2010 and $298 in 2009
Inventories
Refundable income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, equipment and improvements, net

Other assets:
Intangibles, net
Deferred income taxes
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Pension and retirement plans
Deferred income taxes
Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities
Pension and retirement plans
Deferred income taxes
Capital lease obligation
Other long term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par; authorized, 7,500 shasesed and
outstanding 3,520 and 3,542 shares, respéctive
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@tdsients.
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September 30, September 30,
2010 2009

$ 1553, $ 18,90¢
12,19( 7,41(C

5,862 5,93t

721 1,16(

124 632

1,52 1,82¢

35,95! 35,86¢

872 83z

687 80C

88( 27¢

2,68¢ 2,46(

29¢ 252

4,55t 3,78¢

$ 41,37¢  $ 40,48¢
$ 10,04¢ $ 10,53(
3,07¢ 2,05¢

441 447

— 96

38C 25

13,94¢ 13,157

8,92¢ 8,12(

— 14€

24 48

— 32(

22,90( 21,79

35 36

11,28( 11,32¢

12,51¢ 11,60z
(5,359 (4,26%)

18,47¢ 18,69¢

$ 41,37¢ % 40,48¢




CSP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except for per share data)

Sales:
Product
Services
Total sales
Cost of sales:
Product
Services
Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Engineering and development
Selling, general and administrative
Goodwill impairment
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Foreign exchange loss
Other income (expense), net

Total other income (expense), net

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) attributable to common st&holders
Net income (loss) per share-basic
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic
Net income (loss) per share-diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@tdsients.
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Years ended September 30,

2010 2009
78,74: 67,23
16,27¢ 16,12(
95,01¢ 83,351
67,38t 56,60¢
10,44: 11,79;
77,82 68,40¢
17,19: 14,95:

1,95¢ 1,97¢
14,09¢ 13,96¢
— 3,941
16,04¢ 19,88(
1,147 (4,929)
61 228
(90) (112)

(2) (109

37 (36)

7 27)
1,14¢ (4,956)
23t (1,179
914 (3,789
90= (3,76%)
0.2€ (1.05)
3,53¢ 3,571
0.2% (1.05)
3,567 3,571




CSP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009
(Amounts in thousands)

Accum-
ulated
other Total
Additional compre- Share- Compre-
paid-in Retained hensive holders’ hensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings loss Equity loss

Balance September 30, 2008 3,75¢ $ 38 $ 1181 $ 1538 $ (3,287) $  23,94¢
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss — — — (3,789 — (3,78) $ (3,789

Other comprehensive loss:

Effect of foreign currency translation — — — — (302) (302) (302

Increase in minimum pension liability — — — — (679 (679 (679

Total comprehensive loss $ (4,769

Stock-based compensation — — 245 — — 24¢
Issuance of shares under employee stock

purchase plan 65 1 17¢ — — 18C
Restricted stock shares issued 23 — 22 — — 22
Purchase of common stock (304) (3) (937) — — (939
Balance September 30, 2009 354: $ 36 $ 11,32¢ $ 1160: $ (4,26¢) $ 18,69t
Comprehensive loss:

Net income — — — 914 — 914 $ 914

Other comprehensive loss:

Effect of foreign currency translation — — — — (282) (282 (282

Increase in minimum pension liability — — — — (802) (802) (802)

Total comprehensive loss $ 170)

Stock-based compensation — — 154 — — 154
Issuance of shares under employee stock

purchase plan 42 — 114 — — 114
Restricted stock shares issued 31 — 69 — — 69
Purchase of common stock (95) (1) (382) — — (389
Balance September 30, 2010 3,52( $ 35 $ 1128 $ 1251t $ (5,359 $  1847¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@grstents.
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CSP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcprovided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangibles
Loss on disposal of property, net
Foreign exchange loss
Goodwill impairment charge
Non-cash changes in accounts receivable
Deferred income taxes
Increase in cash surrender value life insurance
Stock based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in refundable income taxes
Decrease (increase) in other current assets
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpedses
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in pension and retirement plans
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Sale of investments
Life insurance premiums paid
Purchases of property, equipment and improvements
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds (payments) on short-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of shares under employele gtiochase plan
Purchase of common stock
Net cash used in financing activiti

Effects of exchange rate on cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplementary cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes

Cash paid for interest

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@grsents.
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Years ended September 30,

2010 2009
914 $ (3,789
39¢ 46€
112 112

12 11¢

1 104

— 3,941

) 127
(360) (964)
(109) (86)
222 26¢
(4,919 3,86¢
58 2,17t
40E 534
23¢ (45¢)
(45) 147
(189) (839
1,10¢ (1,629
23C (34)
35C (709)
(365) —
(1,93) 3,365
(1,100) —
1,10 5,00(
(124) (124)
(487) (402)
(607) 4,47¢
— (1,509
114 18C
(389) (934)
(269) (2,25¢)
(56€) (174)
(3,379 5,41(
18,90 13,49
1553 $ 18,90
(535 $ (619)
(89 $ (105)







CSP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 and 2009

Organization and Business

CSP Inc. (“CSPI” or “the Company” or “we” or “ourtyas founded in 1968 and is based in Billerica, $4akusetts. To meet the diverse
requirements of its industrial, commercial and deécustomers worldwide, CSPI and its subsidiaigée®lop and market IT integration solutions andhhig
performance cluster computer systems. The Comppesates in two segments, its Systems segment@afeivice and System Integration segment.
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ttweants of the Company and its subsidiaries. gthgicant inter-company accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. Dollar is the reporting currency for arijpds presented. The financial information foiiteag outside the United States is measured using
the local currency as the functional currency. Asa@ad liabilities of the Company’s foreign opesas are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchaatgs in
effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and se@are translated at average rates in effectgltii@period. The resulting translation adjustnient
reflected as accumulated other comprehensive in¢tmsg), a separate component of shareholderstyeguithe consolidated balance sheets. The tréamslat
adjustment for intercompany foreign currency lotra are of a long-term-investment nature is adflected as accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). Currency transaction gains and losseseaarded as other income (expense) in the staterobafserations.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of tasfs, highly liquid investments with original maities of three months or less at the time of
acquisition are considered cash equivalents.

Fair Value Measurements

We follow current accounting standards for fairmeameasurements, which define fair value as “tiee ghat would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transantbetween market participants at the measuredset and establish a fair value hierarchy thatireg an
entity to maximize the use of observable inputs mimdmize the use of unobservable inputs when nraagtair value. A financial instrument’s
categorization within the fair value hierarchy &sbd upon the lowest level of input that is sigaifit to the fair value measurement. There are threds of
inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are quoted prices in active markets for idahassets or liabilities.
Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are inputs other than quoted prices includ#dn Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability such as quoted prices for similar assetfiabilities in active markets; quoted prices ientical assets or liabilities in markets witsufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active @)k or model-derived valuations in which sigrafit inputs are observable or can be derived pratigip
from, or corroborated by, observable market data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are unobservable inputs to the valuation agetlogy that are significant to the measurement of
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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Investments

The Company classifies its investments at the tiffgurchase as either held-to-maturity or availdblesale. Held-to-maturity securities are those
investments that the Company has the ability atehtrto hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity seitigs are recorded at cost, adjusted for the amaiitin of
premiums and discounts, which approximates maridetevat the purchase date. Available-for-sale siesiare recorded at fair value. Unrealized gaind
losses net of the related tax effect, if any, oailable-for-sale securities is reported in accunaaather comprehensive income (loss), a compasfent
shareholders’ equity, until realized. The fair \abf available-for-sale investments are measureddan quoted market prices as of the end of {hartiag
period (ie., Level 1 inputs.)

Interest income is accrued as earned. Dividendhirecis recognized as income on the date the stadksr‘ex-dividend.” The cost of marketable
securities sold is determined by the specific idieation method and realized gains or losses efleated in income.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets (othan ipoodwill) for impairment whenever events or d@emin circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverdMdeagement assesses the recoverability of thellead assets (other than goodwill) by comparing th
estimated undiscounted cash flows associated héthelated asset or group of assets against #wective carrying amounts. The amount of impaitmign
any, is calculated based on the excess of theingragnount over the fair value of those assets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We test goodwill annually for impairment and mameqgluently if events and circumstances indicatettimasset might be impaired. We recognize
impairment losses to the extent that the carrymgunt of goodwill exceeds its fair value. The intpant determination is made at the reporting @viel
and consists of two steps. First, the Company aetes the fair value of the reporting unit and canag it to its carrying amount. Second, if theydag
amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair vahreimpairment loss is recognized for any excésiseocarrying amount of the reporting usioodwill ovel
the implied fair value of that goodwill. The imptidair value of goodwill is determined by allocatithe fair value of the reporting unit in a mansienilar to
a purchase price allocation. The residual fair eafter this allocation is the implied fair valuietloe reporting unit goodwill. The Company’s poliisyto
perform its annual impairment testing for all repag units as of the end of each fiscal year. Rerytear ended September 30, 2009, we recordeddavigbo
impairment charge for approximately $3.9 milliorneFe was no impairment of goodwill for the yearesh&eptember 30, 2010. All goodwill was writtefi of
in the prior year.

Intangible assets other than goodwill that aresniject to amortization are also required to beeteannually, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that the asset may be ieghdi¥e did not have intangible assets with indfilives other than goodwill at any time during the
years ended September 30, 2010. Intangible asdgjecsto amortization are amortized over theimested useful lives, generally three to ten yeans, are
carried at cost, less accumulated amortization.réhmining useful lives of intangible assets am@w@ated on an annual basis. Intangible assetsciubje
amortization are also tested for recoverability méweer events or changes in circumstances indibataheir carrying amount may not be recoveralige
fair value of an intangible asset subject to amaatibn is determined to be less than its carrymge, then an impairment charge is recorded teewidgivn
that asset to its fair value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or efarkith cost determined using the first-in, ficatt method. The recoverability of inventories isdx
upon the types and levels of inventories held,daséed demand, pricing, competition and changeschmology. We write down our inventory for estietht
obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal tdifference between the cost of inventory and gtemated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual racdeonditions are less favorable than those prejelsy management, additional inventory write-downs
may be required.

Property, Equipment and Improvements

The components of property, equipment and improvesnare stated at cost. The Company provides fared&tion by use of the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the edlaissets (three to seven years). Leasehold impents are amortized by use of the straight-linenoget
over the lesser of the estimated useful life ofabset or the lease term. Repairs and maintenasteare expensed as incurred. Property, equipanent
improvements are tested for recoverability whenewents or changes in circumstances indicate thatirying amount may not be recoverable. If tie f
value of property, equipment and improvements ferdeéned to be less than their carrying value, tre@impairment charge is recorded to write down tha
asset to its fair value.
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Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for DoliBifgounts

Trade accounts receivable are stated at amourthaka been billed to customers less an allowamcddubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful
accounts are recorded for the estimated lossekingsitom the inability of our customers to malegjuired payments. The estimates for allowance for
doubtful accounts are based on the length of tmeeceivables are past due, current businessoanvént and our historical experience. If the finahc
condition of our customers were to deteriorateyltezgy in impairment of their ability to make paynts, additional allowances may be required.

Pension and Retirement Plans

The funded status of pension and other postretineimenefit plans is recognized prospectively ontthiance sheet. Gains and losses, prior service
costs and credits and any remaining transition arsaihhat have not yet been recognized through permsipense will be recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax, until they arerized as a component of net periodic pension/ptiement benefits expense. Additionally, plaretss
and obligations are measured as of our fiscal gedrbalance sheet date (September 30).

We have defined benefit and defined contributianplin the United Kingdom (the “U.K.”), Germany andhe U.S. In the U.K. and Germany, the
Company provides defined benefit pension planséotain employees and former employees and deioettibution plans for the majority of the
employees. The defined benefit plans in both thé€ dnd Germany are closed to newly hired emplogegshave been for the two years ended Septemb
2010. In the U.S., the Company also provides ddfgantribution plans that cover most employeessamqpblementary retirement plans to certain employees
and former employees who are now retired. Thespleogentary retirement plans are also closed toynhimtd employees and have been for the two years
ended September 30, 2010. These supplementalglarfignded through whole life insurance policidse Tompany expects to recover all insurance
premiums paid under these policies in the futdmmugh the cash surrender value of the policiesamyddeath benefits or portions thereof to be paimh the
death of the participant. These whole life insueapolicies are carried on the balance sheet atdhsh surrender values as they are owned by thg&uy
and not assets of the defined benefit plans. ItUtise, the Company also provides for officer desthefits and post-retirement health insurance ltenef
through supplemental post-retirement plans to redfiicers. The Company also funds these suppléah@ians’ obligations through whole life insurance
polices on the officers.

Pension expense is based on an actuarial comput#tmurrent future benefits using estimates fqpezxted return on assets, expected compensation
increases and applicable discount rates. Managemasneviewed the discount rates with our congyllictuaries and investment advisor and concluded th
were reasonable. A decrease in the expected retupension assets would increase pension expergected compensation increases are estimated based
on historical and expected increases in the futnmeases in estimated compensation increasesiwestilt in higher pension expense while decreasedd
lower pension expense. Discount rates are seléetsed upon rates of return on high quality fixembine investments currently available and expectdxt
available during the period to maturity of the pensenefit. A decrease in the discount rate woednllt in greater pension expense while an incrizate
discount rate would decrease pension expense.

The Company funds its pension plans in amountscgerft to meet the requirements set forth in agghlie employee benefits laws and local tax l¢
Liabilities for amounts in excess of these fundiengls are accrued and reported in the consolidzaéhce sheet.

In December 2008, the FASB issued new accountindpgae entitled, “Employers’ Disclosures about Ragsement Benefit Plan Assets”. The new
guidance requires additional disclosures about a&sets for sponsors of defined benefit pensiorpasttetirement plans including expanded infornmatio
regarding investment strategies, major categofieéan assets, and concentrations of risk withanmssets. Additionally, this guidance requireslod&ires
similar to those required under the fair value aotimg principles with respect to the fair valueptdn assets such as the inputs and valuationitpedsused
to measure fair value and information with respedatlassification of plan assets in terms of therdnichy of the source of information used to deteertheir
value. These disclosures are required for thegeadvered by this report and are included in Nte

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes product revenue from cus®atehe time of transfer of title and risk ofdashich is generally at the time of shipment,
provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangemestss, the price is fixed or determinable andecthbility of sales proceeds is reasonably assed
include freight billed to our customers as sales the related freight costs as cost of sales. Tdrapgany reduces revenue for estimated customengetur

The Company recognizes revenue from software leensen persuasive evidence of an arrangemens edédivery of the product has occurred
the fee is fixed or determinable and collectabiltprobable. When delivery of services accompaniyare sales, and vendor specific objective ewigen
does not exist, and the only undelivered elemesgiigices that do not involve significant modifioat or customization, of software, then the erfieeis
recognized as the services are performed. If ttenpeof performance is discernable, the fee isgaized straight line over the service period.
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The Company also offers training, maintenance agee¢s and support services. The Company has establfair value on its training, maintena
and support services based on prices charged anagepsales to customers at prices establishegudbiidhed in its standard price lists. These praresnot
discounted. Revenue from these service obligatioier maintenance contracts is deferred and repedgmin a straight-line basis over the contractedbg,
which is typically three to twelve months, if ather revenue recognition criteria have been matp8t services provided on a time and materialsass
recognized as provided if all of the revenue re@@ncriteria have been met for that element dedsupport services have been provided. Trainingmee
is recognized when performed.

In certain multiple-element revenue arrangemehtsQompany is obligated to deliver to its custonmendtiple products and/or services (“multiple
elements”). In these transactions, the Companyaiés the total revenue to be earned under thegameent among the various elements based on the
Companys best estimate of the standalone selling price.dllocation is based on vendor specific objeativieence, third party evidence or estimated se
price when that element is sold separately. The amy recognizes revenue related to the deliveredyats or services only if the above revenue reitiogr
criteria are met and the delivered element haslatane value.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stasslalpdate (“ASU”) 2009-13 - “Multiple-DeliverabRevenue Arrangements—a Consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force” (“ASU 2009}18hd ASU 2009-14 — “Certain Revenue ArrangemtrasContain Software Elements.” (“ASU
2009-14"). ASU 2009-13 amends existing revenuegaition accounting principles regarding multipleliderable revenue arrangements. The consensus
provides accounting principles and application goit on whether multiple deliverables exist, hoavalrangement should be separated, and how the
consideration should be allocated. This guidaniceimdtes the requirement to establish verifiablgective evidence of the fair value of undelivepedducts
and services and also eliminates the residual rdethallocating arrangement consideration. The geislance provides for separate revenue recognition
based upon management’s estimate of the sellieg for an undelivered item when there is no otheams to determine the fair value of that undelidere
item. Under the previous guidance, if the fair eati all of the elements in the arrangement waslatgrminable, then revenue was deferred untdfate
items were delivered or fair value was determifidds pronouncement is effective prospectively faranue arrangements entered into or materially fieok
in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 20dith early adoption permitted.

ASU 2009-14 removes the sale of tangible produmt$aining software components and non-software comapts that function together to deliver
the tangible product’s essential functionality frtime scope of software revenue recognition guidance

Adoption of the new revenue recognition guidance lred an impact on the pattern and timing of reggraognition. In some cases, revenue that
would have been deferred pursuant to the previcaighting multipleelement revenue recognition guidance, has beegméra pursuant to the newly isst
guidance. This is because in some cases we asbleoto determine VSOE or thighrty evidence of the service element in our ararents. Under the ne
guidance, because the requirement to determingdhie of undelivered elements has been eliminated we may use estimated selling price to allocate
revenue to elements in an arrangement, we are rmwe likely to be able to separate arrangementssigp@arate units of accounting, and thereby receghie
delivered elements (typically product revenue) withhaving delivered the other elements in thengeenents (typically services). The impact of adihgp
this new accounting guidance on revenue for yede@iSeptember 30, 2010 was that $3.5 million intexfgl revenue was recognized under the newly
adopted guidance that wouldn’t have been recogriiagdve not adopted the new standards. The impactopting this new accounting guidance on net
income and EPS was an increase to net income df th2@isand for the year ended September 30, 28d@ an increase of $0.08, to both basic and fully
diluted earnings per share for the year ended Styze30, 2010.

The Company has adopted these standards as oféddtop009.
Description of multiple-deliverable arrangementsleé®oftware Elements

In many cases, our multiple-deliverable arrangemiolve initial shipment of hardware (includirangible products that include software and non-
software elements), software products and subségedvery of services which add value to the priduhat have been shipped. In some instancescesr
are performed prior to product shipment, but mgpécially services are performed subsequent to shiprof the hardware products. The timing of the
delivery and performance of deliverables may vagecby-case. We evaluate whether we can detexmairdor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or
third-party evidence to allocate revenue among/éitous elements in an arrangement. When VSOEimt-ffarty evidence cannot be determined, we use
estimated selling prices to allocate revenue toreirus elements. Estimated selling prices aterdened using the targeted gross margin for ebmhent
and calculating the gross revenue for each elethahtvould have been required to achieve the tadggtoss margin, and allocating revenue to eachegie
based on those relative values.

Typically, product revenue which may consist ofdveaire (including tangible products that includetwafe and non-software elements) and/or
software elements are recognized upon shipmemthen risk of loss passes to the customer. Serelessents are typically recognized upon complefiimn
fixed-price service arrangements, and as servieepexformed for time and materials service arremgggs. For software elements that include sentleats
do not involve significant production, modification customization, and VSOE does not exist, theeefee allocable to that element is recognizethas
services are performed. If no pattern of perforneanaliscernable, the fee is recognized straigbtdiver the service period. The period over wkitvices
are delivered typically ranges from approximateigysto ninety days, or longer in some cases.
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For tangible products containing software compoment non-software components, we determine wh#tbee elements function together to
deliver the tangible product essential functiopalilf the software and non-software componentheftangible product function together to deliver t
tangible product’s essential functionality, softezaevenue recognition guidance is not appliedrdilier other appropriate revenue recognition guidars
described above.

The following policies are applicable to the Comgamajor categories of segment revenue transagtion
Systems Segment Revenue

Revenue in the Systems Segment consists of praddcservice revenue. Generally, product reventecizgnized when product is shipped, prov
that all revenue recognition criteria are met. ervevenue consists principally of royalty revenelated to the licensing of certain of the Company
proprietary system technology and repair servi€as. Company recognizes royalty revenues upon oatifin by the customer of shipment of the systems
produced pursuant to the royalty agreement. Regaiice revenue is generally based upon a fixez @d is recognized upon completion of the repair.

From time to time we enter into multiple elememaagements in the Systems Segment. We follow tbeusding policies described above for such
arrangements.

The Companys standard sales agreements generally do not enclustomer acceptance provisions. However, iniodrtatances when arrangeme
include a customer acceptance provision or themadertainty about customer acceptance, reverdefésred until the Company has evidence of customer
acceptance. Customers generally do not have theafgeturn, once customer acceptance has occurred

Service and System Integration Segment Revenue
Revenue in the Service and System Integration Segeooasists of product and service revenue.

Revenue from the sale of third-party hardware #ird {party software is recognized when the revergegnition criteria are met. The Company’s
standard sales agreements generally do not inclustemer acceptance provisions. However, in cemaiances when arrangements include a customer
acceptance provision or there is uncertainty abostomer acceptance, revenue is deferred untCémepany has evidence of customer acceptance.
Customers do not have the right of return.

Service revenue is comprised of information tecbgplconsulting development, installation, implenagion and maintenance services. We follow
the accounting policies described above for servar@sactions. For arrangements that include amestacceptance provision, or if there is uncetyaabout
customer acceptance of services rendered, revereddrred until the Company has evidence of cust@oceptance.

For sales that are financed by customers throeggek with a third party when risk of loss doespass to the customer until the lease is executed,
revenue is recognized upon cash receipt and execotithe lease.

We sell certain third party service contracts, Wtdce evaluated to determine whether the saleadf service revenue should be recorded as gross
sales or net sales in accordance with the salegmé®n criteria as required by U.S. Generally &gied Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). We must
determine whether we act as a principal in thestation and assume the risks and reward of ownpeashf we are simply acting as an agent or brokieder
gross sales recognition, the entire selling pscecorded in sales and our cost to the third-patyice provider or vendor is recorded in cogiadds sold.
Under net sales recognition, the cost to the thady service provider or vendor is recorded asdaiction to sales resulting in net sales equdiéatoss
profit on the transaction and there are no costpofis sold. We use the gross sales recognitionaddor the third party service contracts that e# as we
have determined that we act as a principal in tsaks transactions.

Product Warranty Accrual

Our product sales generally include a 90-day toyera hardware warranty. At time of product shipmer& accrue for the estimated cost to repe
replace potentially defective products. Estimatedranty costs are based upon prior actual warmeodis for substantially similar products.
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Engineering and Development Expenses

Engineering and development expenses include gagroployee benefits, stock-based compensatiorotret headcount-related expenses
associated with product development. Engineenmhdevelopment expenses also include third-pangldpment and programming costs. We consider
technological feasibility for our software produtiisbe reached upon the release of the softwacerdiagly, no internal software development costgeh
been capitalized.

Income Taxes

We use the asset and liability method of accourfingncome taxes whereby deferred tax assetsiabilities are recognized for the estimated fu
tax consequences attributable to differences betwreefinancial statement carrying amounts of exgsassets and liabilities and their respectivebases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) nacted tax rates in effect for the year inohhihose temporary differences are expected tedmvered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assetsiabdities of a change in tax rates is recognizethcome in the period that includes the enactrdatg. We
also reduce deferred tax assets by a valuatiowatioe if, based on the weight of available evideitée more likely than not that some portion 8rod the
recorded deferred tax assets will not be realinddture periods. This methodology requires estisaind judgments in the determination of the rerdikty
of deferred tax assets and in the calculation ahoetax liabilities. Valuation allowances areaeted against the gross deferred tax assets thwtgament
believes, after considering all available positwel negative objective evidence, historical andpeotive, with greater weight given to historicaldence,
that it is more likely than not that these asseélisnet be realized.

In addition, we are required to recognize in thesatidated financial statements, those tax postaetermined to be more-likely-than-not of being
sustained upon examination, based on the techmieats of the positions as of the reporting ddtea.tex position is not considered more-likely-thaot to be
sustained based solely on its technical merither®fits of the position are recognized.

In addition, the calculation of the Company’s tabilities involves dealing with uncertainties hretapplication of complex tax regulations in a
multitude of jurisdictions. The Company recordilities for estimated tax obligations in the UgBd other tax jurisdictions. These estimated tabilities
include the provision for taxes that may becomeapégyin the future.

Earnings per Share of Common Stock

In June 2008, the FASB issued new accounting gaelentitled, “Determining Whether Instruments Gednin Share-Based Payment Transactions
are Participating Securities.” Under the new gutdgamon-vested share-based payment awards thaiircowin-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend
equivalents are participating securities and, floeee are included in computing earnings per sff&BS”) pursuant to the two-class method. The ez
method determines EPS for each class of commok atut participating securities according to dividewor dividend equivalents and their respective
participation rights in undistributed earnings. Tiesv guidance is effective for fiscal years begigrafter December 15, 2008 (fiscal year ending
September 30, 2010 for the Company). The newaisces required pursuant to this new guidancenateded below.

Basic net income per common share is computed\iglidg net income available to common shareholbgrthe weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Dilugtdnmcome per common share reflects the maximuntidii that would have resulted from the assumed
exercise and share repurchase related to dilutbek ®ptions and is computed by dividing net incolmethe assumed weighted average number of common
shares outstanding.

In accordance with new accounting guidance as iestabove, we are required to present EPS utjlitie two class method because we had
outstanding, non-vested share-based payment aweidsontain non-forfeitable rights to dividendsdaridend equivalents, which are considered
participating securities.

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share cortiputafor the Company’s reported net income atteble to common stock holders are as follows:

For the year ended
September 30, September 30,
2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands
except per share data)

Net income (loss $ 914 $ (3,789
Less: Net income attributable to nonvested comnacks 9 (18)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi: $ 90t $ (3,765
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 3,57¢ 3,59¢
Less: weighted average non-vested shares outstandin 36 17
Weighted average number of common shares outsgrdiasic 3,53¢ 3,571

Potential common shares from non-vested stock anaard the assumed exercise of stock options 29 -




Weighted average common shares outstanding —dililute 3,567 3,571

Net income (loss) per she— basic $ 0.2¢€ $ (1.05)

Net income (loss) per she— diluted $ 028 $ (1.05)
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For the year ended September 30, 2010, basic anddiearnings per share attributable to unvestacks were $0.26 and $0.25 per share,
respectively. For the year ended September 31,28e loss per share attributable to unvestecesheas $1.05 per share.

All anti-dilutive securities, including stock optis, are excluded from the diluted income per shangputation. For the year ended September 30,
2010, 240 thousand options were excluded from ilméed income per share calculation because theiusion would have been anti-dilutive. For tharye
ended September 30, 2009, approximately 348 thdusations were excluded from the diluted incomegtere calculation because their inclusion would
have been anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféctttae reported amounts of assets and liatslgied disclosure of contingent assets and liadslist th
date of the financial statements and the repomealiats of revenues and expenses during the repguréinod. Actual results may differ from those mesties
under different assumptions or conditions.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and recognize compensation expensk stwek-based payment awards made to employeediesxtors including stock options and
nonvested shares of common stock based on estiffisdtetiues of stock-based payment awards on débe af grant. The Company uses the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to calculate the fair valuestdck option grants. The fair value of nonvestears awards is equal to the quoted market pricaiof
common stock as quoted on the Nasdaq Global Markéte date of grant. The value of the portiorhefaward that is ultimately expected to vest is
recognized as expense over the requisite servioedsan the Company’s Consolidated Statement afréjons.

Because stock-based compensation expense recogmitedConsolidated Statements of Operationshfefiscal years ended September 30, 2010
and 2009 is based on awards ultimately expecteddy it has been reduced for estimated forfeitareswill be revised, if necessary, in subsequeripgs if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized fista years ended September 30, 2010 and 2008sted of stock-based compensation
expense related to options and nonvested stockegtursuant to the Company’s stock incentive angleyee stock purchase plans of approximately $223
thousand and $265 thousand, respectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with alefilgancial institutions. Deposits held with banmkay exceed the amount of insurance on such
deposits. Generally, these deposits may be redeapmddemand. The Company has not experiencedasgd in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash eash equivalents.

Subsequent Events

The Company recognizes in the consolidated findsta@ements the effects of all subsequent evlatgprovide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the date of the stat¢mieiinancial position, including the estimatefénent in the process of preparing financial stetem

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2010, the FASB codified the consensus heatin Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 084#@estone Method of Revenue
Recognition.” FASB ASU No. 2010-17 provides guidann defining a milestone and determining whenay foe appropriate to apply the milestone method
of revenue recognition for research and developinansactions. FASB ASU No. 2010-17 is effectiveffecal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010
(Fiscal year ending September 30, 2011 for the Goy)p and is effective on a prospective basis filestones achieved after the adoption date. The
Company does not expect this ASU will have a makérpact on its financial position or results gleoations when it adopts this update on Octob2010.
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Management does not anticipate other recently ésageounting pronouncements will have any impadhenCompany’s financial statements.
2. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

September 30,
2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands)
Raw materials $ 1,02¢ $ 1,28t
Work-in-process 43¢ 871
Finished goods 4,39¢ 3,77¢
Total $ 586: $ 5,93¢

Finished goods includes inventory that has begopsldi, but for which all revenue recognition criidnas not been met of approximately $2.4 mi
and $1.4 as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, résglgct

Total inventory balances in the table above arevehmet of reserves for obsolescence of approxim&#ll million and $4.6 million as of Septem
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

3. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensias lare as follows:

Effect of Accumulated

Foreign Minimum Other
Currency Pension Comprehensive

Translation Liability Loss

(Amounts in thousands)

Balance September 30, 2008 $ (1,549 $ @,739) $ (3,287
Change in period (302 (71)) (1,019
Tax effect of change in period — 32 32
Balance September 30, 2009 $ (1,85) $ (2,417) $ (4,26¢)
Change in period (282) (995) (1,277
Tax effect of change in period — 192 19:
Balance September 30, 2010 $ (2,139) $ (3,219 $ (5,357)

The changes in the minimum pension liability areafemortization of net (gain) loss of $137 thaudén 2010 and $(39) thousand in 2009 included
in net periodic pension cost.
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4. Income Taxes:
The components of income (loss) before income makimcome tax expense (benefit) are comprisedeofdtiowing:

Years Ended September 30,
2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands)

Income (loss) before income tax:

u.s. $ 1,44t $ (4,197)
Foreign (299) (759)
$ 1,14¢ $ (4,956

Income tax expense (benefit):

Current:
Federal $ 41C $ 28
State 51 31
Foreign (15€) (519)
303 (460)
Deferred:
Federal (59 (625)
State ) (97)
Foreign - 3
(68) (713)
$ 23t % (1,179

Reconciliation of “expected” income tax expensen@it) to “actual” income tax expense (benefitassfollows:

Years Ended September 30,

2010 2009
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Computed “expected” tax expense (benefit) $ 391 34.% $ (1,68%) (34.0%
Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 28 2.4% (40 (0.89%
Foreign operations (57 5.0% (258) (5.2%
Change in valuation allowance 70 6.1% 90C 18.2%
Permanent differences 4 0.4% 19 0.4%
Inventory - - (76) 1.5%
Stock-based compensation 34 3.(% 49 1.C%
Federal net operating loss - - (10€) 2.1)%
Uncertain tax liability adjustment (320 27.9% 28 0.5%
Tax refund adjustment 79 6.€% = =
Other items 6 0.5% (4) (0.2)%
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 23E 20.5% $ (1,177 (23.0)%

The Company recorded a consolidated income taxnsepef $235 thousand in fiscal year 2010 reflecingffective tax rate of 20.5% compared to
a tax benefit of $1.2 million in fiscal year 200&twan effective tax rate of (23.7)%. We utilizgapbaoximately $359 thousand of our net operating los
carryovers which were applied against our 2009 thgable income.
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For the years ended September 30, 2010 and 200potary differences, which give rise to deferredaasets (liabilities), are as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Pension $ 250 $ 2,19¢
Goodwill 954 1,052
Other reserves and accruals 40¢ 278
Inventory reserves and other 61€ 51¢
State credits, net of federal benefit 48t 21¢
Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards 13z 297
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards 2,87¢ 2,847
Foreign tax credits 7 44
Depreciation and amortization 22¢ 20<
Gross deferred tax assets 8,20¢ 7,65¢
Less: valuation allowance (7,20%) (6,745)
Realizable deferred tax asset 1,00¢ 90¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Pension — (14¢)
Reserves — (96)
Gross deferred tax liabilities — (242)
Net deferred tax assets $ 1,000 $ 66€

The deferred tax valuation allowance increased480$housand, from $6.7 million at September 3092@ $7.2 million at September 30, 2010. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax asffetsCompany considers its taxable future earnamgsthe expected timing of the reversal of temporar
differences. Accordingly, the Company has recomedluation allowance which reduces the gross defdaax asset to an amount which management
believes will more likely than not be realized. Mauation allowance was determined, by assessitigfpsitive and negative evidence, whether itasem
likely than not that deferred tax assets are reble& Such assessment is done on a jurisdictiojmisdiction basis. The Company'’s inability to prof future
profitability beyond fiscal year 2012 in the U.®8dathe cumulative losses incurred in recent yeatia U.K. represent sufficient negative evidemceetord i
valuation allowance against certain deferred taess

As of September 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company@dnet operating loss carryforwards for statepasposes of approximately $1.9 million and
$4.2 million, respectively which are available féset future taxable income through 2028.

As of September 30, 2010, the Company had U.Kopetating loss carryforwards of approximately $®iBion that have an indefinite life with no
expiration.

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreignsstilaries amounted to approximately $3.7 millio 3.1 million at September 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. The Company’s policy is thatihdistributed foreign earnings are indefinitainwvested and, accordingly, no U.S. federal ante sta
deferred tax liabilities have been recorded.

In addition, the calculation of the Company’s tabilities involves dealing with uncertainties hretapplication of complex tax regulations in a
multitude of jurisdictions. The Company recordilities for estimated tax obligations in the UgBd other tax jurisdictions. These estimated tahilities

include the provision for taxes that may becomeapégyin the future.

As of October 1, 2007, the total amount of uncartak liabilities was $260 thousand, all of whicbuld affect our effective tax rate if recognized.
We recognize interest and potential penalties &ctralated to unrecognized tax benefits in our igiom for income taxes.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof the total amounts of gross unrecognized ¢mefits is as follows:

52




Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $ 32C % 291
Increases in tax positions in the current year — —
Settlements — —
Accrued penalties and interest 14 29
Decrease in current and prior year tax positions (334) —
Balance, end of year $ — % 32C

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictidduring 2010, the Company closed its most re
IRS audit. The Company has reviewed the tax pastiaken on returns filed domestically and indat®ign jurisdictions for all open years, genera07
through 2010, and believes that tax adjustmeragsmynaudited year will not be material.
5. Property, Equipment and Improvements, Net

Property, equipment and improvements, net consisieofollowing:

September 30, September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
Leasehold improvements $ 30 % 30C
Equipment 6,992 7,96(
Automobiles 11€ 84
7,41¢ 8,34/
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,547 (7,517)
Property, equipment and improvements, net $ 87: % 832

The Company uses the straight-line method oveestienated useful lives of the assets to recordeségtion expense. Depreciation expense was
$399 thousand and $466 thousand for the years é3ejgi@mber 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following table summarizes our goodwill as ep&mber 30, 2010 and 2009 and the changes tHerdte years ended September 30, 201C

2009:
September 30, September 30,
2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands)
Goodwill balance beginning of year $ — 3 3,941
Impairment charge — (3,947
Goodwill balance end of year $ — % —

The goodwill balance as of October 1, 2008 congdisfe$2.8 million recognized in connection with fngrchase of certain assets of Technisource
Hardware, Inc. (“Technisource”) on May 30, 2003 apgroximately $1.1 million recognized in connectwith the purchase of substantially all the assets
R2 Technology Services, Inc. on September 25, 2Z008.goodwill balance was within the Service andt&y Integration segment. The reporting unit for
purposes of evaluating goodwill impairment waskM@comp U.S. Systems and Solutions division.
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As required by GAAP, we test goodwill for impairnt@mnually and/or more frequently if events octattindicate the impairment conditions may

be present, to determine whether there has beenpairment to the fair value of our reporting uthiat includes goodwill. The estimated fair valuataf
reporting unit with goodwill is based on a combioatof discounted projected cash flows and obséevadarket price-to-earnings multiples of relevant,
comparable peer companies. Based upon the re$alts appraisal and valuation activities in conimtivith our annual goodwill impairment test, we
determined that the reporting unit's estimatedaiue was below its carrying value. We then caltad the implied fair value of goodwill by deterimig the
fair value of all the assets and liabilities of tegorting unit. As a result of this process, wiedained that the fair value of goodwill was $0oés
September 30, 2009. The carrying value of goodwitir to any impairment charges was approximat8l@ $nillion. Accordingly, we recorded an
impairment charge of approximately $3.9 millionsh®wn in the table above, for the year ended SemeB0, 2009.

The global economic downturn led to significant kesvolatility and a reduction in the Company’sfiability in the second half of fiscal 2009.
These changes to market and business conditiossddower multiples and resulted in our lowering projected forecast for 2010. The fair value of ou
Systems and Solutions reporting unit declined duéése deteriorating market and business conditiwhich ultimately resulted in a $3.9 million noash

impairment charge to our goodwill for the year eh@eptember 30, 2009.

Intangible Asset

The Company acquired intangible assets in conneetith the acquisition of R2 on September 25, 2@@& Note 2). As of September 30, 2010 and

2009 intangible assets is as follows:

September 30, 2010

September 30, 2009

Weighted Weighted
Average Accum- Average Accum-
Remaining ulated Remaining ulated
Amortization Amor- Amortization Amor-
Period Gross tization Net Period Gross tization Net
(Amounts in thousands)

Customer list 8years $ 82C $ 164 $ 65¢ 9years $ 82C $ 82 $ 73€
Non-Compete agreements 1 year 93 62 31 2years 93 31 62
Total 7.7years $ 91z $ 22¢  $ 687 8.5years $ 91: $ 112 $ 80C

Amortization expense on these intangible assetspda3 thousand and $113 thousand for fiscal 208809, respectively.

Annual amortization expense related to intangilskets for each of the following successive fisealry is as follows:

(Amounts in

Fiscal year ending September 30: thousands)
2011 $ 113
2012 82
2013 82
2014 82
2015 82
Thereafter 24¢€
Total $ 687
7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist ébitbwing:

September 30,
2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands)
Accounts payable $ 6,34¢ $ 6,901
Commissions 18€ 12¢
Compensation and fringe benefits 1,827 1,42¢
Professional fees and shareholders’ reporting costs 51& 64&
Taxes, other than income 635 36¢&
Warranty 14z 157
Current portion of capital lease 55 16
Other 342 887
$ 10,04¢ $ 10,53(
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8. Stock Options and Awards

In 1991, the Company adopted the 1991 Stock Ogitlan (the “1991 Plan”), and authorized 332,750ehaf common stock to be reserved for
issuance pursuant to the 1991 Plan. The 1991 Rfzired on October 23, 2001. In 1997, the Compampsatl the 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”),
and authorized 199,650 shares of common stock tedmrved for issuance pursuant to the 1997 Pla 1997 plan expired in 2007. Because the 1991Plan
and the 1997 Plan have expired, no further awailibevissued under these plans. In 2003, the Compaopted the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2003
Plan”) and authorized 200,000 shares of commorkgtobe reserved for issuance pursuant to the P0¥8 As of September 30, 2010, there were 20,000
shares available to be granted under the 2003 PI2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock IheeRian (the “2007 Plan”) and authorized 250,000
shares of common stock to be reserved for issuamsiant to the 2007 Plan. As of September 30,2088 were 147,950 shares available to be granted
under the 2007 Plan. In 2003, the Company issuaegnalified stock options to non-officer employéwir®d as part of the Technisource acquisition. €hes
options were granted at their fair value on the aditgrant. These options vested over a periodwfyears and expire ten years from the date aftgtinder
all of the stock incentive plans, both incentivecktoptions and non-qualified stock options magtanted to officers, key employees and other parson
providing services to the Company. The 2003 Plah2407 Plan also provide for awards of nonvestagleshof common stock. All of the Company’s stock
incentive plans have a ten year life. The total bernof available shares under all plans for fuawards was 167,950 as of September 30, 2010.

Options issued under any of the stock option ptaesot affected by termination of the plan. ThenPany issues stock options at their fair market
value on the date of grant. Vesting of stock ogtigranted pursuant to the Company’s stock inceiplizes is determined by the Company’s compensation
committee. Generally, options granted to employess over four years and expire ten years frondtite of grant. Options granted to non-employee
directors, have historically been cliff vestingesfsix months from the date of grant and expiredtyears from the date of grant. In fiscal 2009 201D, the
Company granted certain officers including its Glirecutive Officer and non-employee directors shaf nhonvested common stock instead of stock
options. The vesting periods for the officers’, Glaief Executive Officer’s and the directors’ nostasl stock awards are four years, three years regeatr,
respectively.

We measure and recognize compensation expensk $tock-based payment awards made to employeediggrtors including employee stock
options and awards of nonvested stock based anadsiil fair values, as described in note 1. Stoskedaompensation expense incurred and recognized fo
the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 réteséuick options and nonvested stock granted famrmees and non-employee directors under the
Company'’s stock incentive and employee stock pweimdans totaled approximately $223 thousand a68 $tusand, respectively. The classification ef th
cost of share-based compensation, in the stateroBaperations, is consistent with the nature efghrvices being rendered in exchange for the $fzesed
payment. The following table summarizes stock-basedpensation expense in the Company’s consolidgdéements of operations:

Years ended
September 30, September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
Cost of sales $ 1 $ 9
Engineering and development 28 35
Selling, general and administrative 194 221
Total $ 22T $ 26E

For the year ended September 30, 2010, the Congranyed 2,250 share options to certain key emp&yZk000 nonvested shares to certain
officers including the Chief Executive Officer abh@l,000 nonvested shares to its non-employee diedtor the year ended September 30, 2009, the
Company granted 12,250 share options to certairekgyloyees, 13,300 nonvested shares to its Chiefive Officer and 10,000 nonvested shares to its
non-employee directors.

The Company measures the fair value of nonvestat stwvards based upon the market price of its comstmck as of the date of grant. The
Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing mamehlue stock options. The Bla8choles model requires the use of a number of gssums including
volatility of the Company’s stock price, the weigltitaverage risk-free interest rate and the weigitedage expected life of the options, at the tifngrant.
Because the Company does not pay dividends, thgetid rate variable in the Blaceholes model is zero. The table below summariEassumptions us
to value these options:
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Years ended
September 30, September 30,

2010 2009
Expected volatility 59% 57%
Expected dividend yield — —
Risk-free interest rate 2.72%-3.08% 1.55%-1.7%
Expected term (in years) 6.1-7.€ 6.1-7.€

The volatility assumption is based on the histdneaekly price data of the Company’s stock oveeeqa equivalent to the weighted average
expected life of the Company’s options. Managenegatuated whether there were factors during thesiegs which would distort the volatility figurefs i
used to estimate future volatility and concludeat there were no such factors.

The risk-free interest rate assumptions are basad. . Treasury rates determined at the date adrogrant.

The expected terms of employee stock options reptegeighted-average periods that the stock optioagxpected to remain outstanding. They are
based upon the historical average of the actuals¢at stock options were outstanding, or are @rpeo be outstanding. Management believes this
historical data is representative of the expeateth of options granted for the years ended Septe8he010 and 2009.

As stockbased compensation expense recognized in the adetsal statements of operations is based on awdtidgtely expected to vest, expel
for grants beginning upon adoption on October D528as been reduced for estimated forfeitureseRorés to be estimated at the time of grant anided,
if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual ftonfes differ from those estimates. The forfeittates for the years ended September 30, 2010 @09v2€re
based on actual forfeitures.

No cash was used to settle equity instruments gdamider share-base payment arrangements in dhg péars in the two-year period ended
September 30, 2010.

The following tables provide summary data of stopkion award activity:

Weighted
Weighted Average
average Remaining Aggregate
Number exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares price Term Value
(in thousands)
Outstanding at September 30, 2008 437,68: $ 6.6¢ = =
Granted 12,25( $ 2.9¢ — —
Expired (78,97 $ 6.5C — —
Forfeited — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Outstanding at September 30, 2009 370,96. $ 6.61 = =
Granted 2,25 $ 3.8t — —
Expired (98,43) $ 5.61 — —
Forfeited — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Outstanding at September 30, 2010 274770 $ 6.9t 4.92 Years $ 82
Exercisable at September 30, 2010 235,39¢ $ 7.14 4.47 Years $ 69
Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2010 274770 $ 6.9t 4.92 Years $ 82

The weighted average grant date fair value of sbatiens granted during the years ended Septenthe@030 and 2009 was $2.32 and $1.71,
respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of lstmgtions exercised during the years ended Septedih@010 and 2009 was zero (there were no stock
options exercised in fiscal 2010 and 2009).

The following table provides summary data of notegstock award activity:
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Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Number of grant date Remaining Aggregate
nonvested Fair Contractual Intrinsic
shares Value Term Value
(in thousands)
Nonvested shares outstanding at September 30, 23,30 $ 3.17 — —
Activity in 2010
Granted 31,000 $ 3.7¢ — —
Vested (14,439) % 3.2¢ — —
Forfeited — — — —
Nonvested shares outstanding at September 30, 39,86¢ $ 3.61 1.65 Years $ 171
Vested at September 30, 2010 1443 $ 3.2¢ 0.37 Years 62
Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2010 54,300 $ 3.52 1.31 Years $ 23¢

As of September 30, 2010 there was $192 thousatatalfunrecognized compensation cost related hwested share-based compensation
arrangements (including share option and nonvestack awards) granted under the company’s stoekfive plans. This cost is expected to be expensed
over a weighted average period of approximatelg ¥dars. The total fair value of shares vestechdutie years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 was
$169 thousand and $194 thousand, respectively.

9. Stock Purchase Plan

In October 1997, the Board of Directors of the Campadopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (88¥“Rurchase Plan'\vhich was ratified b
the shareholders. There are 332,750 shares of corstook reserved for issuance under the 1997 PsedPlan. Under the 1997 Purchase Plan, the
Companys employees may purchase shares of common stecgrate per share that is 85% of the lesser ofdinenarket value as of the beginning or en
semi-annual option periods. Compensation experseded for shares issued pursuant to the 1997 Bsedplan for the years ended September 30, 2010 an
2009 was approximately $46 thousand and $75 tholusaspectively. For the years ended Septembe2(@ and 2009, 42,121 and 64,888 shares were
issued pursuant to the 1997 Purchase Plan, regplgcitince inception of the plan, 308,746 sham&heen issued and there are 24,004 shares dwddab
future issuance under the 1997 Purchase Plan@spdémber 30, 2010.

10. Pension and Retirement Plans

We have defined benefit and defined contributianplin the U.K., Germany and in the U.S. In the .lad Germany, the Company provides
defined benefit pension plans for certain employsesformer employees and defined contribution pfanthe majority of the employees. The defined
benefit plans in both the U.K. and Germany areedds newly hired employees and have been fontbheyears ended September 30, 2010. In the U.S., the
Company also provides defined contribution plamas tover most employees and supplementary retirept@ns to certain employees and former employees
who are now retired. These supplementary retireiplamis are also closed to newly hired employeeshand been for the two years ended September 30,
2010. These supplemental plans are funded throbgitevife insurance policies. The Company expextetover all insurance premiums paid under these
policies in the future, through the cash surrenddue of the policies and any death benefits ofiguas thereof to be paid upon the death of theigpant.

These whole life insurance policies are carriethenbalance sheet at their cash surrender valuégysire owned by the Company and not asset®of th
defined benefit plans. In the U.S., the Compang ptevides for officer death benefits and postreatient health insurance benefits through suppleathent
post-retirement plans to certain officers. The Camypalso funds these supplemental plans’ obligatibrough whole life insurance polices on the eific

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company funds its pension plans in amountscgerft to meet the requirements set forth in agghlie employee benefits laws and local tax l¢
Liabilities for amounts in excess of these fundingls are accrued and reported in the consolidzaéxhce sheet.

The German Plan does not have any assets anddieeadif costs and benefits of the plan are fundeudially with cash flow from operations.

The domestic supplemental retirement plans hagérigurance policies which are not considered ataets but were purchased by the Compan
vehicle to fund the costs of the plan. These instegolicies are included in the balance shedteit tash surrender value, net of policy loansreggfing
$1.8 million and $1.7 million as of September 301@ and 2009, respectively. The loans against ¢hieigs have been taken out by the Company to lpay t
premiums. The costs and benefit payments for thieges are paid through operating cash flows oftbmpany to the extent that they can not be funded
through the use of the cash values in the insurpalieies. The Company expects that the recordadevat the insurance policies will be sufficientftomd all
of the Company'’s obligations under these plans.
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Assumptions:

The following table provides the weighted averaggaarial assumptions used to determine the actyaeaent value of projected benefit obligations

at:
Domestic International
September 30, September 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Discount rate: 5.25% 5.7%% 4.6€% 5.63%
Expected return on plan assets: —% —% 6.2(% 6.2(%
Rate of compensation increase: —% —% 1.2(% 1.17%
The following table provides the weighted averag@arial assumptions used to determine net pertoghefit cost for years ended:
Domestic International
September 30, September 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Discount rate: 5.7%% 7.5(% 5.62% 6.6€%
Expected return on plan assets: —% —% 6.2(% 7.1(%
Rate of compensation increase: —% —% 1.17% 1.62%

For domestic plans, the discount rate was detedrigecomparison against the Citigroup Pension Rist@urve and Liability Index for AA rated
corporate instruments with lives approximating pleasion benefit. The Company monitors other indioesssure that the pension obligations are fairly
reported on a consistent basis. The internatioisabdnt rates were determined by comparison ageinsttry specific AA corporate indices, adjusted fo
duration of the obligation.

The periodic benefit cost and the actuarial pregehite of projected benefit obligations are basedctuarial assumptions that are reviewed on an
annual basis. The Company revises these assumptsesl on an annual evaluation of ldegn trends, as well as market conditions that hease an impac
on the cost of providing retirement benefits.
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The components of net periodic benefit costs rdladghe U.S. and international plans are as fatow

Pension:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of:
Prior service gains
Amortization of net (gain)/loss

Net periodic benefit cos

Post Retirement
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of:
Prior service costs/(gains)
Amortization of net (gain)/loss

Net periodic benefit cos

Pension:

Increase in minimum liability included in other

comprehensive income (loss)
Post Retirement

Increase (decrease) in minimum liability included
in other comprehensive income (loss)

Total:

Increase (decrease) in minimum liability included
in other comprehensive income (loss)

Years Ended September 30

2010 2009
Foreign u.S. Total Foreign u.S. Total
(amounts in thousands)
58 9 % 67 $ 54 % 7 61
66< 11€ 78t 68¢ 147 83€
(44¢) — (44¢) (45€) — (45€)
42 30 72 9 (30 (22)
321 158 $ 47¢  $ 29€ $ 124 42C
— 18 % 18 % — $ 13 13
— 69 69 — 66 66
— 65 65 — (18) (18)
— 152 $ 152 $ — 3 61 61
1,04¢ 2 3 1,05C $ 277 $ 182 45¢
— (55) (55) — 252 252
1,04¢ (53 $ 99t $ 277 $ 434 711
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The following table presents an analysis of thenglea in 2010 and 2009 of the benefit obligatioa,fglan assets and the funded status of the plans:

Years Ended September 30

2010 2009
Foreign u.S. Total Foreign u.S. Total
(Amounts in thousands)
Pension:
Change in projected benefit obligation (“PBQO”)

Balance beginning of year $ 12,76¢ $ 2011 $ 1478 $ 1237 $ 1,966 $ 14,337
Service cost 58 9 67 54 7 61
Interest cost 66¢ 11€ 78t 68¢ 147 83€
Changes in actuarial assumptions 1,24¢ 32 1,28( 854 151 1,00t
Foreign exchange impact (357) — (357) (80€) — (80¢)
Benefits paid (26¢) (279) (542) (391 (260) (651)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 14,11¢  $ 1,89t $ 16,01:  $ 12,76¢ $ 2,011 $ 14,78(

Changes in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 7,41C $ — 3 7,41C $ 7,44, $ — % 7,444
Actual gain on plan assets 60€ — 60€ 79€ — 79¢€
Company contributions 30¢€ 278 57¢ 28¢ 26C 54¢
Foreign exchange impact (117) — (117) (729) — (729
Benefits paid (26€) (273) (547) (390) (260) (650)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 7931 $ — 3 7,931 $ 7,410 $ — 7,41(
Funded status $ (618) $ (1,899 $ (807¢ $ (5359 $ (2,01) $ (7,370

Unamortized net loss — — — _ _ _

Net amount recognized $ (6,18) $ (1,89 $ (8,076 $ (5,359 $ (2,01) $ (7,370

Post Retirement
Change in projected benefit obligation (“PBO”):

Balance beginning of year $ — 3 1,197 $ 1,197 $ —  $ 88t $ 88t
Service cost — 18 18 — 13 13
Interest cost — 68 68 — 66 66
Changes in actuarial assumptions — 10 10 — 23¢ 23¢

Foreign exchange impact — — — — — _
Benefits paid — — — — — _

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ — % 1,29 $ 1,29  $ — % 1,197 $ 1,197

Changes in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year — — — — — —
Actual gain/(loss) on plan assets — — — — — —
Company contributions — — — — _ _
Foreign exchange impact — — — — — _
Benefits paid from plan assets — — — _ _ _

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ — % — % — % — 3 — 3% _

Funded status $ — 3 (1,299 $ (1,299 $ — % (1,19) $ (1,197
Unamortized net loss — — — _ — _

Net amount recognized $ — 3 (1,299 $ (1,299 $ — 3 (1,199 $ (1,199
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The amounts recognized in the consolidated balsineet consist of:

Years Ended September 30

2010 2009
Foreign u.S. Total Foreign u.S. Total
(Amounts in thousands)

Pension:

Accrued benefit liability $ (6,18) $ (1,895 $ (8,07¢) $ (5,359 $ (2,01 $ (7,370
Deferred tax 48 — 48 (145) o (145
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,98t 92 3,077 2,131 90 2,221
Net amount recognize $ (3149 $  (1809) $ (495D $  (B37H) $  (192) $ (529

Post Retirement

Accrued benefit liability $ — $ (1,299 $ (1,299 $ — 3 (1,199 $ (1,199
Deferred tax — — — — — —
Accumulated other comprehensive income — 14z 14z — 19€ 19¢€
Net amount recognize $ — $ (1,157 $ (1,157 $ — (1,00) $ (1,007

Total pension and post retirement:

Accrued benefit liability $ (6,180) $ (3,18¢) $ (9,369 $ (5,359 $ (3,20¢) $ (8,567
Deferred tax 48 — 48 (145) o (145
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,98t 234 3,21¢ 2,131 28€ 2,417
Net amount recognize $ (3,149 $ (2,959 $ (6,109 $ (3379 $ (2,929 $ (6,295

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

Pension $ (14000 $ (1,89) $ (1590) $ (1267) $ (201 $ (14,689
Post Retirement — (1,299 (1,299 — (1,197 (1,197)
Total accumulated benefit obligation $ (14000 $ (3,18) $ (17199 $ (1267) $ (3,209 $ (1588

Plans with projected benefit obligations in exoafsglan assets are attributable to unfunded domsapiplemental retirement plans, our German
plans which are legally not required to be funded aur U.K. retirement plan.

Accrued benéefit liability reported as:

September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
Current accrued benefit liability $ 441 $ 447
Noncurrent accrued benefit liabilit 8,92¢ 8,12(
Total accrued benefit liability $ 9,36¢ $ 8,567

As of September 30, 2010 and 2009 the amountsdadlin accumulated other comprehensive income jstedsof deferred net losses totaling
approximately $3.2 million and $2.4 million, respeely.

The amount of net deferred loss expected to begrezed as a component of net periodic benefit fmygthe year ending September 30, 2011, is
approximately $146 thousand.

Contributions
The Company expects to contribute $441 thousaitd fension plans for fiscal 2011.
Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect exjgetfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid (amounts in thousands):

(Amounts in
Fiscal year ending September 30: thousands)

2011 $ 572




2012 64:

2013 647
2014 754
2015 797
Thereafter 4,38¢
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Plan Assets

At September 30, 2010, our pension plan in the Wk#s the only plan with assets, holding investmehtpproximately $7.9 million. Pension plan
assets are managed by a fiduciary committee. Timep@ny’s investment strategy for pension plan asséb maximize the long-term rate of return csnpl
assets within an acceptable level of risk whilentahing adequate funding levels. Local regulaijdacal funding rules, and local financial and tax
considerations are part of the funding and investrpeocess. In deciding on the investments thddd, the trustees take into account the risk gbjide
fluctuations in income from, and market valuestlo§, assets as well as the risk of departing frorasset profile which broadly matches the liability
profile. The committee has invested the plan adset single pooled fund with an authorized inwesit company. The fund selected by the trustees is
consistent with the plan’s overall investment pipies and strategy described herein. There aspaoific targets as to asset allocation other thase
contained within the pooled fund that is managethleyauthorized investment company.

The fair value of the assets held by the UK penplan, by asset category, are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered &

Fair Value at
(Thousands) September 30,
Asset Category 2010 Level | Level Il Level Il
Cash on deposit $ 38¢ $ 38¢ $ _ —
Pooled Funds 7,54¢ — 7,54¢ —
Total Plan Assets $ 7937 $ 38¢ $ 7,54¢ —

The expected lonterm rates of return on plan assets are equaktgiéhds to maturity of appropriate indices for gpyment and corporate bonds
by adding a premium to the government bond retorrefjuities. The expected rate of return on casha Bank of England base rate in force at thecgife
date.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans in déimesd international locations under which the @amy matches a portion of the employee’s
contributions and may make discretionary contritmsito the plans. The Company’s contributions vdr&l thousand and $178 thousand for the years ende
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
11. Lines of Credit

As of September 30, 2010 and September 30, 206 dmpany maintained lines of credit notes thatafor borrowings of up to $2.5
million. Availability under these facilities isdaced by outstanding borrowings thereunder. Trexést rates on outstanding borrowings range fr&%?2.
over the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) Wit floor of 4% to Prime plus 1%. Borrowings unttex credit agreements are required to be repaid on
demand by the lender in some cases, upon termmatithe agreements or may be prepaid by the Coynwithout penalty. The credit agreements contain
various covenants including financial covenantscivhiequire the Company to maintain various findmeitios at prescribed levels. The Company is in
compliance with all covenants as of September 8002

The Company had no borrowings outstanding unddinis of credit as of September 30, 2010 and Sapte 30, 2009.
12. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company occupies office space under leaseragres expiring at various dates during the nex figars. The leases are classified as operating
leases and provide for the payment of real estist insurance, utilities and maintenance.

The Company was obligated under non-cancelableatipgrieases as follows:

(Amounts

Fiscal year ending September 30: in thousands)

2011 1,02(
2012 69¢€
2013 562
2014 497
2015 21¢
Thereafter 9
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Occupancy expenses under the operating leasesxappted $1.4 million in 2010 and $1.6 million inGM
Common Stock Repurchase
On February 3, 2009, the Board of Directors auteatithe Company to purchase up to 350 thousant@udishares of the Company’s outstanding
common stock at market price. Pursuant to the afentioned authorization and an authorization bytmard of directors on November 13, 2007 to purehas
250 thousand shares, the Company repurchased appteky 95 thousand shares of its outstanding comstack during the year ended September 30, 2010
As of September 30, 2010, approximately 145 thodiséwares remain authorized to repurchase undstoitk repurchase program.
13. Segment and Geographical Information

The following table presents certain operating sagnmformation.

Service and System Integration Segment

Systems Consolidatec
Years Ended September 30, Segment Germany UK us Total Total
(Amounts in thousands)
2010
Sales:
Product 488t $ 1536¢ $ 50 $ 58,43¢ 73,85 $ 78,74
Service 3,42% 8,58 1,58t 2,68k 12,85: 16,27¢
Total sales 8,311 23,95: 1,63t 61,12; 86,707 95,01¢
Profit (loss) from operations (316) (159 (81) 1,69: 1,45¢ 1,142
Assets 13,40( 11,56¢ 3,66 12,747 27,97¢ 41,37¢
Capital expenditures 78 26C 30 11F 40¢F 48%
Depreciation and amortization 114 171 27 20C 39¢ 512
2009
Sales:
Product 6,068 $ 1558( $ 152 $ 45,44 61,18: $ 67,231
Service 1,932 9,33¢ 2,04¢ 2,801 14,18¢ 16,12(
Total sales 7,987 24,927 2,201 48,24 75,37( 83,35
Profit (loss) from operations (684) (728) 112 (3,629 (4,24%) (4,929
Assets 13,56¢ 11,95: 4,16: 10,80¢ 26,92: 40,48¢
Capital expenditures 61 24¢ 13 79 341 40z
Depreciation and amortization 182 124 27 24¢€ 397 57¢

Profit (loss) from operations is sales less costatés, engineering and development, selling, géaed administrative expenses but is not affected

by either non-operating charges/income or by inctawes. Non-operating charges/income consists ipgtg of interest income/expense and foreign

exchange gain/loss.

All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.
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The following table details the Company’s saleopgrating segment for fiscal years September 300 20d 2009. The Company’s sales by
geographic area based on the location of wherprthducts were shipped or services rendered amalas/:

% of
2010 Americas Europe Asia Total Total
(Amounts in thousands)
Systems 723¢ % — % 1,072 $ 8,311 9%
Service and System Integration 60,55¢ 26,11¢ 34 86,70 91%
Total 67,79 $ 26,11¢ $ 1,106 $ 95,01¢ 100%
% of Total 71% 28% 1% 10(%
% of
2009 Americas Europe Asia Total Total
(Amounts in thousands)
Systems 579¢ $ — % 2,18¢ $ 7,981 10%
Service and System Integration 47,94¢ 27,38 34 75,37( 90%
Total 53,74¢ $ 27,387 $ 2,22: $ 83,357 100%
% of Total 64% 33% 3% 10(%

Substantially all Americas amounts are United State
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Long-lived assets by geographic location at Seper@b, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

September 30, September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
North America $ 98t % 1,11¢
Europe 57¢ 51¢€
Totals $ 156( $ 1,632

Deferred tax assets by geographic location at Seyee30, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

September 30, September 30,

2010 2009

(Amounts in thousands)
North America $ 377 $ 40C
Europe 627 50¢
Totals $ 1,00 $ 90¢

The Company had one customer from which we denigednues in excess of 10% of total revenues foydlaes ended September 30, 2010 and
2009, listed below.

Years Ended

September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009
% of % of
Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Verio $ 22.F 2% $ 8.1 10%

14. Restructuring Expense

In connection with reductions in workforce in ther@®an and U.K. divisions of Modcomp, the Companyraed a restructuring charge of
approximately $268 thousand in the fourth quartdiseal 2009, which was charged to services cbstes expense. This amount consists of termimatio
payments to affected employees.

15. Loss Contingency

We record estimated loss contingencies when infoomds available that indicates that it is prokeathlat a material loss has been incurred or an
has been impaired and the amount of the loss cagdsenably estimated. We disclose if the assedsnuocates that a potentially material loss cogéincy
is not probable but is reasonably possible, oradgble but cannot be estimated, or if an exposul@ss exists in excess of the amount accrueds Los
contingencies considered remote are generallyisokoded. Determining the likelihood of incurrindjability and estimating the amount of the liatyili
involves judgment by management. If the event tesnlan outcome that has greater adverse conseggiamus than management expects, then we may
to record additional charges in future periods.

The Company’s U.S. Modcomp division (“Modcomp U)Swhich is part of the Service and System Intégrasegment, had a pricing dispute (the
“Dispute”) with one of its largest hardware manufaers (the “Hardware Manufacturer”). The Disputese through the discovery that Modcomp U.S. was
buying some products from the Hardware Manufactaréistributors at incorrect prices. The prices ti@te incorrect arose from Modcomp U.S. and thfe
the Hardware Manufacturer’s distributors misapmyttiscounts that were available for specific pragdier certain customers to customers for whomethes
discounts were not available.

In July 2009, the Company settled with the Hardwdesmufacturer with respect to a portion of the s@stions in which incorrect discounts were

used. However, there are additional affected treties, which are subject to further review by Herdware Manufacturer which must be resolved befgre
will be able to agree on a final settlement witbpect to these remaining transactions.
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For the year ended September 30, 2009, we accpprdxamately $337 thousand in additional cost éésaapproximately $174 thousand of which
was paid to the Hardware Manufacturer under thitesent referred to above. We also reduced comamissind income tax expense by approximately $98
thousand and $103 thousand, for a net impact abappately $137 thousand of additional net loss tfie year ended September 30, 2009, in connection
with the Dispute. These amounts represented otielsémates of the liability associated with theite for all transactions involved, whether sdtte still
under review. This estimate was based on the aggmtpat all of the transactions that were stiltar review would be resolved in substantiallyshme
manner that the settled transactions had beenubecaanagement believed that the facts and ciramees of the transactions still under review agestime
as for the transactions that had been settled. Menvthe Hardware Manufacturer had advised ustliegt needed more time to review the remaining &féc
transactions, and accordingly had not yet agreeestolve the remaining transactions in the sameneraas the previously settled transactions. Acoopgli
there was a contingent liability with respect te tinsettled transactions, because the Hardwarefitatoter could assert a claim for amounts in exoésise
estimates that we accrued in connection with trepte. The Company had assessed that an additimmé@hgent loss related to the Dispute was readpnab
possible, but not probable. Therefore, an accradlrtot been recorded for the loss contingency &epfember 30, 2009. For loss contingencies sexdes
the reasonably possible level, the loss contingemast be disclosed and an estimate or range oftp@$sss must also be disclosed in the eventahat
reasonable estimate can be made. Accordingly, Ssgtiember 30, 2009, we estimated the range dbslsecontingency associated with the Dispute was
between $0 and $389 thousand.

In July 2010, the Hardware Manufacturer informedhag they had calculated an additional assessim@annection with the Dispute of
approximately $306 thousand. As a result of tleiw mformation, we reevaluated the likelihood o thss, and we determined that the loss was prelzatal
estimable. Although we were still negotiating rzafisettlement with the Hardware Manufacturer, wednined that the amount that had been provided to
by the Hardware Manufacturer of approximately $8@fusand, was the best estimate of the loss, #tithe. Accordingly, we accrued an additional $306
thousand as cost of sales for the nine months ehda®se 30, 2010.

In August 2010, we completed our negotiations whth Hardware Manufacturer. As a result of thesetiations, the final settlement agreed to
between the Company and the Hardware manufactagiapproximately $47 thousand less then than tleisimeferred to above of $306 thousand, which
was our best estimate of the contingent loss dsimé 30, 2010. Accordingly, we reduced our acdarahis contingent loss by approximately $47 tramds
resulting in a final increase to cost of sales essalt of this settlement of approximately $258usand for the year ended September 30, 2010. afitmsint
was paid to the Hardware manufacturer during thal fijuarter of fiscal 2010.

16. Fair Value Measures

Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value oacairring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Gain
Instruments Inputs Input Total or
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Balance (loss)
As of September 30, 201
(Amounts in thousands)
Assets:
Money Market funds $ 3,48 $ —  $ —  $ 3,48 $ —
Total assets measured at fair value $ 3,48 $ —  $ —  $ 3,48: $ —
As of September 30, 200
(Amounts in thousands)
Assets:
Money Market funds $ 6,84 $ — $ — $ 6,84( $ —
Total assets measured at fair value $ 6,84( $ —  $ — 3 6,84( $ =

These assets are included in cash and cash equs/alehe accompanying consolidated balance shédt®ther monetary assets and liabilities are
short-term in nature and approximate their faiueal

The Company had no liabilities measured at fain@als of September 30, 2010. The Company had etsassliabilities measured at fair value on a
non recurring basis as of September 30, 2010.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21.1

Each of the below listed subsidiaries is 100% diyemvned by CSP Inc. except as otherwise indicaaed all are included in the consolidated

financial statements.

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY

STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION
OF INCORPORATION/ ORGANIZATION

CSP Inc. Securities Corp.
43 Manning Road
Billerica, MA 01821-3901

CSP Inc. Foreign Sales Corp., Ltd.
43 Manning Road
Billerica, MA 01821-3901

Modcomp, Inc (1).
1500 South Powerline Road
Deerfield Beach, FL 33442

Q) Modcomp has three subsidiaries operating iro

Massachusetts

U.S. Virgin Islands

Florida



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-64493, 333-124030;133®31 and 333-151024 on Form S-8 of

CSP Inc. of our report dated December 22, 201ating to our audits of the consolidated financtateaments which appear in this Annual Report omror
10-K of CSP Inc. for the year ended September G002

/sl McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 22, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Alexander R. Lupinetti, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCSP Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does naotado@ny untrue statement of a material fact ort éamstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememits other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defined in Excha
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfist report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over finahm@aorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurancesdiegathe reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting, ttee
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors:

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakmesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamniatmation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have #icagn role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: December 22, 2010
By: /s/ A LEXANDER R. L UPINETTI
Alexander R. Lupinetti
Chief Executive Officer;
President and Chairman




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Gary W. Levine, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCSP Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does naotado@ny untrue statement of a material fact ort éamstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememits other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defined in Excha
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfist report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over finahm@aorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurancesdiegathe reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting, ttee
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors:

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakmesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamniatmation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have #icagn role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: December 22, 2010
By: /s/ G ARY W. L EVINE
Gary W. Levine
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10#C&P Inc. (the “Company’fpr year ended September 30, 2010, as filed wighSbcurities ar
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8ptne undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Bempany, certifies, to the best knowledge and belie
of the signatory, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectior0135 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwmAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: December 22, 2010
By: /s/ A LEXANDER R. L UPINETTI
Alexander R. Lupinetti
Chief Executive Officer;
President and Chairman




EXHIBIT 32.2

18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANTT O
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10#C&P Inc. (the “Company’fpr year ended September 30, 2010, as filed wighSbcurities ar
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pthre undersigned Chief Financial Officer, ViceeBident of Finance, Chief Financial Officer of the

Company, certifies, to the best knowledge and befithe signatory, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti8h(, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBash
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exd®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: December 22, 2010

By: /s/ G ARY W. L EVINE

Gary W. Levine
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 10.10

2011 Variable Compensation (Executive Bonus) and Ba
Program for CSP Inc. Executive Management

The 2011 Variable Compensation and Base Pay pragpaovide the opportunity for incentive earningsVice Presidents and General Managers based on
how well they and the company perform.

The Variable Compensation Program places emphasismpany performance and is focused on the bissieedities of the coming year. If CSPI does well,
Vice Presidents and General Managers will too.

The Base Pay Program for Vice Presidents and GleMearsagers contains a merit budget which placesmjum on personal performance. Both programs
are designed to encourage Vice Presidents and &8évianagers to provide the leadership and direateEressary to achieve the company’s business goals.

These programs have three important goals:
1. motivate performance
2. becompetitive
3. position the company to capitalize on the progitssakes this yea
Competitive Compensation
The programs deliver a level of pay that is fulymparable to what other people in similar positiondifferent companies receive. The company knthas
its pay levels must be competitive to attract atein the talent we need to succeed as a compamyiedt highlytrained and uniquely skilled people to m

decisions and provide the leadership that will hed@achieve our business goals.

The review of the pay practices of our peer comgmahows that Vice President and General Managelrpesitions contain a merit pay component as well
as variable compensation. Personal performanceurezhagainst individual goals will determine eagbéPresident and General Managers’' merit increase.

Variable Compensation

The Variable Compensation target incentive for \Reesidents and General Managers is 20-50% ofgmseEach Vice President and General Manager will
have their entire Variable Compensation based Ravenue and Operating Income matrix for their dfmecperation.

Individual Performance Component
The individual performance component determinesnbat increase percentage for Vice PresidentsGertkeral Managers.
The program scores individual performance for tiloWwing goals:

MBOs

Accountabilities

Group Performance Factors
Leadership

MBOs are performance improvement initiatives. Aatabilities are the day-to-day responsibilitiesha job. Group performance factors are team
achievement targets.

Leadership is a critical success factor for CSP0h1, because we need leaders to motivate anddeeaple to drive our business growth in 2011. In
evaluating leadership, CSP will measure severabitapt factors linked to how well Vice Presidemntsl &eneral Managers align their priorities and tfat
their people with the company’s business stratedibe leadership evaluation will be determined bw lwell participants:

Communicate and implement the strategic directionFoster the development of a strategy for their which is consistent with and supportive of the
company’s. Ensure that everyone in their orgaropatias goals and accountabilities linked to thetegies, and that they are held accountable foredidg
on them. Understand that implementing strategies engail significant changes, and that will meaarges in them as well as their organization.




Create and sustain a culture focused on customermguality, and people.Seek to understand the emerging culture and leaxémyple. Personally engage
in behaviors which reflect our culture, and holdgh in their organization accountable for that al.iReinforce the importance of the culture by dlséion
they take: select people who demonstrate the ditgdbi more responsibility; reward those who dwdacommunicate your support.

Motivate and develop your employeesSet high performance standards, communicate expeeselts and behaviors, and provide regular fesdtm
employees. Identify and remove barriers to empleg@eess and be open to their ideas for improver@amhplete appraisals on time and reward employees
for results. Insure that all employees have devatap plans which reflect company and individuatrests. Delegate responsibility to employees based
their capabilities and interests. Increase emplej&bility, decision making and responsibility. tédct, retain and develop people of diverse baakupis.

Be open to developing yoursellUnderstand your own strengths and development needsstrive to be more effective by building oa strengths and
overcoming weak areas. Become an active learnen tgpnew ideas and approaches. Seek feedbacloftmrs, including your peers, direct reports ansk!



EXHIBIT 10.11
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

This Change of Control Agreement (the "Agreetf)da made and entered into effective as of Jantiar 2008, by and between Alexander R. Lupinéit
"Executive") and CSP, Inc., a Massachusetts cotiporavith principle offices at 43 Manning Road, IBiica, Massachusetts, 01821 (the "Company").

Whereas, the Executive is and has been employed by the Coymahis currently the Company's President andf@&hecutive Officer; and

Whereas,it is expected that the Company may, from timert@tconsider the possibility of an acquisition Ipther company or other Change of Control
defined in Section 5 below), and the Company reizagrthat such consideration can be a distractidhet Executive and can cause the Executive taadens
alternative employment opportunities; and

Whereas, the Company has determined that it is in the inéstests of the Company and its stockholderssoii@ that the Company will have the continued
dedication and objectivity of the Executive, nohgitanding the possibility, threat or occurrenca @hange of Control of the Company; and

Whereas,the Company and the Executive desire to entertiisbAgreement to provide financial security to Eheecutive and to encourage the Executive to
continue his employment with and dedication toGloenpany;

Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows:
1. Duties and Scope of Employment.

1.1 Position.The Company shall employ the Executive in the pmsibf President and Chief Executive Officer, ashsposition has been defined in terms
of responsibilities and compensation as of thecéffe date of this Agreement; provided, howeveat the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Boardiak
have the right, at any time prior to the occurreoice Change of Control, to revise such resporisésland compensation as the Board in its disametiay
deem necessary or appropriate, subject to the ptbersions of this Agreement. The Executive shathply with and be bound by the Company's operating
policies, procedures and practices from time tetimeffect during his employment. During the terhthe Executive's employment with the Company, the
Executive shall continue to devote his full timk]lsand attention to his duties and responsitatitiand shall perform them faithfully, diligentlyda
competently, and the Executive shall use his Hféstte to further the business of the Company asdffiliated entities. The foregoing shall notyeet the
Executive from a reasonable amount of service erbtiards of directors of any entities, subjechtoterms of any non-competition obligations he maye
to the Company from time to time, nor from engagimgcademic, religious, charitable or other comityuor non-profit activities that do not impair his
ability to fulfill his duties and responsibilitiesider this Agreement.

1.2. Base Compensatioimhe Company shall pay the Executive as compenshtidnis services a base salary at the annualetedto be established by
the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Coraptton Committee”). Such salary shall be paidquically in accordance with normal Company
payroll practices. The annualized compensationiipédn this Section 1.2, as such compensation b&increased or (subject to the other provisidrikis
Agreement) decreased by the Board or the Compensatmmittee, is referred to in this AgreementBase Compensation.”

1.3 Variable CompensationBeginning with the Company's current fiscal yeat for each fiscal year thereafter during the tefrthis Agreement, the
Executive shall be eligible to receive additionalc compensation under the Company's Variable Cosagtien Program (the "Variable Compensation
Bonus") based upon specific financial and/or othegets approved by the Compensation Committee VEriable Compensation payable hereunder shall be
payable in accordance with the Company's normatiges and policies.




1.4 Executive BenefitsThe Executive shall be eligible to participatehie Employee benefit plans and executive compemsptagrams maintained by 1
Company applicable to other key executives of thm@any, including (without limitation) retiremeniaps, SERPs, savings or profit-sharing plans, stock
option, incentive or other bonus plans, life, digh health, accident and other insurance prograpaid vacations, and similar plans or programisjest in
each case to the generally applicable terms andittmms of the applicable plan or program in quasind to the sole determination of the Board gr an
committee administering such plan or program.

1.5 Employment Relationship. The Executive's employment is and shall contiouge defined and governed by the terms of the Bympént Agreemer
between CSP, Inc. and Alexander R. Lupinetti, d&eptember 12, 1996 (the “Employment Agreemengsupplemented by the provisions of this
Agreement. If the Executive's employment termin&desny reason, the Executive shall not be eutiteany payments, benefits, damages, awards or
compensation other than (i) payment of amountseebon accrued as of the date of termination of egmpent, (i) as provided by (a) the Employment
Agreement, (b) this Agreement or (c) required lwy, lar (iii) as may otherwise be available in aceorce with the Company's established employee plads
policies (including any deferred compensation platshe time of termination.

1.6 Termination for Cause, Death or Disability o Voluntary Resignation. If the Executive voluntarily resigns from the Coamy, or if the Company
terminates the Executive's employment for Caudeeoause of the Executive’s Death or Disabilitynttiee Executive shall not be entitled to receive
severance or other benefits described in Sectioeiaiv.

2. Release

All payments due to the Executive under this Agreetishall be conditioned upon and are in consitberatf the execution by the Executive of a full e
in a form reasonably prescribed by the Company |€&se"), releasing the Company and its officengalors, employees and advisors from any and all
liability to and including the date of the Termiioat Notice or Change in Status, save only for ctafor breach of this Agreement.

3. Non-Solicitation

In consideration of the Company paying the bendiscribed in Section 4 below, Executive agreessftina period of six months after he leaves the
employment of Company, Executive shall not, eittiezctly or indirectly: (1) make known to any pemséirm or corporation the names and/or addrestes o
any of the customers or employees of Company oo#myr information pertaining to them; (2) take svaay of the customers of Company on whom
Executive called, or with whom Executive dealt ecéme acquainted during Executive’s employment @idmpany; or (3) interfere with the business of
Company in any manner including the recruiting ioinj of any employee of Company. Executive furtagrees that Company would be irreparably harmed
in the event of a breach of this provision, and thaney damages would not be an adequate remedgordingly, in addition to any other remedies aafali

at law or in equity, Company shall be entitled bdain injunctive relief against any such breackhoeatened breach.

4. Change of Control.
4.1 Severance Payments; Benefits.

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Change of Contral, te Company Terminates the Executive other floaiCause either in anticipation of or as
required to accomplish a Change of Control, thechttee shall be entitled to receive a severancengsy equal to the sum of (i) two times the Exe@isiv
Base Compensation for the Company's fiscal year itheffect or if greater, two times the ExecusvBase Compensation for the Company's fiscal year
immediately preceding the year in which the Terriarmaoccurs, plus (ii) two times the Executive'sndial Target Variable Compensation Bonus for theaf
year then in effect (or, if no Target Incentivérieffect for such year, then the highest Varidbtenpensation Bonus or other aggregate bonus(asligct
paid to the Executive in any of the three (3) pdiug fiscal years); provided, however, that a sijRelease must be received by the Company from the
Executive prior to and as a condition of receivéngeverance payment. Any severance payments thwiedExecutive is entitled pursuant to this Sectidl
shall be paid to the Executive (or to the Exectgiestate or beneficiary in the event of the Exeelst death) in a lump sum within fifteen (15) dayshe
Executive's Termination Date.




(b) Notwithstanding anything in the previous paeguip or elsewhere in this Agreement, if the CompBenyminates the Executive other than for
Cause either in anticipation of or as requireddmoanplish or otherwise substantially contemporasbowith a Change of Control, the Company shallvjae
the Executive with notice of such Termination, &mel Termination shall not be effective until thelei the Notice Period. The Notice Period shalkexit
until the later of sixty days after the expiratiminany period that the Executive must hold shanghé Company in order (i) to avoid liability und&ection 16
(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedror (ii) to comply, at the Company’s reasonabtpiest or the Executive’s reasonable initiativigh w
any other legal or accounting regulations or rezqagnts. Provided, however, that in calculatingpingments to be made to the Executive pursuantdtioBe
4.1(a) above, any compensation paid to the Exezutith respect to his employment during the NoReeiod shall be deducted from the payments duerunde
Section 4.1(a).

4.2 Option Acceleration. Effective upon a Change in Control (as defindldWwen Section 5) of the Company, all Options aresRicted Stock Awards
granted to the Executive and then outstanding uadgiStock Option Plan of the Company shall beceregcisable and vested in full, and all restricgion
thereon shall lapse, notwithstanding any vestimgduale or other provisions to the contrary in theeaments evidencing such options; and the Comaady
the Executive hereby agree that such Option agnesna@d Restricted Stock Awards are hereby andoeileemed amended to give effect to this provision

4.3 Health and Welfare Benefits Following a Change in Control, the Executivellsba entitled to continue, for two years, to reeeihe same or
comparable health and welfare benefits as he gaated in prior to the Change in Control, such atsriot limited to life, disability, health, medicalental,
accident and other insurance programs (“Benefitsl'the “Benefit Plans”). The Company shall provedeh Benefits to the Executive by one or a
combination of the following: (i) continuing thexécutive as a participant under the Company’s thenent benefit plans (provided such plans are
comparable to the Company plans prior to the Cham@mntrol), (ii) paying the full premium for tHexecutive to purchase continuing coverage under the
Benefit Plans, under COBRA and/or (jii) paying teecutive a lump sum payment in the amount necg$sathe Executive to purchase individual coverage
under insurance programs comparable to the Beplafits.

4.4 Exercise of Stock Options; Payment of Requiretlaxes. Following a Change of Control, the Executive rtale any or all of the following actions;
Provided, however, that the Executive shall nogétaRy such action if the Company reasonably regleat he not do so, in order for the company topg
with or receive favorable treatment under lega@rounting requirements: pay any portion of therese price of any Options and/or satisfy any tax
withholding with respect to either the exerciséptions or the vesting of Restricted Stock Awargs b

(i) delivering to the Company outstanding shafesommon stock of the Company, valued at theirtpprice of a share of such stock on the last
trading day preceding the date of delivery (the thé& Price”) and/or

(i) authorizing the Company to withhold fronsignce pursuant to the exercise of any such Optigasting of Restricted Stock a number of shares
of common stock otherwise issuable that, when piidd by the Market Price of the common stock,gaa to the aggregate exercise price being
paid and/or tax being withheld (and such withhdidres shall no longer be issuable under the apidicaption or Restricted Stock Award).




5. Definition of Terms.

5.1 Terminate/Termination. “Terminate,” “Terminates,” and “Termination” shatean either (a) the termination of the Execugvemployment with th
Company or (b) a Change in Status of the Executiselefined below.

5.2 Change in StatusA "Change in Status" of the Executive shall meandbcurrence, without the Executive's written cahsaf any of the following
circumstances (unless such circumstances constituisolated, insubstantial and inadvertent agatimirtaken in bad faith and are promptly and fudynediec
by the Company after receipt of notice thereoftmy Executive): (a) any diminution or change in ainea adverse to the Executive of (i) his title jasfor
position with the Company, (i) his salary, bonaspther benefits, or (iii) his duties, respongileis or employment condition, (b) any breach & th
Agreement, including without limitation the failuby the Company to pay to the Executive any portibhis compensation, (c) the Company's requirimgg t
Executive to be based at any office or locationartbhan 35 miles from the company’s current maiicefér the Company's requiring the Executive tedtra
on Company business to a substantially greatenettian required immediately before the date af &kgreement, or (d) any purported termination kgy th
Company of the Executive's employment otherwisa tmexpressly permitted by this Agreement.

5.3 Cause. "Cause" shall mean (a) any act of personal dissiyrtaken by the Executive in connection withreEponsibilities as an employee and
intended to result in substantial personal enriaftroéthe Executive, (b) conviction of a felony theinjurious to the Company, (c) a willful act bye
Executive which constitutes gross misconduct anithvis injurious to the Company, and (d) continveaations by the Executive of the Executive's
obligations under Section 1 of this Agreement t#ratdemonstrably willful and deliberate on the Exie's part (and not resulting from any conditibat
constitutes, or with the passage of time would tituis, a Disability (as defined below)) after tedras been delivered to the Executive a writtenashehfior
performance from the Company which describes tisesliar the Company's belief that the Executiveratssubstantially performed his duties, in eacteca
as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

5.4 Change of Control. "Change of Control" shall mean the occurrencernyf of the following events:

(a) Any transaction or series of transactions, eesalt of which any “person” (as such term is use8ections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act
and the rules and regulations thereunder) (otlzr (f) the Company, (ii) a person that directlyrafirectly controls the Company on the date of this
Agreement, (iii) a person that is controlled byisounder common control with the Company or (ivy ane or more employee benefit plans or relatestgru
established for the benefit of the employees ofGbhmpany or any affiliate of the Company) becom#éseaeficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under
the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of seities of the Company representing fifty percen@®r more of the total voting power representedhay
Company'’s then outstanding voting securities; or

(b) A change in the composition of the Board ofe@tors of the Company occurring within a two-yeariqd, as a result of which fewer than a
majority of the directors are Incumbent Directdiscumbent Directors" shall mean directors who eitfi) are directors of the Company as of the tiateof,
or (ii) are elected, or nominated for electiontiie Board of Directors of the Company with theraffitive votes of at least a majority of the Incumtbe
Directors at the time of such election or nomiraifbout shall not include an individual not othergven Incumbent Director whose election or nomimaisan
connection with an actual or threatened proxy cgirating to the election of directors to the @amy); or

(c) A merger or consolidation of the Company witly @ther corporation or entity, other than a mergeronsolidation which would result in the
voting securities of the Company outstanding immatedy prior thereto continuing to represent (eityeremaining outstanding or by being converted int
voting securities of the surviving entity) at lefi&y percent (50%) of the total voting power repented by the voting securities of the Comparsuoh
surviving entity outstanding immediately after suwarger or consolidation, or the approval by tlveldtolders of the Company of an agreement for atee s
or disposition by the Company of all or substahtiall the company's assets.




5.5 Disability. "Disability" shall mean that the Executive hasb&nable to substantially perform his duties urtldisrAgreement as the result of his
incapacity due to physical or mental illness, amchsnability, at least 26 weeks after its commenest, is determined to be total and permanent by a
physician selected by the Company or its insuredsseceptable to the Executive or the Executiegallrepresentative (such Agreement as to accéptabi
not to be unreasonably withheld). Nothing contaiherkin shall preclude the Company from appointingmploying any other person to carry out theeduti
and responsibilities of the Executive, nor shajt anch appointment or employment give rise to anghaof Status, in the event of the occurrence of a
physical or mental iliness or injury likely in tiheasonable judgement of the Company to result eaéintin a determination of Disability.

5.6 Stock Option Plan. A "Stock Option Plan" of the Company shall mean siogk option or equity compensation plan of thenany in effect at any
time, including without limitation the CSP, Inc.94BIncentive Stock Plan, 1997 Incentive Stock P2A93 Stock Incentive Plan, 2007 Stock IncentivanPI
and any other stock options granted to the Exeeufihe terms “Option” and “Restricted Stock Awastfiall have the meanings ascribed to them in ady su
Stock Option Plans.

6. Successors.

6.1 Company's SuccessorsThe Company shall cause any successor to the &uon(hether direct or indirect and whether by pase, lease, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to allsaubstantially all of the Company's business andtass assume the obligations under this Agreeimgsht
agree expressly to perform the obligations underAgreement in the same manner and to the samatead the Company would be required to perforrh
obligations in the absence of a succession. Fauagioses under this Agreement, the term "Compahal! include any such successor.

6.2 Executive's SuccessorsThe terms of this Agreement and all rights of Executive hereunder shall inure to the benefiaof] be enforceable by, the
Executive's personal or legal representatives, #gex; administrators, successors, heirs, deveseg$egatees.

7. Notice.

7.1 General. Notices and all other communications contemplatethis Agreement shall be in writing and shalldeemed to have been duly given when
personally delivered or two business days aftardeiailed by U.S. registered or certified mailuratreceipt requested and postage prepaid. Inabe af th:
Executive, mailed notices shall be addressed toahithe home address which he most recently conuated to the Company in writing. In the case of the
Company, mailed notices shall be addressed toitscate headquarters, and all notices shall leetid to the attention of its Secretary.

7.2 Notice of Termination or Change in Status. Any Termination by the Company or any claim bg Executive of a Change in Status shall be
communicated by a notice to the other party hegiaten in accordance with Section 7.1 of this AgreamSuch notice shall indicate the specific priovisn
this Agreement relied upon, shall set forth in ceeble detail the facts and circumstances claimguldvide a basis for Termination or Change of &tat
under the provision so indicated, and shall spebié/Date on which the Executive shall be Termishateon which the Change of Status occurred. The
failure by either party to include in the noticeydact or circumstance which contributes to a smowaf Cause or Change in Status shall not waiverighy
of the party hereunder or preclude the party freseging such fact or circumstance in enforcingigists hereunder.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions.

8.1 Waiver. No provision of this Agreement shall be modifiacived or discharged unless the modificationvemor discharge is agreed to in writing
and signed by the Executive and by an authorizideofof the Company (other than the Executive).viver by either party of any breach of, or of
compliance with, any condition or provision of thigreement by the other party shall be considenediger of any other condition or provision or bét
same condition or provision at another time.




8.2 Whole Agreement. No agreements, representations or understan(iirfgether oral or written and whether express ofligd) which are not
expressly set forth in this Agreement have beenenmai@ntered into by either party with respechmgubject matter hereof. The foregoing notwithditag
this Agreement is unrelated to, and shall haveffeztupon any deferred compensation agreementogram in effect regarding the Executive.

8.3 Choice of Law. The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of this Agreement shall be governed leylélwvs of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts without giving effect to its confliof laws principles.

8.4 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowsi or provisions of this Agreement shall not afféaet validity or enforceability of any
other provision hereof, which shall remain in fidice and effect.

8.5 No Assignment of Benefits The rights of any person to payments or benefitter this Agreement shall not be made subjegption or assignment,
either by voluntary or involuntary assignment ordperation of law, including (without limitationjpbkruptcy, garnishment, attachment or other crédito
process, and any action in violation of this Set8®% shall be void.

8.6 Employment Taxes. All payments made pursuant to this Agreement lpélsubject to withholding of applicable income antployment taxes.

8.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed an original, but &hbich together will constitute
one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has exettitis Agreement, in the case of the Company bgitg authorized officer, as of the day and year
first above written.

CSP, Inc. Executive

By: /s/ J. David Lyons /sl Alex R. Lupinett|

Title: Director




Exhibit 10.12
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

This Change of Control Agreement (the "Agreetf)ds made and entered into effective as of Janlid, 2008 by and between Gary Levine (the
"Executive") and CSP, Inc., a Massachusetts cotiporavith principle offices at 43 Manning Road, IBiica, Massachusetts, 01821 (the "Company").

Whereas, the Executive is and has been employed by the Coyrgoachis currently the Company's Chief Financididef; and

Whereas,it is expected that the Company may, from timert@tconsider the possibility of an acquisition Iopther company or other Change of Control
defined in Section 5 below), and the Company reizegrthat such consideration can be a distractiaghet Executive and can cause the Executive tadens
alternative employment opportunities; and

Whereas, the Company has determined that it is in the inéstests of the Company and its stockholderssoii@ that the Company will have the continued
dedication and objectivity of the Executive, nohgitanding the possibility, threat or occurrenca @hange of Control of the Company; and

Whereas,the Company and the Executive desire to entertiisoAgreement to provide financial security to Executive and to encourage the Executive to
continue his employment with and dedication toGloenpany;

Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows:
1. Duties and Scope of Employment.

1.1 Position.The Company shall employ the Executive in the pwsiof Chief Financial Officer, as such positiorsteen defined in terms of
responsibilities and compensation as of the effeaate of this Agreement; provided, however, thatCompany’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) $hal
have the right, at any time prior to the occurreoice Change of Control, to revise such resporigésland compensation as the Board in its disumetiay
deem necessary or appropriate, subject to the ptbeisions of this Agreement. The Executive shathply with and be bound by the Company's operating
policies, procedures and practices from time tetimeffect during his employment. During the terhthe Executive's employment with the Company, the
Executive shall continue to devote his full timki]lsand attention to his duties and responsitasitiand shall perform them faithfully, diligentlyda
competently, and the Executive shall use his Hféstte to further the business of the Company asdffiliated entities. The foregoing shall notyeet the
Executive from a reasonable amount of service erbtiards of directors of any entities, subjechoterms of any non-competition obligations he maye
to the Company from time to time, nor from engagimgcademic, religious, charitable or other comityuor non-profit activities that do not impair his
ability to fulfill his duties and responsibilitiesder this Agreement.

1.2. Base Compensatiormhe Company shall pay the Executive as compensftidms services a base salary at the annualaedto be established by
the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Coraptton Committee”). Such salary shall be paidquically in accordance with normal Company
payroll practices. The annualized compensationipédn this Section 1.2, as such compensation beincreased or (subject to the other provisidrkis
Agreement) decreased by the Board or the Compensatmmittee, is referred to in this AgreementBase Compensation.”

1.3 Variable CompensationBeginning with the Company's current fiscal yeat for each fiscal year thereafter during the tefrihis Agreement, the
Executive shall be eligible to receive additionaslc compensation under the Company's Variable Cosagtien Program (the "Variable Compensation
Bonus") based upon specific financial and/or othegets approved by the Compensation Committee VEriable Compensation payable hereunder shall be
payable in accordance with the Company's normatiges and policies.




1.4 Executive BenefitsThe Executive shall be eligible to participatehie Employee benefit plans and executive compemsptagrams maintained by 1
Company applicable to other key executives of thm@any, including (without limitation) retiremeniaps, SERPs, savings or profit-sharing plans, stock
option, incentive or other bonus plans, life, digh health, accident and other insurance prograpaid vacations, and similar plans or programisjest in
each case to the generally applicable terms andittmms of the applicable plan or program in quasind to the sole determination of the Board gr an
committee administering such plan or program.

1.5 Employment Relationship. The Executive's employment is and shall contiouge solely that of an employee at will, as supeted by the
provisions of this Agreement. If the Executive'spbmgment terminates for any reason, the Executiad! siot be entitled to any payments, benefits, aiges,
awards or compensation other than (i) payment afuants earned or accrued as of the date of termmimafiemployment, (ii) as provided by this Agreetnen
or required by law, or (iii) as may otherwise baiable in accordance with the Company's estatdigimeployee plans and policies (including any defirr
compensation and retirement plans) at the timerafination.

1.6 Termination for Cause, Death or Disability oVVoluntary Resignation. If the Executive voluntarily resigns from the Qoamy, or if the Company
terminates the Executive's employment for Caudeeoause of the Executive’s Death or Disabilitynttiee Executive shall not be entitled to receive
severance or other benefits described in Sectioeiaw.

2. Release

All payments due to the Executive under this Agreetishall be conditioned upon and are in consitberatf the execution by the Executive of a full e
in a form reasonably prescribed by the Company |€¢&se"), releasing the Company and its officengalors, employees and advisors from any and all
liability to and including the date of the Termiioatt Notice or Change in Status, save only for ctafor breach of this Agreement.

3. Non-Solicitation

In consideration of the Company paying the bendfiscribed in Section 4 below, Executive agreessftina period of six months after he leaves the
employment of Company, Executive shall not, eittiezctly or indirectly: (1) make known to any pemséirm or corporation the names and/or addrestes o
any of the customers or employees of Company oo#myr information pertaining to them; (2) take svaay of the customers of Company on whom
Executive called, or with whom Executive dealt ecbme acquainted during Executive’s employment @ampany; or (3) interfere with the business of
Company in any manner including the recruiting ioinj of any employee of Company. Executive furtagrees that Company would be irreparably harmed
in the event of a breach of this provision, and thaney damages would not be an adequate remedgordingly, in addition to any other remedies aafali

at law or in equity, Company shall be entitled ldain injunctive relief against any such breacthoeatened breach.

4. Change of Control.
4.1 Severance Payments; Benefits.

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Change of Contral, te Company Terminates the Executive other floaiCause either in anticipation of or as
required to accomplish a Change of Control, thechttee shall be entitled to receive a severancengsy equal to the sum of (i) the Executive's Base
Compensation for the Company's fiscal year thesffiect or if greater, the Executive's Base Compmsdor the Company's fiscal year immediately
preceding the year in which the Termination occplss (ii) the Executive's Annual Target Variablen@pensation Bonus for the fiscal year then in éffeg
if no Target Incentive is in effect for such yetlen the highest Variable Compensation Bonus @raigregate bonus(es) actually paid to the Exexiri
any of the three (3) preceding fiscal years); mtedi however, that a signed Release must be reckjwvthe Company from the Executive prior to and as
condition of receiving a severance payment. Anyesavce payments to which the Executive is entjl@duant to this Section 4.1 shall be paid to the
Executive (or to the Executive's estate or berafjcin the event of the Executive's death) in adisum within fifteen (15) days of the Executive's
Termination Date.




(b) Notwithstanding anything in the previous paeguip or elsewhere in this Agreement, if the CompBenyminates the Executive other than for
Cause either in anticipation of or as requireddmoanplish or otherwise substantially contemporasbowith a Change of Control, the Company shallvjae
the Executive with notice of such Termination, &mel Termination shall not be effective until thelei the Notice Period. The Notice Period shalkexit
until the later of sixty days after the expiratiminany period that the Executive must hold shanghé Company in order (i) to avoid liability und&ection 16
(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedror (ii) to comply, at the Company’s reasonabtpiest or the Executive’s reasonable initiativigh w
any other legal or accounting regulations or rezqagnts. Provided, however, that in calculatingpingments to be made to the Executive pursuantdtioBe
4.1(a) above, any compensation paid to the Exezutith respect to his employment during the NoReeiod shall be deducted from the payments duerunde
Section 4.1(a).

4.2 Option Acceleration. Effective upon a Change in Control (as defindldlwen Section 5) of the Company, all Options aresRicted Stock Awards
granted to the Executive and then outstanding uadgiStock Option Plan of the Company shall beceregcisable and vested in full, and all restricgion
thereon shall lapse, notwithstanding any vestimgduale or other provisions to the contrary in theeaments evidencing such options; and the Comaady
the Executive hereby agree that such Option agnesna@d Restricted Stock Awards are hereby andoeileemed amended to give effect to this provision

4.3 Health and Welfare Benefits Following a Change in Control, the Executivellsba entitled to continue, for one yeatr, to reesiire same or
comparable health and welfare benefits as he gaated in prior to the Change in Control, such atsriot limited to life, disability, health, medicalental,
accident and other insurance programs (“Benefitsl'the “Benefit Plans”). The Company shall provedeh Benefits to the Executive by one or a
combination of the following: (i) continuing thexécutive as a participant under the Company’s thenent benefit plans (provided such plans are
comparable to the Company plans prior to the Cham@mntrol), (ii) paying the full premium for tHexecutive to purchase continuing coverage under the
Benefit Plans, under COBRA and/or (jii) paying teecutive a lump sum payment in the amount necg$sathe Executive to purchase individual coverage
under insurance programs comparable to the Beplafits. This paragraph is not intended to limitféea any other COBRA benefits to which the Exeesiti
may be entitled.

4.4 Exercise of Stock Options; Payment of Requireflaxes. Following a Change of Control, the Executive rtelke any or all of the following actions;
Provided, however, that the Executive shall nogétaRy such action if the Company reasonably regleat he not do so, in order for the company topg
with or receive favorable treatment under lega@rounting requirements: pay any portion of therese price of any Options and/or satisfy any tax
withholding with respect to either the exerciségitions or the vesting of Restricted Stock Awargs b

(i) delivering to the Company outstanding shafesommon stock of the Company, valued at theirtpprice of a share of such stock on the last
trading day preceding the date of delivery (the thé& Price”) and/or

(i) authorizing the Company to withhold fronsignce pursuant to the exercise of any such Optigasting of Restricted Stock a number of shares
of common stock otherwise issuable that, when pilidd by the Market Price of the common stock,gaa to the aggregate exercise price being
paid and/or tax being withheld (and such withhéldres shall no longer be issuable under the ajidic@ption or Restricted Stock Award).




4.5 Retirement Plan Agreement. The Company and the Executive each acknowledgehhby are parties to a Divided Ownership Assigmnnfdan and
Agreement And Retirement Plan Agreement, enteredas of May 3, 1999 (the “Retirement Plan Agreetf)ebinder Article XlI of the Retirement Plan
Agreement, “Employee’s Separate Retirement Pay@bfigation,” the Employee is entitled to certaimbéits upon retirement or attainment of age 62e Th
Parties intend that the Employee shall be enttdegest in and be entitled to receive his full féeaeipon a Change of Control, and accordingly egoe
amend the first sentence of Article Xll, Subparaira of the Retirement Plan Agreement, so thatats as follows: “A. Either (1) upon the occureen€a
Change in Control; or (2) at the date, the latfaetirement and age Sixty-Two (62) Years; andhifeither case prior to such time the Employee’s
employment with the Corporation has not been teateih by the Corporation for Cause (as that terdefmed in Article X(A)(1)) then in such events and
only in such events, the Employee shall have thi®opon and after such date, to receive, and trpd@ation shall have the obligation to pay to Eoypk,
the following amounts, at the following times, sedijto the following provisions, limitations, rdstions and adjustments....”

5. Definition of Terms.

5.1 Terminate/Termination. “Terminate,” “Terminates,” and “Termination” shalean either (a) the termination of the Execusvemployment with th
Company or (b) a Change in Status of the Execusiselefined below.

5.2 Change in StatusA "Change in Status" of the Executive shall meandbcurrence, without the Executive's written cahsef any of the following
circumstances (unless such circumstances constituisolated, insubstantial and inadvertent agatimirtaken in bad faith and are promptly and fudynediec
by the Company after receipt of notice thereoftmy Executive): (a) any diminution or change in ainea adverse to the Executive of (i) his titlejasfor
position with the Company, (ii) his salary, bonaspther benefits, or (iii) his duties, responsilas or employment condition, (b) any breach @ th
Agreement, including without limitation the failuby the Company to pay to the Executive any portibhis compensation, (c) the Company's requirimgg t
Executive to be based at any office or locationartbhan 35 miles from the company’s current maiicefér the Company's requiring the Executive tedfra
on Company business to a substantially greatenettian required immediately before the date af &kgreement, or (d) any purported termination kgy th
Company of the Executive's employment otherwisa tmexpressly permitted by this Agreement.

5.3 Cause. "Cause" shall mean (a) any act of personal dissiyrtaken by the Executive in connection withreEponsibilities as an employee and
intended to result in substantial personal enriaitroéthe Executive, (b) conviction of a felony th&injurious to the Company, (c) a willful act bye
Executive which constitutes gross misconduct anighvis injurious to the Company, and (d) continvealations by the Executive of the Executive's
obligations under Section 1 of this Agreement tratdemonstrably willful and deliberate on the Exie's part (and not resulting from any conditibat
constitutes, or with the passage of time would tturis, a Disability (as defined below)) after tedras been delivered to the Executive a writtenashehfior
performance from the Company which describes tisesliar the Company's belief that the Executiveratssubstantially performed his duties, in eacteca
as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

5.4 Change of Control. "Change of Control" shall mean the occurrenceryf of the following events:

(a) Any transaction or series of transactions, eesalt of which any “person” (as such term is use8ections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act
and the rules and regulations thereunder) (otlzr () the Company, (ii) a person that directlyrafirectly controls the Company on the date of this
Agreement, (iii) a person that is controlled byisounder common control with the Company or (ivy ane or more employee benefit plans or relatestgru
established for the benefit of the employees ofGhmpany or any affiliate of the Company) becom#éseaeficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under
the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of seities of the Company representing fifty percent@®r more of the total voting power representedhgy
Company'’s then outstanding voting securities; or




(b) A change in the composition of the Board ofe@tors of the Company occurring within a two-yeariqd, as a result of which fewer than a
majority of the directors are Incumbent Directdiscumbent Directors" shall mean directors who eitfi) are directors of the Company as of the tiateof,
or (ii) are elected, or nominated for electionthte Board of Directors of the Company with theraffitive votes of at least a majority of the Incumtbe
Directors at the time of such election or nomiraifbout shall not include an individual not othergvn Incumbent Director whose election or nomimaisan
connection with an actual or threatened proxy cgireating to the election of directors to the @amy); or

(c) A merger or consolidation of the Company witly @ther corporation or entity, other than a mergeronsolidation which would result in the
voting securities of the Company outstanding imratdly prior thereto continuing to represent (eitieremaining outstanding or by being converted int
voting securities of the surviving entity) at lefi&y percent (50%) of the total voting power repented by the voting securities of the Comparsuoh
surviving entity outstanding immediately after sumarger or consolidation, or the approval by tlveldtolders of the Company of an agreement for atee s
or disposition by the Company of all or substahtiall the company's assets.

5.5 Disability. "Disability" shall mean that the Executive hasb&nable to substantially perform his duties urtldisrAgreement as the result of his
incapacity due to physical or mental illness, amchsnability, at least 26 weeks after its commenest, is determined to be total and permanent by a
physician selected by the Company or its insuredsseceptable to the Executive or the Executiegallrepresentative (such Agreement as to accéptabi
not to be unreasonably withheld). Nothing contaiheckin shall preclude the Company from appointingmploying any other person to carry out theeduti
and responsibilities of the Executive, nor shajl anch appointment or employment give rise to anghaf Status, in the event of the occurrence of a
physical or mental iliness or injury likely in tiheasonable judgement of the Company to result eaéintin a determination of Disability.

5.6 Stock Option Plan. A "Stock Option Plan" of the Company shall mean siogk option or equity compensation plan of thenany in effect at any
time, including without limitation the CSP, Inc.4BIncentive Stock Plan, 1997 Incentive Stock P23 Stock Incentive Plan, 2007 Stock IncentivanPI
and any other stock options granted to the Exeeufitie terms “Option” and “Restricted Stock Awastffall have the meanings ascribed to them in anly suc
Stock Option Plans.

6. Successors.

6.1 Company's SuccessorsThe Company shall cause any successor to the &ogmwhether direct or indirect and whether by pase, lease, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to allsubstantially all of the Company's business andtass assume the obligations under this Agreeimgsht
agree expressly to perform the obligations underAgreement in the same manner and to the sareateas the Company would be required to perforrh
obligations in the absence of a succession. Fauaioses under this Agreement, the term "Compahgll include any such successor.

6.2 Executive's SuccessorsThe terms of this Agreement and all rights of Executive hereunder shall inure to the benefitof] be enforceable by, the
Executive's personal or legal representatives, #gex; administrators, successors, heirs, deveseg$egatees.

7. Notice.

7.1 General. Notices and all other communications contemplatethis Agreement shall be in writing and shalldeemed to have been duly given when
personally delivered or two business days aftandeiailed by U.S. registered or certified mailuratreceipt requested and postage prepaid. Inabe af th:
Executive, mailed notices shall be addressed toahithe home address which he most recently conuated to the Company in writing. In the case of the
Company, mailed notices shall be addressed toitsocate headquarters, and all notices shall leetdid to the attention of its Secretary.




7.2 Notice of Termination or Change in Status. Any Termination by the Company or any claim bg fxecutive of a Change in Status shall be
communicated by a notice to the other party hegaten in accordance with Section 7.1 of this AgreatnSuch notice shall indicate the specific priovisn
this Agreement relied upon, shall set forth in ceeble detail the facts and circumstances claimguldvide a basis for Termination or Change of Btat
under the provision so indicated, and shall spatié/Date on which the Executive shall be Termishateon which the Change of Status occurred. The
failure by either party to include in the noticeydact or circumstance which contributes to a simowaf Cause or Change in Status shall not waiverighy
of the party hereunder or preclude the party freseging such fact or circumstance in enforcingigists hereunder.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions.

8.1 Waiver. No provision of this Agreement shall be modifiagived or discharged unless the modificationvesmor discharge is agreed to in writing
and signed by the Executive and by an authorizficeofof the Company (other than the Executive).viaver by either party of any breach of, or of
compliance with, any condition or provision of tigreement by the other party shall be considenediger of any other condition or provision or bét
same condition or provision at another time.

8.2 Whole Agreement. No agreements, representations or understanfiifgether oral or written and whether express ofliedp which are not
expressly set forth in this Agreement have beenenmai@ntered into by either party with respechmgubject matter hereof. The foregoing notwithditag
this Agreement is unrelated to, and shall haveffezteupon any deferred compensation agreementogragm in effect regarding the Executive.

8.3 Choice of Law. The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of this Agreement shall be governed leylélwvs of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts without giving effect to its confliof laws principles.

8.4 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowsi or provisions of this Agreement shall not affiaet validity or enforceability of any
other provision hereof, which shall remain in fidlice and effect.

8.5 No Assignment of Benefits The rights of any person to payments or benefitter this Agreement shall not be made subjegption or assignment,
either by voluntary or involuntary assignment ordperation of law, including (without limitationghkruptcy, garnishment, attachment or other credito
process, and any action in violation of this Set8®% shall be void.

8.6 Employment Taxes. All payments made pursuant to this Agreement pélsubject to withholding of applicable income antployment taxes.

8.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpaats) ef which shall be deemed an original, but &Whbich together will constitute
one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has exettitis Agreement, in the case of the Company bgitg authorized officer, as of the day and year
first above written.

CSP, Inc. Executive

By: /s/ J. David Lyons /s/ Gary W. Levine

Title: Director




Exhibit 10.13
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

This Change of Control Agreement (the "Agreetf)éa made and entered into effective as of Jantidr 2008, by and between Robert Stellato (the
"Executive") and CSP, Inc., a Massachusetts cotiporavith principle offices at 43 Manning Road, IBiica, Massachusetts, 01821 (the "Company").

Whereas, the Executive is and has been employed by the Coyrgrashis currently the Company's Vice Presideriinénce; and

Whereas,it is expected that the Company may, from timert@tconsider the possibility of an acquisition Ipther company or other Change of Control
defined in Section 5 below), and the Company rezagrthat such consideration can be a distractidhet Executive and can cause the Executive taadens
alternative employment opportunities; and

Whereas, the Company has determined that it is in the inéstests of the Company and its stockholderssoii@ that the Company will have the continued
dedication and objectivity of the Executive, nohgitanding the possibility, threat or occurrenca @hange of Control of the Company; and

Whereas,the Company and the Executive desire to entertiisoAgreement to provide financial security to Executive and to encourage the Executive to
continue his employment with and dedication toGloenpany;

Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows:
1. Duties and Scope of Employment.

1.1 Position.The Company shall employ the Executive in the pmsibf Vice President of Finance, as such positias been defined in terms of
responsibilities and compensation as of the effeaate of this Agreement; provided, however, thatCompany’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) $hal
have the right, at any time prior to the occurreoice Change of Control, to revise such resporisésland compensation as the Board in its disametiay
deem necessary or appropriate, subject to the ptbeisions of this Agreement. The Executive shathply with and be bound by the Company's operating
policies, procedures and practices from time tetimeffect during his employment. During the terhthe Executive's employment with the Company, the
Executive shall continue to devote his full timk]lsand attention to his duties and responsitatitiand shall perform them faithfully, diligentlyda
competently, and the Executive shall use his Héstte to further the business of the Company asdffiliated entities. The foregoing shall notyeet the
Executive from a reasonable amount of service erbtiards of directors of any entities, subjechoterms of any non-competition obligations he maye
to the Company from time to time, nor from engagimgcademic, religious, charitable or other comityuor non-profit activities that do not impair his
ability to fulfill his duties and responsibilitiesder this Agreement.

1.2. Base Compensatiormhe Company shall pay the Executive as compensftidms services a base salary at the annualaedto be established by
the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Coraptton Committee”). Such salary shall be paidquically in accordance with normal Company
payroll practices. The annualized compensationiipédn this Section 1.2, as such compensation b&increased or (subject to the other provisidrikio
Agreement) decreased by the Board or the Compensatmmittee, is referred to in this AgreementBase Compensation.”

1.3 Variable CompensationBeginning with the Company's current fiscal yeat for each fiscal year thereafter during the tefrihis Agreement, the
Executive shall be eligible to receive additionalc compensation under the Company's Variable Cosagtien Program (the "Variable Compensation
Bonus") based upon specific financial and/or othegets approved by the Compensation Committee VEriable Compensation payable hereunder shall be
payable in accordance with the Company's normatiges and policies.




1.4 Executive BenefitsThe Executive shall be eligible to participatehie Employee benefit plans and executive compemsptagrams maintained by 1
Company applicable to other key executives of them@any, including (without limitation) retiremeniaps, savings or profit-sharing plans, stock option
incentive or other bonus plans, life, disabilitgalth, accident and other insurance programs,@aidtions, and similar plans or programs, subjeetich
case to the generally applicable terms and comditaf the applicable plan or program in questioth tarthe sole determination of the Board or any roithee
administering such plan or program.

1.5 Employment Relationship. The Executive's employment is and shall contiouge solely that of an employee at will, as supeted by the
provisions of this Agreement. If the Executive'spbmgment terminates for any reason, the Executiad! siot be entitled to any payments, benefits, aiges,
awards or compensation other than (i) payment afuants earned or accrued as of the date of termmmafiemployment, (ii) as provided by this Agreetnen
or required by law, or (iii) as may otherwise baiable in accordance with the Company's estatdigimeployee plans and policies (including any deférr
compensation and retirement plans) at the timerafination.

1.6 Termination for Cause, Death or Disability oVVoluntary Resignation. If the Executive voluntarily resigns from the Coamy, or if the Company
terminates the Executive's employment for Caudeeoause of the Executive’s Death or Disabilitynttiee Executive shall not be entitled to receive
severance or other benefits described in Sectioeiaw.

2. Release

All payments due to the Executive under this Agreetishall be conditioned upon and are in consitberatf the execution by the Executive of a full e
in a form reasonably prescribed by the Company |€¢&se"), releasing the Company and its officengalors, employees and advisors from any and all
liability to and including the date of the Termiioatt Notice or Change in Status, save only for ctafor breach of this Agreement.

3. Non-Solicitation

In consideration of the Company paying the bendfiscribed in Section 4 below, Executive agreessftina period of six months after he leaves the
employment of Company, Executive shall not, eittiezctly or indirectly: (1) make known to any pemséirm or corporation the names and/or addrestes o
any of the customers or employees of Company oo#myr information pertaining to them; (2) take svaay of the customers of Company on whom
Executive called, or with whom Executive dealt ecbme acquainted during Executive’s employment @ampany; or (3) interfere with the business of
Company in any manner including the recruiting ioinj of any employee of Company. Executive furtagrees that Company would be irreparably harmed
in the event of a breach of this provision, and thaney damages would not be an adequate remedgordingly, in addition to any other remedies aafali

at law or in equity, Company shall be entitled ldain injunctive relief against any such breacthoeatened breach.

4. Change of Control.
4.1 Severance Payments; Benefits.

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Change of ContraF, te Company Terminates the Executive other floaiCause either in anticipation of or as
required to accomplish a Change of Control, thechttee shall be entitled to receive a severancengay equal to the sum of (i) one-half of the Exaa's
Base Compensation for the Company's fiscal year itheffect or if greater, one-half of the Execets/Base Compensation for the Company's fiscal year
immediately preceding the year in which the Terriamaoccurs, plus (ii) one-half of the ExecutivAisnual Target Variable Compensation Bonus for the
fiscal year then in effect (or, if no Target Indeatis in effect for such year, then one-half af tlighest Variable Compensation Bonus or othereagge
bonus(es) actually paid to the Executive in anthefthree (3) preceding fiscal years); providedyéncer, that a signed Release must be receivedeby th
Company from the Executive prior to and as a caolidf receiving a severance payment. Any severpagenents to which the Executive is entitled pun¢
to this Section 4.1 shall be paid to the Executiveto the Executive's estate or beneficiary inghent of the Executive's death) in a lump sumiwifiiteen
(15) days of the Executive's Termination Date.




(b) Notwithstanding anything in the previous paeguip or elsewhere in this Agreement, if the CompBenyminates the Executive other than for
Cause either in anticipation of or as requireddmoanplish or otherwise substantially contemporasbowith a Change of Control, the Company shallvjae
the Executive with notice of such Termination, &mel Termination shall not be effective until thelei the Notice Period. The Notice Period shalkexit
until the later of sixty days after the expiratiminany period that the Executive must hold shanghé Company in order (i) to avoid liability und&ection 16
(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedror (ii) to comply, at the Company’s reasonabtpiest or the Executive’s reasonable initiativigh w
any other legal or accounting regulations or rezqagnts. Provided, however, that in calculatingpingments to be made to the Executive pursuantdtioBe
4.1(a) above, any compensation paid to the Exezutith respect to his employment during the NoReeiod shall be deducted from the payments duerunde
Section 4.1(a).

4.2 Option Acceleration. Effective upon a Change in Control (as defindldlwen Section 5) of the Company, all Options aresRicted Stock Awards
granted to the Executive and then outstanding uadgiStock Option Plan of the Company shall beceregcisable and vested in full, and all restricgion
thereon shall lapse, notwithstanding any vestimgduale or other provisions to the contrary in theeaments evidencing such options; and the Comaady
the Executive hereby agree that such Option agnesna@d Restricted Stock Awards are hereby andoeileemed amended to give effect to this provision

4.3 Health and Welfare Benefits Following a Change in Control, the Executivelilsba entitled to continue, for six months, to reeethe same or
comparable health and welfare benefits as he gaated in prior to the Change in Control, such atsriot limited to life, disability, health, medicalental,
accident and other insurance programs (“Benefitsl'the “Benefit Plans”). The Company shall provedeh Benefits to the Executive by one or a
combination of the following: (i) continuing thexécutive as a participant under the Company’s thenent benefit plans (provided such plans are
comparable to the Company plans prior to the Cham@mntrol), (ii) paying the full premium for tHexecutive to purchase continuing coverage under the
Benefit Plans, under COBRA and/or (jii) paying teecutive a lump sum payment in the amount necg$sathe Executive to purchase individual coverage
under insurance programs comparable to the Beplafits. This paragraph is not intended to limitféea any other COBRA benefits to which the Exeesiti
may be entitled.

4.4 Exercise of Stock Options; Payment of Requireflaxes. Following a Change of Control, the Executive rtelke any or all of the following actions;
Provided, however, that the Executive shall nogétaRy such action if the Company reasonably regleat he not do so, in order for the company topg
with or receive favorable treatment under lega@rounting requirements: pay any portion of therese price of any Options and/or satisfy any tax
withholding with respect to either the exerciségitions or the vesting of Restricted Stock Awargs b

(i) delivering to the Company outstanding shafesommon stock of the Company, valued at theirtpprice of a share of such stock on the last
trading day preceding the date of delivery (the thé& Price”) and/or

(i) authorizing the Company to withhold fronsignce pursuant to the exercise of any such Optigasting of Restricted Stock a number of shares
of common stock otherwise issuable that, when pilidd by the Market Price of the common stock,gaa to the aggregate exercise price being
paid and/or tax being withheld (and such withhéldres shall no longer be issuable under the ajidic@ption or Restricted Stock Award).




5. Definition of Terms.

5.1 Terminate/Termination. “Terminate,” “Terminates,” and “Termination” shalean either (a) the termination of the Execugvemployment with th
Company or (b) a Change in Status of the Executiselefined below.

5.2 Change in StatusA "Change in Status" of the Executive shall meandbcurrence, without the Executive's written cansaf any of the following
circumstances (unless such circumstances constituisolated, insubstantial and inadvertent agatimirtaken in bad faith and are promptly and fudynediec
by the Company after receipt of notice thereoftmy Executive): (a) any diminution or change in ainea adverse to the Executive of (i) his title jasfor
position with the Company, (i) his salary, bonaspther benefits, or (iii) his duties, respongileis or employment condition, (b) any breach & th
Agreement, including without limitation the failuby the Company to pay to the Executive any portibhis compensation, (c) the Company's requirimgg t
Executive to be based at any office or locationartbhan 35 miles from the company’s current maiicefér the Company's requiring the Executive tedtra
on Company business to a substantially greatenettian required immediately before the date af &kgreement, or (d) any purported termination kgy th
Company of the Executive's employment otherwisa tmexpressly permitted by this Agreement.

5.3 Cause. "Cause" shall mean (a) any act of personal dissiyrtaken by the Executive in connection withreEponsibilities as an employee and
intended to result in substantial personal enriaftroéthe Executive, (b) conviction of a felony the&injurious to the Company, (c) a willful act bye
Executive which constitutes gross misconduct anithvis injurious to the Company, and (d) continveaations by the Executive of the Executive's
obligations under Section 1 of this Agreement tratdemonstrably willful and deliberate on the Exie's part (and not resulting from any conditibat
constitutes, or with the passage of time would tituis, a Disability (as defined below)) after tedras been delivered to the Executive a writtenashehfior
performance from the Company which describes tisesliar the Company's belief that the Executiveratssubstantially performed his duties, in eacteca
as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

5.4 Change of Control. "Change of Control" shall mean the occurrenceryf of the following events:

(a) Any transaction or series of transactions, eesalt of which any “person” (as such term is use8ections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act
and the rules and regulations thereunder) (otlzr () the Company, (ii) a person that directlyrafirectly controls the Company on the date of this
Agreement, (iii) a person that is controlled byisounder common control with the Company or (ivy ane or more employee benefit plans or relatestgru
established for the benefit of the employees ofGhmpany or any affiliate of the Company) becom#éseaeficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under
the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of seities of the Company representing fifty percen@®r more of the total voting power representedhay
Company'’s then outstanding voting securities; or

(b) A change in the composition of the Board ofe@tors of the Company occurring within a two-yeariqd, as a result of which fewer than a
majority of the directors are Incumbent Directdiscumbent Directors" shall mean directors who eitfi) are directors of the Company as of the tiateof,
or (ii) are elected, or nominated for electiontiie Board of Directors of the Company with theraffitive votes of at least a majority of the Incumtbe
Directors at the time of such election or nomiraifbout shall not include an individual not othergven Incumbent Director whose election or nomimaisan
connection with an actual or threatened proxy cgirating to the election of directors to the @amy); or

(c) A merger or consolidation of the Company witly @ther corporation or entity, other than a mergeronsolidation which would result in the
voting securities of the Company outstanding imrmatedy prior thereto continuing to represent (eityeremaining outstanding or by being converted int
voting securities of the surviving entity) at lefi&y percent (50%) of the total voting power repented by the voting securities of the Comparsuoh
surviving entity outstanding immediately after suwarger or consolidation, or the approval by tlveldtolders of the Company of an agreement for atee s
or disposition by the Company of all or substahtiall the company's assets.




5.5 Disability. "Disability" shall mean that the Executive hagb&nable to substantially perform his duties urtldisrAgreement as the result of his
incapacity due to physical or mental illness, amchsnability, at least 26 weeks after its commenest, is determined to be total and permanent by a
physician selected by the Company or its insuredsseceptable to the Executive or the Executiegallrepresentative (such Agreement as to accéptabi
not to be unreasonably withheld). Nothing contaiherkin shall preclude the Company from appointingmploying any other person to carry out theeduti
and responsibilities of the Executive, nor shajt anch appointment or employment give rise to anghaof Status, in the event of the occurrence of a
physical or mental iliness or injury likely in tiheasonable judgement of the Company to result eaéintin a determination of Disability.

5.6 Stock Option Plan. A "Stock Option Plan" of the Company shall mean stogk option or equity compensation plan of thenany in effect at any
time, including without limitation the CSP, Inc.94BIncentive Stock Plan, 1997 Incentive Stock P2A93 Stock Incentive Plan, 2007 Stock IncentivanPI
and any other stock options granted to the Exeeufitie terms “Option” and “Restricted Stock Awastiall have the meanings ascribed to them in anly suc
Stock Option Plans.

6. Successors.

6.1 Company's SuccessorsThe Company shall cause any successor to the &uon(hether direct or indirect and whether by pase, lease, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to allaubstantially all of the Company's business andtags assume the obligations under this Agreeimgsht
agree expressly to perform the obligations underAgreement in the same manner and to the samatead the Company would be required to perforrh
obligations in the absence of a succession. Fauagioses under this Agreement, the term "Compahal! include any such successor.

6.2 Executive's SuccessorsThe terms of this Agreement and all rights of Executive hereunder shall inure to the benefiaof] be enforceable by, the
Executive's personal or legal representatives, #gex; administrators, successors, heirs, deveseg$egatees.

7. Notice.

7.1 General. Notices and all other communications contemplatethis Agreement shall be in writing and shalldeemed to have been duly given when
personally delivered or two business days aftardeiailed by U.S. registered or certified mailuratreceipt requested and postage prepaid. Inabe af th:
Executive, mailed notices shall be addressed toahithe home address which he most recently conuated to the Company in writing. In the case of the
Company, mailed notices shall be addressed toitscate headquarters, and all notices shall leetid to the attention of its Secretary.

7.2 Notice of Termination or Change in Status. Any Termination by the Company or any claim bg Executive of a Change in Status shall be
communicated by a notice to the other party hegiaten in accordance with Section 7.1 of this AgreatSuch notice shall indicate the specific priovisn
this Agreement relied upon, shall set forth in ceeble detail the facts and circumstances claimguldvide a basis for Termination or Change of &tat
under the provision so indicated, and shall spabtié/Date on which the Executive shall be Termishateon which the Change of Status occurred. The
failure by either party to include in the noticeydact or circumstance which contributes to a simowaf Cause or Change in Status shall not waiverighy
of the party hereunder or preclude the party freseging such fact or circumstance in enforcingigists hereunder.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions.

8.1 Waiver. No provision of this Agreement shall be modifiacived or discharged unless the modificationvemor discharge is agreed to in writing
and signed by the Executive and by an authorizideofof the Company (other than the Executive).viver by either party of any breach of, or of
compliance with, any condition or provision of thigreement by the other party shall be considenediger of any other condition or provision or bét
same condition or provision at another time.




8.2 Whole Agreement. No agreements, representations or understan(iirfgether oral or written and whether express oflied) which are not
expressly set forth in this Agreement have beenenmai@ntered into by either party with respechmgubject matter hereof. The foregoing notwithditag
this Agreement is unrelated to, and shall haveffeztupon any deferred compensation agreementogram in effect regarding the Executive.

8.3 Choice of Law. The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of this Agreement shall be governed leylélwvs of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts without giving effect to its confliof laws principles.

8.4 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowsi or provisions of this Agreement shall not afféaet validity or enforceability of any
other provision hereof, which shall remain in fidice and effect.

8.5 No Assignment of Benefits The rights of any person to payments or benefitter this Agreement shall not be made subjegption or assignment,
either by voluntary or involuntary assignment ordperation of law, including (without limitationjpbkruptcy, garnishment, attachment or other credito
process, and any action in violation of this Set8®% shall be void.

8.6 Employment Taxes. All payments made pursuant to this Agreementlpélsubject to withholding of applicable income antployment taxes.

8.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed an original, but &hbich together will constitute
one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has exettitis Agreement, in the case of the Company bgitg authorized officer, as of the day and year
first above written.

CSP, Inc. Executive

By: /s/ Alexander R. Lupinet /s/ Robert A. Stellat

Title: CEO
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Mr. Victor Dellovo April 11,2003
President, Hardware Division

Technisource

1901 W. Cypress Creek Road

Suite 100

Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33309

Dear Victor:

[ am very pleased to offer you the position of President of the Hardware division of
MODCOMP, Inc., a subsidiary of MODCOMP, Inc. (the "Company"), reporting to me.
This offer is specifically contingent on, and will be effective as of the closing of the
Company’s acquisition of Technisource Hardware, Inc. If and when the Company does
close on the acquisition of Technisource Hardware, Inc., the following will be the
principal terms and conditions of your employment with the Company:

l. Your base compensation will be a salary of $155,000 per year, to be reviewed
annually.

2. CSP Inc., parent of the Company will grant to you options for the purchase of
60,000 shares of CSP Inc. Common Stock under the 2003 Stock Option Plan and this will
be reviewed annually. The options will be granted on the date you commence
employment with MODCOMP Inc. and the price per share will be the fair market value
of a share of common stock on that date determined in accordance with the provisions of
such Plan, The options will vest at a rate of 25% a year for 4 years, commencing after
one year of service. However, if CSP Inc. is acquired by way of sale of substantially all
of its assets or by merger or by way of becoming a private company or due to change of
control, your options will fully vest at the time of such acquisition. The ownership of the
stock options may be assigned to a family member or to a trust for the benefit of your
family.

Change of Control of the Company or CSP means (i) any person or entity,
including a group as defined by Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
us amended, becomes the beneficial owner of 50% or more of the outstanding stock or
(i1} (a) the Company or CSP merging, consolidating or reorganizing in which members of
the Board of the Company or CSP do not constitute a majority of the Board following
such transaction or (b) shareholders of the Company or CSP fail to own a majority of
stock or assets in the successor company

3 You will earn a commission on all sales of the Hardware Division, as currently
structured, equal to 3% of the Gross Profit.

| MOOCOMP, Inc.

1650 Wast MoMNab Roag

Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 332591088
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b As a full-time employee of the Company, you shall be eligible to participate in
any and all employee benefit plans which are non-contributory and at your option to
participate in all contributory employee benefit plans. A description of the Company's
benefit plans currently being offered is described in the brochure which you have been
provided with which includes a 401k plan.

5. You will be enrolled in the Company's Group Life Insurance Plan which is one
times your annual salary.

6. You will be entitled to four weeks of vacation during the first year of service with
the Company. In Addition, one-week sick leave will be given for illness.

7. If your employment is terminated by the Company other than for "cause" you will
be entitled to receive severance pay for twelve months based on your total compensation
in the prior fiscal year. This will be paid in 12 monthly installments, with the first
installment paid on the month immediately following termination. Such no-cause
termination will also provide for the immediate vesting of your current and outstanding
Stock options. As used herein "cause” shall mean any material breach by you of any
agreement to which you and the Company are both parties; theft or misappropriation of
Company funds or assets, or intentionally damaging the Company's assets; falsification
of Company records; willful failure or refusal to perform duties reasonable assigned;
conviction (including guilty plea) of a felony which creates apprehension or insecurity on
the part of the Board or other officers of the Company; or acting either willfully or with
gross negligence in a disloyal manner or to the detriment of the Company's best interest.
In addition, you may forfeit your severance pay if you violate certain terms of the
Employee Non-Competition, Invention and Non-Disclosure Agreement.

8. So long as you are employed by the Company, you agree to devote your full time,
skill and energy, diligently, lovally, effectively and to the best of your ability, to the
performance of your duties as President, or such other duties as may be assigned by the
President of MODCOMP.

9. You will be required to execute the attached Employee Non-Competition,
Invention and Non-Disclosure Agreement.

10. If your manager changes your job responsibilities in a way that negatively impacts
your earnings potential, you can resign without obligation to the non-competition clause
(Section # 9) in the Employee Non-Competition, Invention and Non-disclosure
Agregment. '

1. As the business grows, it is anticipated that your fixed and variable compensation
will evolve with your managerial responsibilities, i.e. bottom line focus. These changes
will be agreed to by you and the President of MODCOMP as they occur.

12: You are not being offered employment for a definite term and understand that either you
or the Company may terminate your employment at any time for any reason and without prior
notice.






13. You will be entitled to reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred in
connection with the activities of the Company. To provide for expenses, you shall be
entitled to an American Express Corporate Card (“AMEX™) for business expenses. The
AMEX card may also be used for customer purchase orders. You will be responsible for
submitting appropriate reimbursement/expense forms, Additionally, the Company shall
also pay or provide for a cellular phone.

14, If you agree with the terms of employment outlined above, would you please sign
and date the enclosed copy of this letter and attached agreement and return it to me.

On behalf of the Company, 1 look forward to working together with you to make
MODCOMP Hardware a tremendous success under your stewardship.

Sincerely,

exande
President

I hereby accept this offer of emplovment:

B VL&A

Victor Dellovo Date s






MODCOMP INC.

Employee Non-Competition, Invention and Non-disclosure Agreement

In consideration of my employment by MODCOMP Inc., a Florida corporation,
or any parent, subsidiary or organization (hereinafter collectively called the "Company"),
and of the wages and/or salary to be paid me, I hereby covenant and agree with the
Company as follows:

/3 Disclosure of Inventions

I agree that I will forthwith communicate in writing to the Company, or such
individual as the Company may from time to time designate, a full and complete
disclosure of any and all research and other information, inventions, discoveries and
improvements ("Inventions") made, developed and/or conceived and/or reduced to
practice by me alone or jointly with others while in the employ of the company which are
reasonably related to the business of the Company as a Computer hardware and software
distributor with related professional services.

2. Assignment of Inventions

I agree to, and hereby do, assign and transfer to the Company, or its nominee or
designee (without any separate remuneration or compensation to me other than the
compensation received or assigned to me from time to time in the course of my aforesaid
employment), all my right, title and interest throughout the world in and to such
Inventions, together with the right to file and/or own wholly and without restriction
applications for United States and foreign patents and trademarks and any patent and
trademark issued or issuing thereon. 1 agree to execute all appropriate patent applications
for securing all United States and foreign patents on all Inventions and to do, execute and
deliver any and all acts and instruments that may be necessary or proper to vest all such
Inventions and patents (both United States and foreign) in the Company, or its nominee
or designee, and to enable the Company, or its nominee or designee, to obtain all such
letters patent; and that [ will render to the Company, or its nominee or designee, all such
assistance as it may require in the prosecution of all such patent applications, or all other
proceeding referred to hercinabove, shall be borne by the Company or its nominee or
designee. I will execute, upon request, documents, which secure to the Company and
interests here conveyed, provided that all fees or payments connected with the execution
of the documents shall not be a charge upon me.






If for any reason I am incapable or unwilling to sign documents required by this
Section 2, I now unconditionally and irrevocably appoint Company’s President as my
agent and attorneys-in-fact for me and on my behalf to execute any documents, file any
applications or to take any other action lawfully permitted or required to be taken to
obtain, exercise or enforce any of Company's rights associated with this Section 2 so
long as notice is provided to me prior to execution of any documents on my behalf.

I will assist, upon request, in locating writings and other physical evidence of the
making of my inventions and provide unrecorded information relating to them, and give
testimony in any proceeding in which any of my inventions or any application or patent
directed thereto may be involved, provided that reasonable compensation shall be paid
for such services, except that no obligation is imposed to remunerate at a higher rate for
the giving of testimony than the rate established by law for the compensation of witnesses
in the court or tribunal where the testimony is given or in the district where the testimony
is taken. To the extent reasonably feasible, the Company will use its best efforts to
request such assistance at times and places as will least interfere with any other
employment of mine.

Any Invention reasonably related to the Company's business made, developed
and/or reduced to practice by me alone or jointly with others within six (6) months
following the termination of my employment shall be deemed to be a "Company"
invention, unless proved by me to have been conceived after such termination.

3; Unauthorized Disclosure

Unless required by subpoena, court order, and/or by administrative hearing, [
agree that I will not, without first obtaining the written approval of the Company, or of
such individual as the Company may from time to time designate, divulge or disclose to
anyone outside of the Company, whether by private communication or by public address
or publication, or otherwise, any information not already lawfully available to the public
concerning any inventions, developments, specifications, technical and engineering data,
methods or reports relating to the business of the Company, or any corporation, firm or
person for whom the Company is conducting or shall conduct research services or is
providing or shall provide other services, whether supplied by the Company, or such
corporation, firm or person, or whether made, developed and/or conceived by me or by
others in the employ of the Company. All originals and copies of any such
specifications, technical and engineering data, methods or reports, or other written
materials relating to the business of the Company, however and whenever produced, shall
be the sole property of the Company, not to be removed from the premises or custody of
the Company without in each instance first obtaining written consent or authorization of
the individual as the Company may from time to time designate, and shall be surrendered
to the Company upon termination of my employment, For purposes of Sections 3 and 5
of this Agreement, information and/or trade secrets which pass into the public domain
shall, after the time of such passing, no longer be considered as confidential or secret.






In addition, I agree that I will not directly or indirectly publish or cause to be
published any article containing or disclosing any information about the Company or
reported or received by the Company from any corporation, firm or person with whom or
for whom the Company shall be under contract to provide research service, without the
prior written authorization of the Company or of such individual as the Company may
from time to time designate.

+ Copyrizght

I will promptly disclose to the Company all copyrightable material which 1
produce, compose or write, individually or in collaboration with others, which arises out
of work delegated to me by the Company; and, at the expense of the Company, I will
assign to it all my interest in such copyrightable material and will sign all papers and do
all other acts necessary to assist the Company to obtain copyrights on such material in
any and all countries.

5. Trade Secrets

I will not, during my employment by the Company or afterwards, disclose to
others or use for my own benefit any trade secrets acquired by me from the Company, its
customers, suppliers, consultants or affiliates, except to the extent that the disclosure of
such trade secrets is necessary to perform my duties and fulfill my responsibilities as an
employee of the Company. (A trade secret is information not generally known to the
trade which gives the Company an advantage over its competitors. Trade secrets can
include, by way of example, products under development, production methods and
processes, sources of supply, materials used in manufacture, customer lists, cost of parts
and materials, marketing plans, and information concerning the filing or pendency of
patent applications.) A trade secret is not information which has entered the public
domain.)

. Companv Property: Termination Certification

Upon the termination of my employment with the Company, 1 will tum over to
the Company all models, prototypes, notes, memoranda, notebooks, drawings,
specifications, records, customer lists, proposals, business plans, and other documents or
materials, tools, equipment or other property for or otherwise belonging to, the Company,
it being acknowledged that all such items are the sole property of the Company, and I
agree to sign the following "Termination Certificate”.

"This is to certify that I do not have in my possession or custody nor have 1 failed
to return, any models, prototypes, notes, memoranda, notebooks, drawings, records,
specifications, customer lists, proposal, business plans, or copies of them, or other
documents or materials, tools, equipment or other property belonging to the Company.”






7. Non-Solicitation

I agree that for a period of one (1) year after I leave the employment of Company,
I shall not, either directly or indirectly: (1) make known to any person, firm or
corporation the names and/or addresses of any of the customers or employees of
Company or any other information pertaining to them; (2) take away any of the
customers of Company on whom [ called, or with whom 1 dealt or became acguainted
during my employment with Company; or (3) interfere with the business of Company in
any manner including the recruiting or hiring of any employee of Company. 1 further
agree that Company would be irreparably harmed in the event of a breach of this
provision, and that money damages would not be an adequate remedy. Accordingly, in
addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, Company shall be entitled to
obtain injunctive relief against any such breach or threatened breach.

8. Investigations

I agree that I shall cooperate with Company in the internal investigation regarding
and/or in the defense of any charge of illegal activity or wrongdoing involving me or of
which I am aware, by virtue of my employment with Company

9, Non-Competition

[ agree that, for a period of one (1) year after 1 leave the employment of
Company, [ shall not accept a position with or otherwise become affiliated with any other
person, firm or corporation in the hardware, software and related professional services
business that has the intent or effect of competing with the Company’s lines of business
as a Computer hardware and software distributor with related professional services.

I acknowledge that the activities carried on by the Company and its affiliates have
national business and commercial implications for the Company without geographical
limits, [ understand and agree that this non-competition provision is necessary for the
protection and benefit of Company, because of (i) my position with Company, (ii) the
training that I have received at Company's expense, and (iii) my access to Company
confidential information. I acknowledge that my employment with a competitor of
Company would inherently and inevitably lead to the intentional or inadvertent disclosure
of Company's Confidential Information. 1 further agree that Company would be
irreparably harmed in the event of a breach of this provision, and that money damages
would not be an adequate remedy. Accordingly, in addition to any other remedies
available at law or in equity, Company shall be entitled to obtain injunctive relief against
any such breach or threatened breach.

I understand that I am entitled to severance pay under certain circumstances, and
that this severance pay is in partial consideration of my agreeing to the provisions of (1)






the Non-Solicitation clause (Section 7) above and (2) this Non-Competition clause. If I
violate either of these two provisions, I understand that the Company may, in addition to
any other remedies it may have, (1) cease paying any further severance pay and (2)
recover any severance pay previously paid to me.

4] Governi aw

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Agreement.

1. General Provisions

() I further agree that this Agreement shall be binding upon me irrespective
of the duration of my employment or other association with the Company, the reasons for the
cessation of my employment or other association by the Company, or the amount of my wages
and/or salary. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else in this Agreement I agree that 1 am
an employee-at-will and that this Agreement does not impose any obligation on Company or me
to continue my employment with Company for any definite period of time.

(b)  This Agreement is the whole agreement and no modification or variation
shall be deemed valid unless in writing signed by the Company.

{c) In the event of any inconsistency with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and any contract of employment, which [ may enter into with the Company,
the provisions herein shall prevail.

(d) I represent and warrant to the Company that I am not under any
obligations to any person, firm or corporation; and have no other interest which is
inconsistent or in conflict with this Agreement, or which would prevent, limit or impair,
in any way, the performance by me of any of the covenants hereunder of my duties in my
said employment,
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